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I am pleased to present the 2019 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together with

its subsidiaries, the “Group”, “our Group”’, “we”, “us”, “our”,
“Xingfa” or “Xingfa Aluminium”).

2019 was another milestone year for Xingfa Aluminium. With
the support of our customers and partners, coupled with the joint
efforts from all staff of Xingfa, the sales revenue of the Group
achieved the “10 billion” mark in 2019 for the first time, and its
profits grew for eight consecutive years, representing a compound
annual growth rate of 59.03% from 2011 to 2019.

In 2019, our Group’s revenue increased by 13.7% to
approximately RMB11,280.8 million (2018: RMB9,924.5
million), sales volume rose by approximately 18.2% to 612,223
tonnes (2018: 517,982 tonnes), net profit attributable to
shareholders increased by 22.4% to approximately RMB606.1
million (2018: RMB495.2 million). The Directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HKDO0.28 per ordinary share
of the Company (“Share”) for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HKD 0.20).
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Looking back into 2019, the Group continued its dual-direction-
orientated strategies of internal extension and external expansion
to enhance its sales in China and overseas markets as well as
improve its internal production and management efficiency.

In terms of external expansion, following the adjustments of
its marketing model and marketing channel expansion in 2018,
further benefits were emerged in 2019 with both its strategic
centralized procurement and dealers’ sales volume hit new high.
We also proactively expanded our sales into the overseas markets
and had successfully stepped into three important markets such as
Egypt, Chile and Japan by Xingfa in 2019 after achieving great
successes in Vietnam, Australia, Indonesia, Cambodia, Myanmar,
South Africa, West Africa, Singapore, Thailand and other

countries.

For internal extension, the Group continued its commitment
to production and internal management reform. In 2019, the
Group entered into a consultant contract with Siemens to start
advancing its IT top-level design and digitalized factory projects
for the purpose of establishing the digitalized foundation of
Xingfa’s product and management in future. The Group also
engaged Aon Hewitt to provide technical support for the Group’s
human resources system upgrade, so as to reinforce our internal

management foundation.

Looking forward into future, even though we expect we will face
more challenges, the Group will continue to devote its efforts in
research and development, optimize product mix, broaden sales
network, as well as enhance operation efficiency and manage its
finances under a prudent approach, and determine its presence in
construction aluminum profiles business, achieve breakthroughs
in industrial aluminum profiles development, and extend the
industrial chain. Our management team will lead Xingfa to build
a leading company in aluminum processing sector with innovative
drivers, smart manufacturing, green recycling and rational product
structure by leveraging the experience we cumulated in the past 36

years.
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On behalf of the Group, I would like to take this opportunity to
thank every member of the board of directors of the Company,
management and staff of the Group for contributing to the success
of the Group. Last but not the least, I would like to express my
sincere appreciation to the customers and business partners of the

Group and shareholders for their continuing support.

Special note to COVID-19 pandemic: The Group strictly
implements the epidemic prevention measures in accordance with
the central and local government regulations, there is neither
any suspected nor confirmed case of COVID-19 among all our
employees. Since 10 February 2020, the Company gradually
resumed its production with over 95% of its staff returned to work
at the date hereof. The management will pay close attention to
the changes in epidemic situation both in China and overseas and
adjust our corporate operational strategy in a timely manner based
on its development.

LIU Libin, Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2020
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Industry and Business Overview
Industry Review

In 2019, the PRC economy continued its growth momentum
despite encountering multiple adverse factors such as the Sino-
US trade frictions and global economic slowdown. According
to the National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC” or “China”), gross domestic product of the
PRC increased by 6.1% year-on-year in 2019. The peoples’
living standards continued to improve with the support of on-
going economic growth, which had stimulated the urbanization
development in China. Following the Chinese government put
forward the facilitation of settling 100 million non-registered
residents in cities and supported the high-quality development
of new urbanization, as at the end of 2019, the State Council
of China further proposed full abolition on urban settlement
restrictions of urban areas with less than 3 million permanent
residents, involving about 60 cities. Driven by governmental
policy, urban constructions, such as expansion of commercial
streets, construction of public facilities and transportation
infrastructure establishment were accelerated in various regions,
and had propelled the demand for the aluminium profile products
of the Group.
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During the year under review, China’s real estate market
developed at a steady pace, and “houses are for living and not
for speculation” became the vision of the PRC government in
controlling the real estate market. It was mentioned at the Central
Economic Work Conference held at the end of 2019 that such
vision should be adhered to and the regulating mechanisms
in respect of land prices and property prices as well as the
expectations should be implemented. Local governments had
adopted more measures to ensure the stable development of real
estate market, and solve the housing problems of new immigrants
and young generations. With many rounds of adjustments
and control, hundreds of small and medium-sized real estate
enterprises were closed down due to capital chain problems. On
the contrary, the real estate market accelerated its inclinations
towards clustering on leading real estate enterprises due to the
higher risk tolerance capabilities of larger enterprises. Among the
top 20 real estate enterprises in China, Vanke, Country Garden,
Sunac, China Overseas, China Resources, Greentown, Seazen,
China Fortune, Shimao Property, Jinke and Agile are customers
of the Group, in which we have close and long-term partnership
relationships. We also co-operated with other major real estate
enterprises in certain projects. Therefore, the continuous
integration of the real estate market helped to consolidate sales of
construction aluminium profiles of the Group.

Currently, the aluminium profile market in China is relatively
fragmented, and industry integration is conducive to facilitate the
business consolidation of the Group. With years of development
of the aluminium profile industry, and the growing demand
for high-end products sectors including green construction,
lightweight automobile development and railway transportation,
industry peers with relatively backward technological standards
will be eliminated, and orders will gradually be transferred
to leading enterprises with more technological and research
and development advantages, thereby accelerating industry
integration. At the same time, downstream customers such as real
estate developers tend to co-operate and enter into construction
aluminium profiles contracts with aluminium profiles suppliers
which have higher production capacity and stable product quality,
thereby accelerating the inclinations towards clustering on leading
real estate enterprises. As China’s leading aluminium profile
manufacturer, we continue to benefit under the new round of

industry integration.
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Business Review

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profiles
manufacturers in the PRC and is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles which are being
used as construction and industrial materials. Since 2002, the
Group has been awarded the “No. 1 of the National Construction
Aluminium Profiles Enterprise” by China Non-Ferrous Metals
Fabrication Industrial Association for three consecutive sessions.
As of the end of 2019, the Group had obtained more than 1,300
national patents and participated in the drafting of over 90
national and industry standards. Currently, we are also one of
the world’s largest suppliers of electricity conductive aluminium
profiles for metro vehicles. Leveraging our advanced research and
development capability and commitment to quality, the Group has
established extensive and stable sales networks in the PRC and
overseas for the past 36 years. In recent three years, the Group has
focused on establishing our sales outlets in the prefecture-level
cities in Southern China and Eastern China, and at the same time
has invested its resources to establish sales outlets in key cities of
relatively underdeveloped regions, and apparent positive results
were seen from their regional sales data.
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In 2019, the Group continued to facilitate the development of
the two principal businesses of construction aluminium profiles
and industrial aluminium profiles. Over the years, our revenue
mainly derived from the sales of construction aluminium
profiles products. In recent years, new buildings stressed on
green construction through pursuing energy conservation and
environmental protection in every detail, so as to meet the national
environmental protection requirements and trends, especially
the system door and window profiles with heat insulation
function, which are being widely used in new buildings. The
“Xingfa System”, “Xingfa Doors and Windows” and “Paxdon
System” (A 5 7 1 2 4% ) developed by the Group meet the high
standards for energy conservation and environmental protection.
At the same time, in response to national and social attention
to environmental protection, as well as the market demand
for products relating to lightweight transportation, the Group
continued to promote the production and sales of aluminium
profile products in lightweight transportation. The Group also
noticed that the industrial aluminium profiles market has gradually
become matured in recent years, however, owing to its fragmented
market nature, the technical requirements of each kind of product
are relatively higher. The Group is determined to leverage the
advantages of its construction aluminium profiles to expand the
industrial aluminium profiles market to achieve the dual-engine
development of these two segments. The construction of precision
manufacturing base located in Guangdong Sanshui Industrial
Zone is stepping up, which is planned to produce high-end
industrial aluminium profiles for use in sectors such as high-end
electronic communication equipment, radiator materials, medical
apparatus and instruments and military engineering applications,
making notable stride in the implementation of the dual-engine
development by the Group.

In terms of overseas sales, the Group expanded the markets in
Egypt, Chile and Japan last year. With the growing global demand
for aluminium profiles, significant results were achieved in other
overseas markets which the Group has expanded into earlier,
including Vietnam, Australia, Indonesia, Cambodia, Myanmar,
South Africa, West Africa, Singapore and Thailand, of which the
annual sales volume via domestic distributor in Vietnam increased
by more than 37% year-on-year.
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Innovation and scientific research were the drivers for Xingfa
in expanding its new markets. The Group strives to participate
in various industry exchanges and seminars, and has established
long-term and stable co-operative relationships with local
universities, research institutes and enterprises in the peer industry
to jointly solve the common technical problems in the industry
or carry out new technology research, and actively improve
the quality and functions of aluminium profiles of the Group.
Moreover, as an industry pioneer, we actively participate and take
the lead in the drafting and formulation of international, national
and industry standards for the aluminium alloy profile industry,
and promotes the implementation of a series of standards. During
the year, Xingfa participated in industry exchange conferences
and forums including the Aluminium Processing Industry Green
Manufacturing Technology Exchange Conference in Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao-Greater Bay Area and the Fifth National
Non-ferrous Metal Structural Material Preparation, Processing
and Application Technology Exchange Conference. The Group
participated in the drafting of industry standards including GB/
T 27685-2019 “Portable Aluminium Alloy Ladder” and GB/
T 8005.1-2019 “Aluminium and Aluminum Alloy Terminology
Part 1: Products and Processing Technology”. Furthermore, as a
principal drafting party, the Group also participated in the drafting
of ISO 28340: 2013 “Aluminium Laminated Coatings Technical
Requirements for Laminated Coatings and Electrophoretic
Organic Coatings on Aluminium Surface and Anodic Oxide
Coatings ( $1 & 1 # 4 [ 53 3 1 5 Uk A 8 5 BB bk A AL
JE () ¥ & BEHE AT 225K ) 7, the first international standard for
aluminium profile industry in the PRC. Such participation has
greatly improved our influence and right to speak on international
stage as an PRC aluminium profile enterprise. The Group was
also awarded the titles of “National Standards Development and
Innovation Demonstration Base” and “International Standards
Development and Innovation Demonstration Base”.
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During the Year, the Group continued to promote self-
transformation, aiming to transform its production processes and
internal management to become a leading modern aluminium
profile manufacturer in the PRC. In mid-2019, the Group entered
into a consultancy contract with Siemens AG in respect of the
provision of technical support on IT top-level planning and
advancement of digital plants. In terms of internal management,
the Group continued its management reform. The Group will
continue to conduct reforms in various aspects such as production
and marketing integration, reforms in human resources and

business department to improve internal management standards.

In response to the national green manufacturing development
plan, the Group integrated the requirements of ISO 14000
environmental management system certification and ISO 50001
energy management system certification, and formulated the
environmental protection system. During the Year, the Group
invested over RMBS5 million in environmental protection, which
was mainly used for renovation, upgrade, repair and maintenance
of environmental protection facilities, hazardous waste treatment,
environmental impact assessment and environmental inspection of
development projects, so as to further strengthen the monitoring
and control of environmental protection and sewage.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue and
sales volume of the Group increased by 13.7% and 18.2%
to approximately RMB11,280.8 million and 612,223 tonnes
respectively (2018: RMB9,924.5 million and 517,982 tonnes
respectively), of which, the sales of construction aluminium
profiles and industrial aluminium profiles accounted for 77.4%
and 19.6% of the revenue respectively. The gross profit of
the Group for the year increased by 10.3% year-on-year to
approximately RMB1,489.8 million (2018: RMB1,350.8 million).
The gross profit margin was 13.2% (2018: 13.6%), and such a
decrease was mainly due to the fierce market competition and
the slight decline in product selling price. During the Year, the
profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB606.1 million (2018: RMB495.2 million), representing an
increase of 22.4% year-on-year.

o B i e o3 B

WIN A5 A A 0 ) 1 FRAE A W ORAE AR B R
T2 T v 0 FUL GG 5 5 1 IR TR T — i Y BLAR AL
i R BE AR EE P o KA R A A [ B A I P 1Y T
AR AT A TR BRI TR T2 A )~ S Ak TR
o S AR R 90T SRR o TR A B U T A A T IE 48
MRS AR M EENS B A
JIEWR AN H AN L A R T A
AR o

7 B O % ek 0 A B SR L ) > AR 45 G T 1SO
1400037 5% & HL A8 22 F1ISO 50001 i P64 BE B R 32
K > IR T BRI AR o RN > AR ETE
WA mHEABRANRE LT TEARER
PR DI ~ Tk - A SRR R B b

B B JE B AT R BR A5 A A O T > — 25 Jn g 3

BROR B P15 0 T Y B A

BEE - NEtT H=Z1+—HIL4EE A%
[ 2 7% 2EHE Ko & B3 N13.7% % 18.2% % 4
A R #511,280,800,0007C % 612,223 (% — )\
Pl A N R #9,924,500,0007T }517,982
M) o AR SR R K T2 SR B B )
T R MNTT.4%1019.6% ° 4 N & F 815 4
A B H1,489,800,00000 ( & — /U4 0 AR
1,350,800,0007T) > [A HL 3 0110.3% o & F % /A
13.2% ( & — )\ 1 13.6%) > BRI R T Bk I 5
T TR R R R R E e AR
o8 TR N EAG R4 B N R #606,100,00070
(& — N4 0 AR #495,200,0007C) - 7] He 38 m
22.4% o
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Construction aluminium profiles

The construction aluminium profiles are aluminium profiles with
surface finishing, which are mainly used for construction and
installation of doors and windows, curtain walls, ceilings and
blinds and other decorative products.

In 2019, the revenue of construction aluminium profiles
increased by 21.0% to approximately RMB8,733.5 million (2018:
RMB7,220.3 million), and sales volume increased by 24.2% to
473,305 tonnes (2018: 381,233 tonnes).

Industrial aluminium profiles

The industrial aluminium profiles are mainly plain aluminium
profiles, which can be used as container box, such as new
conductive profiles of urban railway locomotives and ship
components etc. Moreover, the industrial aluminium profiles
can also be produced in other different forms and shapes, such
as central processing unit (CPU) and display thermal sinks and

electronic consumer product frames.

The revenue of industrial aluminium profiles in 2019 decreased by
0.2% to approximately RMB2,210.7 million (2018: RMB2,216.0
million), and sales volumes increased by 1.5% to 136,395 tonnes
(2018: 134,406 tonnes).

Prospect

Looking forward 2020, the Sino-US trade frictions have
gradually reduced, while the outbreak of coronavirus disease
2019 (“COVID-19”) and slowdown of the economic growth in
China will have potential negative impact on our business. As
this year is a year of transformation for the Group, we will seize
opportunity and focus on internal management reforms. A number
of management reform plans that were proposed last year will be
implemented one after another in this year, which cover areas on
talent training, product standardization, electronic information
planning and production base expansion. It is expected that the
Group will be able to improve its production processes, strengthen
cost control and enhance operating efficiency through those series
of reforms, and together with a continuous capacity expansion

plan to enhance the competitiveness of the Group.

A

b F HRUE )

2 S SR AU B 2 AR T B B B ALY > B AR
T AT i  RAEAR S 1 5 T 4 4 Al

=]
mn

R JUAE > SR T b SRR IN21.0% &
#1 N R %58,733,500,000C ( & — )\ ARHE
7,220,300,0007C) > 1M § & 3% i1124.2% 5 473,305 M
(2K — 4 1 381,233M) -

TR

T2 EBE L S RAM > o] AEELEFH N
FEHE > {51 200 0 T Sk 5 4 ) S 2 R TR A R AH
55 5 5340 > IRAT R BOR R E 20 R 26 > 1] 4an o e
JiE P #% (CPU) K HU/ 8 1 B Fr I 78 11 2% 8 b
HE 248 -

TERAMEETR —F—ILFERD02%EH)
AN R #2,210,700,0000C ( =& — N4 AR
2,216,000,0007G) - T $if & 34 JN1.5% % 136,395
(= — )\ 1 134,406M) -

Hil 5

JEE TR TR WSR3 B 5 41 0 M R A R
MBI Al & ([COVID-19]) 5| A B2 B b B 48
IS U B 2L A AR T A B I B - R AR
R ERE 2 F RMeLERE BERT
G - RN 2 HE M 8 R
AL WAL R EHERL BT
{5 BB B B A o S o 3 e S G bR o AN SRR
R RS BRI B s R E R
o A P ] BT SEOR S A A R E R
PEoREr B A N T EM B F T -
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In the future, the Group will continue to take construction
aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium profiles as our
dual-engine development direction. The application of industrial
aluminium profiles has achieved tremendous progress in recent
years, covering fields such as electronic home appliances,
printing, transportation and aerospace, which demonstrated its
market potential. However, there is still room for improvement
in the technical standard and capacity of industrial aluminium
profiles. The Group will continue to invest in the industrial
aluminum profiles sector, set up the Xingfa Research Institute ( #
FEWFFEBE) , and work with academic institutions to explore new
applications of industrial aluminium profiles. It is expected to
raise the proportion of revenue derived from the sale of industrial
aluminium profiles and deep-processing products to 40% of the
Group’s total revenue in next three to five years. At the same time,
we notice there are different merger and acquisition opportunities
in the market, and the Group will first consider our peers in

industrial aluminium profiles sector.

In terms of overseas sales, the Group will continue to explore new
sales points and expand into more markets. Following the year-
on-year increase in sales volume in the Vietnam market, we plan
to further expand such market to seize a larger market share. In
addition, the Group completed an in-depth survey in Southeast
Asia last year. In review of the region has a population of 600
million with strong economic growth and is full of development
opportunities, the Group will increase its investment in Southeast
Asia.

In the long run, external uncertainties including the Brexit and
Sino-US trade frictions will continue to impose more instabilities
to the macro economy. The Group will remain cautious and
optimistic about the prospects of the aluminium profile markets.
As the market becoming gradually matured, smaller-scale peers
will be eliminated due to issues relating to pollution treatment,
research and development technology standards and industrial
chain integration, and leading enterprises will benefit from the
continuous capacity integration. Meanwhile, the development
of urbanization continues to bring appropriate support to the
industry, and the application of industrial aluminium profiles
will become more extensive in future, which will have a positive
impact on the Group’s business. The Group will continue to
develop under a balanced approach in both its external business
expansion and internal operation efficiency enhancement, so as to

bring greater returns to shareholders and stakeholders.

o B i e o3 B

ARAE AL B AL A D)l SR T Y TS R T
VRG] S8 it o T 38 5 B bF A JE A AR IRAS R 2
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S FUI T 5 1 9 > M FRAM AE T3 8 A A £l
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BB AE T3 S b SR> 57 B B AE 5 B - B R
A4 A T D 9 TS 0 TR o 0BT T 5 2R
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W A G B T 2 10 AR K Y- o [] B > B R B 8
BT ASIA] B O SR 6 A SR M S0 5 T T3 g
Y b G S8R ] €

e S 819 15 7 THT > A 2 B 5 45 20 A 9 B i 0BG
i Jo 28 5 22 AN (] T 357 o A 2% 4 B R T 35 1 i R 1)
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LR YR PN

ISR NS e et i QIS
2 T V45 55 1 A A % MBS M S O E

7 AR o] G T A I B T SRHE OR A AR R -
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Financial Review
Revenue

The revenue and sales volume of the Group for the Year were
increased by 13.7% and 18.2% year-on-year to approximately
RMBI11,280.8 million and 612,223 tonnes respectively (2018:
RMB9,924.5 million and 517,982 tonnes respectively). The
growth was attributable to the increase in sales orders during the
Year.

The sales volume of construction aluminium profiles for the Year
increased by 24.2% to 473,305 tonnes (2018: 381,233 tonnes).
Meanwhile, the sales volume of industrial aluminium profiles for
the Year also increased by 1.5% to 136,395 tonnes (2018: 134,406
tonnes).

The following table sets forth the details of our revenue by
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018:

A

S 255 1o A
BEH

AR AR BE S AN AR [ 2 8 2E R OB B R AR 4 R
HIN13.7% % 18.2% % # N K #11,280,800,000
JG K 612,223MF ( —F — N4 4 Al 4 N R
9,924,500,0007C [517,982Mf) - iZ £ 5 £ E
T AF A B B R TR 0 BT B o

AR B> SR TR B B 4 n24.2% %£.473,305
ME (A4 381,2330A) o B[R] RF > i A 4F
B > 28R OB 81 FE 1IN 1.5% % 136,395MF ( %
— J\4F 1 134,406Mf) -

FREIIALEPAEE T IR F
+ A=A B IR R A R Rl 0 2
A

2019 2018
SR s TR 4
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARF AR BT T

Manufacturing and sale of aluminium A B B 6 R b

profiles

— Construction aluminium profiles — SR A b 8,733,486 7,220,262
— Industrial aluminium profiles — LB 2,210,691 2,215,995
10,944,177 9,436,257
Property development L/ ES1dH 81,599 301,164
Others (Note) HoAth (Mt 7E) 255,072 187,096
Total Hast 11,280,848 9,924,517

Note: Our Group’s other revenue represented revenue generated from
service contracts and sale of aluminium panels, aluminium alloy,
moulds and spare parts.

BT AR SR A SRS IS & A I A g B
B BER S A B R S
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year increased by 10.3%
year-on-year to approximately RMB1,489.8 million (2018:
RMB1,350.8 million).

The overall gross profit margin for the Year of the Group remained
stable at 13.2% (2018: 13.6%), while the sales to production ratio
increased slightly to 99% (2018: 98%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles in 2019 and 2018:

o LI B o3 B

B LB

FAAAERE > AL E 2 E R A N10.3% %2 %)
A R 1,489,800,0007T ( & — \FE: ARH
1,350,800,0007C) ©

AR AL E 2 BB R RERBCE13.2%
(= — )\ 13.6% ) - T8 B 25 2 LL w3
MZE99% (—F—/)\F:98%) °

TR TAE  —F— IUE T — R RA
CEASIEE

2019 2018

SE A BN

Construction aluminium profiles S g T b 12.7% 11.9%
Industrial aluminium profiles T 2E 4R R Rt 9.7% 12.4%

The gross profit margin of construction aluminium profiles
increased slightly to 12.7% for the Year as compared to that of
2018. This was mainly attributable to the gross profit margin
of certain sales to new customers, being property developers, is

comparatively higher than that of the existing customers.

The gross profit margin of industrial aluminium profiles decreased
to 9.7% for the Year as compared to that of 2018. Under the
intensified market competition, the Group lowered its selling
price of certain products in order to maintain its market share. In
addition, as the production capacity was fully loaded during the
Year, the Group outsourced some of the sales orders to external
sub-contractors, which increased the overall production costs.

Other income

The other income of the Group for the Year increased significantly
by 92.9% year-on-year to approximately RMB106.0 million
(2018: RMB54.9 million), which was mainly attributable to the
increase in interest income on accounts receivables and the net
foreign exchange gain.

IR R M AR 2 R R T — AR BB
EFE12.7% - W FEEH R MAETHES (B
AR B EZ BRI RME SR REET 2

TR B IR A AR 2 B R T — )\ T R
9.7% o R WALHI T 85 B F H > AL R
T 2 B DAMERR TG 00 B BLAL > iR A4
JEE A FE RE L9 BT > AR B AN TS R T T
IR B 7 > L i R A AR

FC A W 2

AR » AR B [ 2 oA 25 454 K IR 3% 192.9%
ZE#H N R ¥106,000,0007T ( ~F— \4F: NRHE
54,900,00075) » J5 3 E i BE IR 3k 2 FILE IR A
T A1 REE Wiz 25 73 ARG I BT 3o
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Distribution costs

The distribution costs of the Group for the Year increased by 5.1%
to approximately RMB293.1 million (2018: RMB278.9 million),
which accounted for 2.6% of the revenue (2018: 2.8%). The
increase was due to the significant increase in sales volume which
led to the corresponding increase in transportation costs and staff

costs.
Administrative expenses

Due to business expansion of the Group, the number of
management staff increased, resulting in an increase in staff costs
during the Year. The provision for trade and other receivables also
increased given the market conditions of the Year in addition to
the Group’s business expansion. As a result, the administrative
expenses of the Group for the Year increased by 19.4% to
approximately RMB430.3 million (2018: RMB360.4 million),
which accounted for 3.8% of the revenue (2018: 3.6%).

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 7.8% to approximately RMB151.5
million for the Year (2018: RMB164.2 million) mainly due to the

decrease in average loans and borrowings during the Year.
Profit for the Year and net profit margin

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) for the Year increased by 22.4% year-on-year to
approximately RMB606.1 million (2018: RMB495.2 million). The
increase was primarily attributable to the increase in sales orders
during the Year.

A

g1 85 A

T A AE B > A SR 2 A B O AR B NS 1% 2 K
AR %293,100,00078 ( =~ F — \NF: AR
278,900,0007T) - (L8 L 2.6% ( ZF— /4
2.8% ) o w3 N TG F T B B K S 0 - A S dy
BA B BT AR A R 38 o

A7 BB 32

B AR 2 [ 2 SRS 90 - A B B TN e i >
AT B B T RUAR BN o 28 B Ko JEL At 1 kg R I
WEIRTE AR S B 2 FS 30 R N AR 2 i 1H UL R
BTG o PR AR B > A 2 AT BB S
fn19.4% 2 £ N R %430,300,00000 ( —F— 4 :
A K ¥5360,400,00070) > 1l R 23.8% (%
—\4:3.6%) °

St 5 AR

F 5 A B8 7.8 9% 2 4 N R 151,500,0007T (-
E— 4E 0 ARM164,200,0007T) > J3 EE R
I ST 85 B R R R D BT B

A% 4 B i ) % ] R

AN A BB (TR ) I A A 47 132 3 ] 42 48 36 m
22.4% % # N K ¥606,100,0007T ( —~F— /4 A
R #495,200,0007C ) ° 3% 38 0 J5 3 B i R AR AR B
PHEFT B R T
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Analysis of Financial Position
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out our Group’s current and quick ratios
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

o LI B o3 B

S 5 ik DL 43 e
Y2 ) e 3 D L e

NREINAE G AU R R
H="+—HZ 8 Fs st

2019 2018
SEnE B AR
Current ratio (Note i) TE R (KA ) 1.19 1.13
Quick ratio (Note ii) WE) L2 (B AL ) 0.93 0.86
Notes: Kt 7t
(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided (i) B LR DUAE oK 22 i B AR E R DA i B B

by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

(ii) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the
total current assets and the inventories divided by the total current
liabilities at the end of the year.

Current ratio increased slightly for the Year as compared to that of

2018 due to the increase in cash balances as at 31 December 2019.

Quick ratio was improved for the Year as compared to that of 2018
which was mainly due to the decrease in bank loan balances as at
31 December 2019 as compared to that as at 31 December 2018.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out our Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2019 and 2018:

BHRNA -

(i) B DUEOR 2 B AR (E S A 1 2 SR
W DA 3 B (AR

AR R > TR SRR R — AR B T
BT JAFE T H = B Z B a RS ER 0 B
o

AR 2 B R B — AR RS T
FHR FE-JUEF A =4 H AT SR A
Bz ) E+A=+—HWP -
iR

TREFIAREBD - F—NFER ZFE—NFE T+
A=+—HA2ZatEx:

2019 2018

- S | N2 —E— )\

Gearing ratio (Note) BB (M) 21.9% 26.0%
Note: i

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings divided by
total assets and multiplied by 100%.

BT BE AR DLURE R A B8 BR LA A (E 7 3R BL100% T
o
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The gearing ratio was improved for the Year as compared to
that of 2018 which was mainly due to the decrease in bank loan
balances as at 31 December 2019.

Inventory turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s inventory turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

A

IAEEZ AR R T~ NEFIE )
FEHH ZFEIET A= — HRATREK

17 8 A

FREIIALEAEE TR F
ToA=Z B IEFE A A

2019 2018
R LA TR N
Inventory turnover days (Note) T2 JE I () 42 51

Note:

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The production efficiency was improved due to better arrangement
on production plans, leading to a reduction in inventory backlog
and the inventory turnover days for the Year.

Debtors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s debtors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

Wit
15 L0 B4R 62 90 00 B 2 47 B 5 0T
9B LA 7y 2 B 05 A 4 LA 365 H 315 o

PR R R S A ) A R DR A BT B T >
BORAE BT A7 B B A7 B RO
B W5 M K e R 01

TREINAEHEREE —F—IF R F—/F
T oA =+ B 2 B ORGC AR

2019 2018
—F AR A
Debtors’ turnover days (Note) JE AR L AR I (A ) 88 85

Note:

Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning
and ending balance of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) for the periods divided by revenue during the years
multiplied by 365 days.

The debtors’ turnover days remained steady for the Year as
compared to that of 2018.

RE WS R R R A L B ) A A 2 52 o IR AU T B B Wi
SRS R (FUER R IRBEAMT ) 2 7 B BBR LA R 2 7 2T
T LI36S H FHE -

AR BE 2 RENSOR T MR B — AR A

o

flr X
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Creditors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s creditors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

o LI B o3 B

W ARk B ik i MR 9

TREIIALEIRES —F— JLF R T\ 4F
T oA = BRI 2 BT AR KGR

2019 2018
- S| R SN S
Creditors’ turnover days (Note) AT B Sk RC BRI (M At ) 75 63

Note:

Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The creditors’ turnover days for the Year increased as compared
to that of 2018. This was mainly because longer credit period was
granted by the main suppliers due to better negotiation power of
the Group.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB1,698.4 million (31 December
2018: RMB1,845.7 million), among which approximately
RMB878.3 million were at fixed interest rates.

Further details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance
sheet date, including the maturity profile, are set out in note 22 in
notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2019, the banking facilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB7,690.4 million (31 December
2018: RMB6,151.8 million), of which approximately RMB2,599.1
million were utilised (31 December 2018: RMB2,472.9 million).

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties of the
Group.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayment. During the Year, our Group’s
capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB560.5 million
(2018: RMB345.5 million). The significant capital expenditures
during the Year were mainly for the acquisition of equipment and
lease prepayment for our production plants.

W KRR BT 90 JR 1 2 2 5 HE Ao 50 T
S8 46 2 HT R DA ) 2 6 A R T R 365
H it

JRAAEE > EAT IR R RC IR W — % — A4 BTt o
Wb T 3 B R A R RE D 3R > A A T
A TR Z Re AR o

Bk & i &

Mo FE—-NE+ A=+ 0 AREHZEXK
R4 By N R #1,698,400,0000C (% — )\ 4
+ A =+—H: AR%1,845,700,0007C) » H
# N R 878,300,000 0 #% & 5 I R 51 & -

HRAEENGE A EREMGEZE—LFE
(B4 3] HME 0 ) 7 A 4F 3 5 B B 5 Rk 2% B
Z W 5E22 -

BRAT £ B S i AR

HoE-NET A= H o AREE AT
5 B30 1% 49 B N R 7,690,400,00078 ( & — /A
- H=+—H: AR%6,151,800,00000) > H
WA N R #52,599,100,0000C ( —F — \4E+ A
=+—H: AR %2,472,900,00070) E 8 A

fr 0 SRAT 5 B EE L A A T 2 A AR

A PR 32

A PR Sy R M R W2 i B e M TR
G o AARAFJE > AR SR B 2 EA B SR A AR
560,500,0007C ( % — /U4 = A R #345,500,000
TC) o AAFJEZ RBEA B S L2 A E
TEE I 2 e B T AR AL 4
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Capital structure

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 418,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue. No shares of the Company has
been issued or repurchased during the Year.

Treasury Policies

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in both short term and long term.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in US dollars and HK dollars. Furthermore, certain
trade receivables, trade payables, bank balances and bank loans
are denominated in US dollars and HK dollars, therefore exposing
the Group to the currency risk of US dollars and HK dollars.
During the Year, the Group has entered into a cross-currency
interest rate swap contract to hedge against the interest rate risk
and foreign currency risk in respect of a short-term loan in US
dollars.

Cash Flow Highlights

The following table sets out our Group’s cash flow highlights
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018:

A S 1

R F—RNE+_A=+—0 > AAAC &
418,000,000/8% 4 1% i {H0.01 4 JC 2 % 48 % o A A%
AR ME RS AT B H] WA H 2 B o

JiiE 5 BUSR

A SR ) 2 O Ry ) B R ) e oK S
BE BT - LU OR A 700 B M 2 1 KR <
A R IR L 00 ) Rl < AL R T FL

ALEEE TAF R 2 H B 5 LL 50 Bl JeRHE < It
CORNEED 5 ?BZEJWELI&P«E,TA 22 5y e AT Bk ~ 4R AT
& Bk D SRAT LK LA SR T Rt JT Rt R T 4 A
%@E%%E&%*‘”ﬁ%‘ﬂ&a RAAE N > A £
P Ll 36 e A ] 55 T e R A R g R A
Ja\ B T S8 58 R R R R G A

Bl & i B 2

TRBIIAEFP R E T U R F— )\
T oA HIEFEZH &R R

2019 2018
ZEF 0 A 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fix AR ¥ET T
Net cash generated from S B T A5 Bl R
operating activities 953,574 1,253,984
Interest received SRS 42,734 7,813
Payment for purchase of property, ) 2 R BB 2 AR
plant and equipment (560,535) (345,308)
Interest paid AT FLE (161,264) (163,605)
Net decrease in bank borrowings SRAT A B A 1 F AR (146,619) (636,972)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ELAT AN W RE 4 R 2 B S
of the Company (73,465) (70,483)
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We generally finance our operations through internally generated
cash flows, bank borrowings and our cash and cash equivalents.
Our Directors believe that on a long-term basis, our liquidity will
be funded from operations and, if necessary, additional equity
financing or bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB528.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB448.8 million),
among which 2.4% was held in US dollars, 3.2% was held in HK
dollars and the remaining balance was held in RMB.

Property Development

“Xingfa Plaza” (BL¥¥ K &) , a property project wholly-owned
by the Group, is located at the northern side of Jihua Road and
western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The land use rights of the
property were granted for a term of 40 years expiring on 19 May
2050 for commercial service, office, culture and entertainment
uses. The property comprises a parcel of land with a site area
of approximately 16,961.36 sq.m. and a gross floor area of
approximately 123,527.29 sq.m..

During the Year, 72 units of “Xingfa Plaza” (¥ %% K i) had been
sold and delivered. The revenue recognized from such sale for
the Year amounted to approximately RMB81.6 million (2018:
RMB301.2 million), with gross profit margin at 53.3% (2018:
40.2%).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2019, our Group employed a total of
approximately 7,650 full time employees in the PRC and
Hong Kong which included management staff, technicians,
salespersons and workers. In 2019, our Group’s total expenses on
the remuneration of employees were approximately RMB837.6
million, represented approximately 7.4% of the revenue of our
Group. Our Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
regularly every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme
(according to the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees), housing fund,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance (according to the PRC rules and regulations for PRC
employees), discretionary bonuses and employee share options
are also awarded to employees according to the assessment
of individual performance. In-house and external training
programmes are provided as and when required.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Libin, aged 48, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) since 8
September 2011. Mr. Liu Libin obtained a Degree
of Executive Master of Business Administration
from South China University of Technology and
has held various senior positions in financial,
marketing and governmental fields. Mr. Liu Libin
had been the vice section chief (F|%{=) of finance
division of Department of Foreign Trade and

Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province,
ﬁ finance manager and deputy general manager of
Sinomart Development Co. Limited ( £% & [ f%
AR 7)), director and general manager of the
finance department of Goldsland Holdings Company
Limited ( B # A MR/ 7)) , deputy chairman of
Guangdong Advertisement Co., Ltd. (& # & & &
APR/AT]) and chairman of Guangdong Guangxin
PACO Technology Co., Ltd. (& 3 & #7411 w5 Bl 4%
AWRATE]) , a subsidiary of Guangdong Guangxin
Holdings Group Ltd. (& 5 # B 7 44 I 42 B fR
A H]) (“Guangxin Holdings™). Mr. Liu Libin is the
chairman of the board of directors of Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd. (& 5 Bl #8454
FR A 7)) (“Guangdong Xingfa”, together with its
subsidiaries as “Guangdong Xingfa Group”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and an
executive director of Foshan Xingfa Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Real Estate”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Liao Yuqing (“Mr. Liao”), aged 51, is an
executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Company. He is in charge of the sales and
marketing activities of the Group and is responsible
for the planning, development, implementation and
evaluation of the marketing strategies of the Group.
Mr. Liao joined the Group in January 1993. Prior to
that, Mr. Liao was in the military between 1986 to
1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of
China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao
ﬁ is the director of Guangdong Xingfa and executive

director of Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd.. Mr.
Liao is the son-in-law of Mr. Luo Su, the Honourable

Adviser of the Group.
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Ms. Zhang Li (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 40, has been
appointed as an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company since 10 May 2018.
Ms. Zhang is also a director of Guangdong Xingfa.
Ms. Zhang has extensive business management
experience, before joining the Group, she has worked
in various departments of the group companies of
Guangxin Holdings since July 2001. She worked at
the finance department of Guangdong Dong Fang
Import and Export Corp.* (FEHR & R i H O A
7)) as an accountant from July 2001 to December
2003 and was then promoted to be the deputy
manager from January 2004 to December 2004. She
then joined the clearings department of Guangxin
Holdings as the deputy head from January 2005 to
December 2006 and was promoted to be the head of
the clearings department from January 2007 to April
2013. Ms. Zhang worked for the capital management
department of Guangxin Holdings as an assistant
to the head from May 2013 to June 2014 and as the
deputy head of the capital management department
from June 2014 to April 2018. She has also been a
director of Guangxin Shipbuilding & Heavy Industry
Co., Ltd.* (i & T A R 7)) since
September 2014. Ms. Zhang was accredited as a
senior accountant in the PRC in April 2011. Ms.
Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Central University of Finance and Economics
in the PRC in 2001 and a master’s degree in
accounting from Sun Yat-Sen University in the PRC
in 2009.

Mr. Law Yung Koon (“Mr. Law”), aged 62, has
been appointed as an executive Director since 28
April 2009. He is responsible for the sales and
marketing of our products in overseas market. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general
manager of Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles Company
Limited, which was the sole distributor of the Group
in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the suppliers of
aluminium ingots.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Wang Zhihua (“Mr. Wang”), aged 49, is an
executive Director. Prior to joining the Group in
January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang worked
at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou
Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from the
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics in
1992. Mr. Wang was certified as a securities agent
for the period from September 2001 to September
2004 by the Securities Association of China. Mr.
Wang is also an executive director of Xingfa
Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd..

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, (“Mr. Luo”), aged 48, has
been appointed as an executive Director since 16
April 2018. Mr. Luo has approximately 27 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He worked
in (i) Shunde City Accounting Firm from July
1993 to March 1996; (ii) Guangdong Dezheng
Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from
April 1996 to December 2001; (iii) Guangdong
Gongcheng Accounting Firm from January 2002
to December 2007. He then worked in Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as
a certified public accountant from January 2008 to
April 2016. In addition, Mr. Luo was the independent
non-executive director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd.
(7)1 RE R B 3 A BR 2> 71) (stock code: 600681),
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr.
Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Guangdong University of Business Studies
in the PRC in June 1993 and is a non-practising
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Luo is an executive director of
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (' [ ¥ ¥
A B FE A BR A F]) (stock code: 2128) (“China
Lesso”), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies in China

Lesso and its subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”).
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zuo Manlun (“Mr. Zuo”), aged 47, has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since 16
April 2018. Mr. Zuo has approximately 20 years of
experience in the industry of plastic pipe. Mr. Zuo
has extensive business management experience. He
is the chief executive officer of China Lesso Group
and was appointed as an executive director of China
Lesso in February 2010. He is also a director/general
manager/supervisor of various companies in China
Lesso Group. Mr. Zuo’s expertise was recognised
by several awards including “Outstanding Worker of
the Plastic Industry in the PRC” accredited by China
Plastics Processing Industry Association in 2009
and “Senior Plastic Product Engineer (Technical
Entrepreneur)” accredited by Guangdong Human

Resources and Social Security Department in 2019.

Ms. Xie Jingyun (“Ms. Xie”), aged 39, has been
appointed as a non-executive Director since 6
December 2018. Ms. Xie is experienced in strategic
investment and capital operation and is currently the
head of the capital operation department of Guangxin
Holdings. Ms. Xie first joined the Guangxin
Holdings group in 2003. She became the deputy
department head of the investment development
department of Guangxin Holdings in 2008 and
was subsequently promoted as the department
head. She then joined the capital operation
department of Guangxin Holdings as an assistant
to department head in 2015 and was promoted as
the deputy department head and department head
in 2016 and 2018 respectively. Ms. Xie obtained a
bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in
2003. Ms. Xie is also a director of (i) Guangdong
Advertising Group Co., Limited* (& 3 # & 15 4
BBy A R/ ) , a company established in the
PRC whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002400); and (ii) Guangdong
Shengyi Technology Co., Ltd.* (i % 4 5 Bl
B HRAF), a company established in the
PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600183).

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo (“Mr. Chen”), aged 55, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 29 February 2008. He obtained the lawyer
qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong
Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. Mr.
Chen has been a practicing lawyer in the PRC since
1993 and has been a partner of (i) Goldsun Law
Firm ([ {5 B & 3 B2 85 1) from 1998 to 2011;
and (ii) Guangdong King & Land Law Firm (i 5
FIE /AT H B FT) from 2011 to March 2019. Mr.
Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the Department
of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989
and obtained — R A& A% (Third Grade Lawyer)
from the Department of Personnel of Guangdong
Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated from the
Political Education Department of South China
Normal University (% 5 i #i KX £) in 1986. He
has been granted the (f ffi f& 5 7% F5 ¥ i 7
G F5 ) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities
Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and
China Securities Regulatory Commission in 1996,
the Al 7 2 4 B B 45 4 36 7 M 00 8 15 T 65
G W) (Certificate of Engaging in Delimitation
of Property Rights of Collective Science and
Technology Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of
Justice, the Ministry of Science and Technology of
the PRC and the State-owned Asset supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council
in 1998, and the {7772 &l M 37 # & K55l 4% 2%
#) (Certificate of Completion of Training on
Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission and the
School of Management of Fudan University jointly
in 2001. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong Lianyue Law

Firm (& 5080 Bl 3555 BT ) in April 2019.

ByEPTES

BB ek (TBEe2]) > 558 it
CERENF A A IHERTS
AN EVBS ERATH S - — LT
RN H HES R R B Al Ik E A
AR EmER -t
— UL = AL L R B B A - R
MG LN FEE -F——FEHR
5 W A FR Bl BB T A BN 5 B (i)
TR TR JUES A BE
FOB R E &% A o B
LN JUES AR A RS
AR AR AR R — JULILAE A
15 A N E = SR R S A - BR
SE AT — LN S AR S 2 A 2 T
fREBHIAHAE & i — UL HE
ME R R Ko B s A R
B O A GRS R
EHEHEE) R — UL
TR ~ o [ R 9l S R I3 e
B G RS B e (i
R TR s R 2k
BEFEKEZ) >R BT —F
EhEESFEEERZ G LR
BRI B AR (i
FIM oL FH AR o B
A T F— JUAE T A A e
9 Fi < 5 i



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)

Mr. Junius K. Y. Ho (“Mr. Ho”), aged 57,
was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 29 February 2008. He is a Senior
Partner of Messrs. K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors &
Notaries where he is the head of the Litigation and
Commercial Department. He is also the Principal
Representative of the Guangzhou Office. Having
studied at Anglia Ruskin University in the United
Kingdom (formerly known as Chelmer Institute of
Higher Education), Mr. Ho obtained his Bachelor of
Laws Degree in 1984. He then joined the University
of Hong Kong for the Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws. Mr. Ho was further awarded with the honorary
degree of Doctor of Laws by China University of
Political Science and Law in 2019.

Mr. Ho was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1988. He was subsequently admitted in Singapore,
England and Wales in 1995 and 1997 respectively.
In 2003, he was appointed as a China-Appointed
Attesting Officer.

Mr. Ho has over 30 years of legal experience. Being
the Past President (2011-2012) and the Council
Member (1995-2017) of The Law Society of Hong
Kong, he is committed in serving the community and
contributing to the economic co-operation between
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Apart from serving
the legal profession, he also serves on various
government and public boards as follows:

1. Justice of the Peace of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region
(2016-present);

2. New Territories Justice of the Peace of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(2016-present);

3. Member of Legislative Council of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (2016-
2020);

Annual Report 2019 F %R

Directors and Senior Management

HELAFRHAEMAR

il B A (TMRA]L) > 575
HoEENFEH T IILHER
1L B A TS FE AT R - B J
fal B A AR AR = A A >
CASEEE S R RN L
o TR AR o A D B A I B
BT A B (TR B = S5 2
Wt ) £ 5 1% 5 ] Jg A it — JL/\ PO 4R
PAS R LB o 2 B A GE

AR B T E
o (0] s — A o B
BRI L 4% B B o

] 55 A W — LA\ AE BUAS 7 T L
SERRRTEAS > HAAR NI —JULE
A Ke— UL B AR BUS Bk > ek
T T M R A o A R
o WERTEPREELAHAN-

ol 5 75 B A A@304F 2 i LA &
oA EFEBEEIEG ZAMEE R
(ZF R % 4F) L
F (A FEEF—LF) >
b B T A R 5 A [ B AR A A 7 B
A LS B2 A o BRAE B S Ho A By ik
HREES > e TR BE T A2 2
THEURT B~ SEi8 P 2 AR

1. A U R A AT I K A
(ZFE-REES)

2. T s A A B AT
T (CFE—REES)

3. s 45 B AT B ST % &
B(CF—AFE F &
)

29



30

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% i 2 &= i AR A
Annual Report 2019 F#f

Directors and Senior Management

ERLAEHABEHEAR

10.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Elected Member of Lok Tsui District of Tuen Mun District
Council (2016-2019);

Founder of International Probono Legal Services
Association Limited (1988-present);

Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong
Kong (2015-present);

Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene
Articles Tribunal (2013-present);

Ex-officio Executive Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk
(2016-present);

Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group
(2013-present);

Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Village
(2011-present);

Director and Chairman of Yan Oi Tong (1993-1997) and
Advisory Board Member of Yan Oi Tong (1997-present);

Founder of Butterflyers Association Limited (a charitable

organization) (2010-present);

Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011-2019);

Arbitrator of Zhengzhou Arbitration Commission (2009-
2018);

Arbitrator of South China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration) (2012-present);

Special Adviser of “One Belt One Road” Legal Services
Research Centre of the Guangdong Lawyers Association
(2017-present); and

Part-time Tutor of Master of Public Administration, China

University of Labor Relations (2018-present).
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17.
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Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy (“Mr. Lam”), aged
55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 29 February 2008. He is an associate
member of various professional organisations,
namely The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He obtained his master’s degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 30 years
of experience in the accounting, banking and finance
sectors and currently is the managing consultant of
Lontreprise Consulting Limited. Mr. Lam was also
the president of Dragon Junior Chamber, a local
chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber International
Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International
Hong Kong in 2005. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of each of Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited (stock code: 1008),
Synertone Communication Corporation (stock code:
1613) and Weiye Holdings Limited (stock code:
1570), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Liang Shibin (“Mr. Liang”), aged 80, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 14 December 2013. He completed the programme
of Nonferrous Metal and Heat Treatment in the
Department of Special Metallurgy from g %6
ELBE (unofficial English translation being Central
South Institute of Mining and Metallurgy) (now
known as " F§ K%Z (Central South University)).
From 1965 to 1982, Mr. Liang had worked in the
special workshop of HALHE A 4l TR (unofficial
English translation being Northeast Light Alloy
Processing Factory) first as technician and later as
engineer and specialized in atomic reactor technical
matters. From 1982 to 1992, Mr. Liang had worked
in B A A M4 TR (unofficial English
translation being Guangdong Nonferrous Metal
Processing Factory) first as workshop manager, and
later as deputy factory general manager and then
factory general manager. From 1988 to 1992, he
also served as the president of & # & & 7 ¥/ 1)
€ (unofficial English translation being Guangdong
Aluminium Profile Association). From 1992 to
2003, he first served as the general manager of A
I % B $n 3£ /A ] (unofficial English translation
being Hangzhou Hongchang Aluminium Company)
and later as the deputy general manager and chief
engineer of {4 2N Al (unofficial English
translation being Ningbo Aluminium Company).
From 2003 to 2011, he served as a senior consultant
of 1 i & % %% 53 3£ B A F[RA 7 (Fujian Minfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd.) (a company listed on Small
and Medium-sized Enterprise Board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange with stock code: 002578). From
2008 to 2013, Mr. Liang was an independent director
of & & &[4 #5815 E W A R A A (Fujian Minfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd.).
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Mr. Lin Yan (“Mr. Lin”), aged 51, is the deputy general manager
of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Lin is responsible for the sales
operation of the Group. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium, Mr.
Lin worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals &
Minerals Import & Export Group Corporation ( & # & 1L 4 i
FEEHEH O/ H) , with more than 20 years of experience in
international trade. He was awarded a certificate of Economist by
Ministry of Human Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from Jinan University, the Degree
of Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) at South
China University of Technology.

Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 51, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group and is responsible for production
management of the Group. Mr. Liu Yuntang joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining
the Group in October 1993, Mr. Liu Yuntang worked at Nanhai
Guangdong Cable Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu
Yuntang was granted a bachelor’s degree in engineering by the
Guangdong Mechanics Institute in 1991. He was certified as
assistant engineer in 1993 by the Nanhai City Science Technology
Committee and certified as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City
Human Resources Bureau. He was awarded as senior engineer by
Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security Department
on 4 May 2015, and was granted a senior Executive Master in
Business Administration Degree by Sun Yat-sen University on 29
December 2015.
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Mr. Chen Wensi (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Chen is responsible
for the technology research and development, quality control
and safety in environmental protection of the Group. Mr. Chen
joined Guangdong Xingfa Aluminum Profiles Factory in 1997.
Prior to joining the Group in January 1997, Mr. Chen worked for
Guangdong Chang’e Thermal Insulation Container Factory (&
BRI i PR 28 WG ) from 1995 to 1996. Mr. Chen graduated
from Guangzhou Zhongkai Institute of Agricultural Technology
(B b5 2 £ T ER ) in 1995, He was qualified as a senior
engineer in mechanical engineering in 2018. He is also a member
of the Measurement Technology Committee of China Non-
ferrous Metals Industry Association and an expert of the Expert
Committee of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing Industry
Association. Mr. Chen has participated in the development,
management and standardization of scientific research projects
from various national, provincial, municipal and district
governments. He has won 5 excellence awards in patents in China,
3 first prizes of the excellence awards in technical standards
by the National Non-ferrous Metals Standardization Technical
Committee, and 2 progress awards in science and technology by
Guangdong Province.

Mr. Guan Dubiao (“Mr. Guan”), aged 49, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Guan, senior CPA
is currently the council member of Foshan City CPA Institute
and Foshan City Association of Chief Financial Officers. His
education background is undergraduate, studying business
management (accounting) and economic management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career
in the business department of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic
Development Company. Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as
different important financial positions, such as chief accountant,
chief of finance, etc., within several group companies of Foshan
Nanzhuang Economic Development Company. Mr. Guan joined
the Group in 1999 as deputy head of finance department and
chief accountant and subsequently promoted as head of finance
department. He was further promoted as deputy general manager
of Guangdong Xingfa Group since September 2011.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Tik (“Ms. Wong”), aged 48, is the company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Wong is a certified public accountant and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in the field
of accounting and has worked in a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong. Ms. Wong obtained the Honours Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan College in 1995. Ms.
Wong joined our Group on 29 March 2018.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 3(a) in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 175
of the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO.28 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HKDO.20).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) to be held on
Thursday, 28 May 2020, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 25 May 2020 to Thursday, 28 May
2020 (both days inclusive). During such period, no transfer of
the shares in the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the attendance in the Annual General Meeting, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 May 2020.
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For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 10 June 2020 to Friday, 12 June 2020 (both
days inclusive). During such period, no transfer of the shares
in the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for the
final dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 9 June 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out on page 340.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings as at the balance
sheet date are set out in note 22 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 11 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 27 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made donation of RMB380,000 (2018: RMB590,000)
for charitable or any other purposes during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the

Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) on 29 December 2017. The Share
Option Scheme became effective for 10 years commencing from 5
January 2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity in

which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include
directors and employees of the Group or any Invested Entity;
any suppliers, customers, advisers or consultants of the Group or
any Invested Entity; any persons or entities that provide research
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; any holders of securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; any adviser (professional
or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and any other groups or classes of participants whom the Board

considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised
as follows:

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 41,800,000 shares, being 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 29
December 2017. As at the date of this report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
is 37,620,000 shares, which represents 9% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of Group to
each eligible participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

shares of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more
board lots of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of
the Company.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Company has granted 4,180,000 share options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme on 15 October 2018. The closing price of
the shares of the Company immediately before the date of grant of
share options was HK$5.39.
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Details of the outstanding share options and the movements of A #ZE X —JLE+ = H =+— H IL4FE B M ARAT
the share options during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as  fiff (1% i % 18 I B I A S8 B w1 A s
follows:

Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
as at Exercised Cancelled expired as at
1 January during during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant 2019 the Year the Year the Year 2019
#
# “E A
“E A AR +=A
—H—H ARAEJE AR JE g/ =+—H
&R N =0 i AR AT [SYegid B3 JiE i i AR AT
Directors
Y
LIU Libin 15.10.2018 229,000 - - - 229,000
BT 3k
WANG Zhihua 15.10.2018 192,000 - - - 192,000
i
ZHANG Li 15.10.2018 192,000 - - - 192,000
5]
Sub-total 613,000 - - - 613,000
¥y
Employees of the Group 15.10.2018 3,567,000 - - - 3,567,000
A% g B
Total 4,180,000 4,180,000
At

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under 4 I 5 RE 7 A 4F B © AR IR B IR 51 B2 1~ A7
the Share Option Scheme during the Year. i~ SR B B AL -

Note: Kt it -

In relation of each grantee of the share options granted on 15 October R = N A T H B RE Y &R BT

2018, 1,393,334 share options will vest on 15 October 2020, 1,393,333 & » 1,393,33403 W e M A —F — L4+ H 1+ 1 H &

options will vest on 15 October 2021 and 1,393,333 options will vest on  J& ~ 1,393,333 W HE I A 2 ——4F+ A T H #)§

15 October 2022 and the share options vested are then exercisable on or  }¢1,393 333{ MEREMEAS Y —F — 4+ A + 1 H i &

before 14 October 2023. The exercise price per share is HK$5.46. T T B T ) S AR e R AT A R T AR A I H R
ZHIAT A o 5 I MR 03 14 47 46 2 5. 463 0T -

Further details of the options granted under the Share Option  MEEAERTHIIE T #2 H BE I HE 2 o — 25 581 HUR 45
Scheme are set out in note 25 in notes to the consolidated & WA M st 2 Bt 5125 -
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB618,633,000 (2018:
RMB604,722,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 30 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 19.9% (2018:18.8%) of the
Group’s revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted for
5.6% (2018: 7.1%) of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 75.7% (2018: 74.4%)
of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 32.8% (2018: 40.2%)

of the Group’s total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five

largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2019.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance indicators
and performance and indication of future development of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 can be found in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions

form part of this report of the Directors.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The
effects of such risks may vary over time. The following sets forth
material risks classified by the Group and the relevant alleviating

measures for each material risk for the management of such risks.
Business risks

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from
customers in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse
change in the political, economic, legal or social conditions in
the PRC and the Group is unable to divert sales to other markets
outside of the PRC, the turnover, profitability and prospects may
be adversely affected.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will put efforts to expand
overseas market and increase the proportion of overseas sales.
During the Year, we have export sales to Australia and Vietnam.
The Group will also continue to review competitive edges of the
Group in the industry and market trend.

Secondly, the Group’s production activities of aluminium profiles
rely on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply of
aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with
any of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility
in purchasing aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various

times.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct
investigation and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure
stable supply source of raw materials.
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Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period
by the Group will increase the Group’s exposure to financial risks
and have an impact on financial performance and operating cash
flows of the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivables due from major customers on a regular basis and
control over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage
and maintain strict control internally and put additional efforts to
collect trade receivables overdue.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

1. Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success.
The Group is committed to providing our employees with
a safe, pleasant and healthy working environment. The
Group rewards and recognises employees by competitive
remuneration package and implements a key performance
index scheme with appropriate incentives, and promote
career development and progression by providing

opportunities for career advancement to employees.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible
for determining its training needs for employees in its
department and any suggested applicable training courses
either arranged internally or by external service providers
shall be submitted to the senior management of the
Group for approval. Knowledge, skills and capacities of
employees are vital to continuous business growth and
success of the Group. The Group strives to ensure that
all employees can fulfill the relevant job requirements
in terms of education, training, technical and work

experience.
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2. Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a
number of our suppliers and take great care to ensure
that they share our commitment to quality and ethics.
We carefully select our suppliers and require them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track
record, experience, financial strength, reputation, ability
to produce high-quality products and quality control
effectiveness.

3. Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We
require our distributors and customers to comply with
the relevant laws and regulations and our sales and
marketing policies, including but not limited to selling
price, promotional activities and usage of our ERP system.
We also monitor the financial condition and repayment
history of our distributors and customers, and their sales

performance.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection and taking into
account of the national green manufacturing development plan and
guided by enterprise strategy, the Group formulated the Xingfa
Aluminium Protection System. The primary mission for the
Group’s environmental production policy is to govern production
emissions by relying on technology, comprehensive utilisation
of production waste residue, reduce environmental pollution and
develop clean production.

The Group has been in compliance with the relevant

environmental laws and regulations in both PRC and Hong Kong.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a
whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company. During the course of the business operations, the Group
shall comply with different laws and regulations, including i) laws
regarding employee recruitment and benefits, such as the “Labor
Law of the PRC”, the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC”, and the
“Rulings of Implementing the Labor Contract Law of the PRC”;
and ii) the PRC national and local laws and regulations with
respect of environmental protection, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC. For the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group was in strict compliance with these said laws and

regulations.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at

date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin
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In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
each of Ms. ZHANG Li, Mr. LUO Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun and
Mr. CHEN Mo will retire from the office of Director by rotation
and each of them, being eligible, will offer himself/herself for
re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 24 to 34 of the annual report.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 31 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in paragraph headed “Connected transactions” in
this report, (i) there is no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director is
or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly; (ii)
no other contract of significance was entered into by, and/or
subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year;
and (iii) no other contract of significance in relation to provision
of services to the company or any of its subsidiaries by the

controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (“Model Code™), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long position WAE
Ordinary Underlying Percentage of
shares of the shares of the interest in the
Name of directors Capacity Company Company Total Company
A2 A2 A 2 ]
wHHELA 5y & i ik HH BRI 1y sk REAR A 47 L
LIAO Yuqing Founder of a 48,200,100 - 48,200,100 11.53%
BB discretionary trust
who can influence
how the trustee
exercises his
discretion
AR FERI LA
Al 5 B2 FE NAT R
H i #E 2 X
LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,050,000 - 19,050,000 4.56%
) o A A
Interest of spouse 1,719,000 - 1,719,000 0.41%
i 8 1R 4
LIU Libin Beneficial owner — 229,000 229,000 0.05%
iy Ha A A
ZHANG Li Beneficial owner - 192,000 192,000 0.05%
RA HamEAa A
WANG Zhihua Beneficial owner - 192,000 192,000 0.05%

FHE

TR A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Other than the share options granted under the share option
scheme disclosed in note 25 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2019
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company,or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Director to acquire such

rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any
business apart from the Company’s business, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Company’s business for the year ended 31 December 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED
TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS
PURSUANT TO PART XV OF THE SFO

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons, other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company, had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position

WA

Total number
of ordinary shares

Percentage
of interest in

Name of entities Capacity of the Company the Company
Anvwlz A2
TR % W 3 e AR R 25 43 b
Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 132,382,000 31.67%
B E R EA R A il f A
Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd* Interest of controlled 132,382,000 31.67%
corporation
JBE SR B 2 P 2 AT R ) P i T i
State-owned Assets Supervision and Interest of controlled 132,382,000 31.67%
Administration Commission of The People’s corporation
Government of Guangdong Province*
EREANRBNRAEEEREREZAE ZHEHEEER
Lesso Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 109,842,900 26.28%
S8 1o 4 T 2 BT PR ) il f A
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%
corporation
I M 20 4 I 2 A PR A ) 2P
New Fortune Star Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%

New Fortune Star Limited

corporation

3R i B R i
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Total number
of ordinary shares

b Nk

Percentage
of interest in

Name of entities Capacity of the Company the Company
AnrwlZ i A% 2 )
HAHE 50 5 3 i A B Rt E Ik
Xi Xi Development Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%
corporation
PR A RA T PR R R £
UBS Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited Interest of controlled 109,842,900 26.28%
corporation
UBS Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited Z PR IR A
WONG Luen Hei Founder of a discretionary
trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises
his discretion
I SHEE AN AT 109,842,900 26.28%
AT
Y
Sure Keen Limited Beneficial owner 48,200,100 11.53%
A FR 2 ] 6% 2PN
Glorious Joy Limited Interest of controlled 48,200,100 11.53%
corporation
Glorious Joy Limited VR R ERE £
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee 48,200,100 11.53%
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. ZiEA

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’

interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31

December 2019, no other person had interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were

required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A.

The following entities are connected parties of the A.
Company and had connected transactions and/or

continuing connected transactions with the Group during

the year ended 31 December 2019:

Name of the entity
oy -EAy

I3 3252 B

PATF BB A AN Rl 2 BN R R
ZENFEFT A= BIR RN A
SR BIEAT B S 5 B/ SRR I 2 5

Connection with the Company

SLA v W) Z B AR

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall,
Door & Window Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”)

A TR BB 3% o Y A R A
(MBLEERENE |)

Jin Wo International Leasing Limited
(“KW Leasing”)

& TR I il P A PR
([ZRMEME])

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(“China Lesso”)

o 8] Mt 9 A 4% AR
([ g2 1)

VLV A S B R R AR
] (in English for identification
only, Jiangxi Province Jingxing
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. “Jiangxi Jingxing”)
TLVE A 5 B R R A R F
([VLPE 58 )

JE M 57 B SRR B IR A F (in
English for identification only,
Guangzhou Jingxing Construction
Technology Company Limited
“Guangzhou Jingxing”)

J I S B SRR B R
(T B 5 L))

Owned as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director, and as
to 46% by Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group and the
father-in-law of Mr. LIAO Yuqing.

H AT 2 5 B B O A MR 21 90 i % A B T G R B S B B e
119 25 AQ 5 R S0 1 R T 460 HE AR -

An associate of Guangdong Province Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.,
a controlling shareholder of the Company indirectly holding, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited,
approximately 31.67% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date
of this report.

JB S R A PR A A PR ) 2 T A N D Sl A A AR i O A
2 PR R 2 ) A O SR B SE A RS R R R R A AR A F OB AT R A
31.67% 2 A1 Rl HE JBEIBER -

A substantial shareholder of the Company, holding, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, approximately 26.28% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.

AN ) B RO A A I N R AR B AN E B
1T 2 %1 26.28% ©

Owned as to 80% by the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
and has become a connected subsidiary of the Company since 9 July
2019, the date on which Guangzhou Jingxing (as defined below) has
become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso.

P A 2% R A2 ot A I IR 8 Wl B A 80 %4 - M —E —LEEE AL
HOCHE M S5 B (G 38 5F 30) R K2 b B 28 2 JF 2 A 2 I
i 2 R ) B AR A ) 2 T TR R Ja 2 D o

A 20% shareholder of Jiangxi Jingxing and has become a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of China Lesso since 9 July 2019.

VLV 55 B 2 2090 5 IR Je B — % — JUAE-B H JU H RS v B g 28 2 9F
EEHA Z WM& AT -
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the following
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and are subject to the
reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
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225y > W R ST R ~ M 4F B B S
ST AL HERR SE

shareholders’ approval requirements.

1. The following is a brief description of the 1. PLUF 23 R SR A8 5y 2 A

continuing connected transactions:

Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong
Xingtfa to Xingfa Curtain Wall
Ji R B % i L % S S ) T

Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into
a new master supply agreement dated 22 September 2017
in relation to the supply of aluminium profiles to Xingfa
Curtain Wall by Guangdong Xingfa, for a term from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The construction
materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall were further
processed into window and curtain wall and sold to its
customers.

JAE B B % B LR R T L — i I A —F — LA
T TR R T T > A A A B el B R B ) S %
o LA AL > BRI PR A —F — /4 — A — A=
CERCFET A = Bk o BRI A Z d
BN T P 7 B R AR e S

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Guangdong Xingfa
sold construction materials to Xingfa Curtain Wall for
approximately RMB127.1 million.
WEZEF-NFET A=t HIRFRE BORESEHE
T BB 2 A A0 N RF127,100,0007C

2. Set out below is the annual cap for the year ended 2. N SCHER S b ST R A B 3T G
31 December 2019 of the continuing connected BE-E-NFTHA=Z1T—HI

transaction set out above:

FEZFEEER:

For the year ended

31 December 2019
BE FJLE
+oA=Z+—HILEE

Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain Wall RMB250,000,000

Joi RS 5 1) B % S R A U A

A B #250,000,0007C
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3. Internal control procedures

The Group has complied with the following internal

control measures to monitor the pricing and

terms of the transactions in relation to the sale of

aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa

Curtain Wall and ensure that the prices and terms

offered by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain

Wall will be no less favourable than prices and

terms offered to independent customers and that the

annual cap is not exceeded:

(a)

(b)

(d)

monitoring the prevailing price of
aluminium as quoted on the Shanghai
Nonferrous Metals Price Index and the
prevailing spot prices of aluminium as
quoted on London Metal Exchange Limited
on a daily basis;

comparing the price and terms of the supply
to Xingfa Curtain Wall with the prices and
terms of aluminium profiles supplied by the
Group in China as agreed with independent

customers on a regular basis;

adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the price and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles
offered by the Group to Xingfa Curtain
Wall to ensure that they shall be no less
favourable than those offered by the Group
to independent customers; and

periodic financial report which contains
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under the
master supply agreement was submitted to
the Board.
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Views of the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and considered the information
referred to in section “3. Internal control
procedures” above, and confirmed that the

transactions have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company also confirmed that it has followed
the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the transactions

during the Year.
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its letter to the Board containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as set out in this
section “B” above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which stated that:

(a) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the

Group;

(c) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such

transactions;
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(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of
the continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the

Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the following
connected transactions were non-exempt connected
transactions and are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements.

1. On 26 June 2018, Jiangxi Jingxing, a limited
liability company established in the PRC and
owned as to 80% by the Group and KW Leasing
entered into a factoring contract (“Factoring
Contract I”), pursuant to which KW Leasing had
agreed to provide factoring services relating to
factoring finance and management of account
receivables to Jiangxi Jingxing for a term of 12
months commencing from 26 June 2018.

Under the Factoring Contract I, Jiangxi Jingxing
applied for the assignment of account receivables
in the sum of RMB32,305,918.54 and requested for
the factoring finance service and in response to the
request, KW Leasing had approved and granted the
provision of factoring finance service in the amount
of RMB29,705,326.69.
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On 31 July 2018, Jiangxi Jingxing and KW Leasing
entered into a factoring contract (“Factoring
Contract II”"), pursuant to which KW Leasing
had agreed to provide factoring services relating
to factoring finance and management of account
receivables to Jiangxi Jingxing for a term of 13

months commencing from 31 July 2018.

Under the Factoring Contract II, Jiangxi Jingxing
applied for the assignment of account receivables
in the sum of RMB72,420,318.74 and requested for
the factoring finance service and in response to the
request, KW Leasing had approved and granted the
provision of factoring finance service in the amount
of RMB42,000,000.
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connected transactions were non-exempt continuing

connected transactions and are subject to the reporting,

Master Supply Agreement A

(i) Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the Master

Supply Agreement A

On 12 July 2019, Guangdong Xingfa and
China Lesso entered into a master supply
agreement (“Master Supply Agreement
A”) pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa
and its subsidiaries (“Guangdong Xingfa
Group”), as suppliers, would supply and
China Lesso and its subsidiaries (“China
Lesso Group”), as purchasers, would
purchase aluminium profiles and/or panels
supplied by Guangdong Xingfa Group
members on an on-going basis for a term
from 9 July 2019 to 31 December 2019
(both dates inclusive).
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Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Master Supply
Agreement A for the Year (commencing
from 9 July 2019) was RMB125 million,
and the actual aggregate amount of sale
transactions was approximately RMB113.6
million for the Year (commencing from 9
July 2019).

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions under the Master Supply
Agreement A and ensure that the prices
and terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa
Group to China Lesso Group were no more
favourable than prices and terms offered to
independent customers and that the annual
cap was not exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing average
price of aluminium ingots as quoted
on Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous
Metals Market on a daily basis;

(b) comparing the prices and terms
of the supply to China Lesso
Group with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles and/or panels
supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers
on a regular basis;

(c) adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the prices and terms of supply
of aluminium profiles offered
by Guangdong Xingfa Group to
China Lesso Group to ensure that
they would be no more favourable
than those offered by the Group to
independent customers; and
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(d) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected
transactions carried out by the Group
including the continuing connected
transactions under the Master Supply
Agreement A was submitted to the
Board.

2. Master Supply Agreement B

()

(i1)

Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the Master
Supply Agreement B

On 12 July 2019, Guagdong Xingfa and
Jiangxi Jingxing entered into a master
supply agreement (“Master Supply
Agreement B”) pursuant to which
Guangdong Xingfa Group members,
as suppliers, would supply and Jiangxi
Jiangxing, as purchaser, would purchase
aluminium profiles supplied by Guangdong
Xingfa Group members on an on-going
basis for a term from 9 July 2019 to 31
December 2019 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Master Supply
Agreement B for the Year (commencing
from 9 July 2019) was RMB72 million,
and the actual aggregate amount of sale
transactions was approximately RMB7.9
million for the Year (commencing from 9
July 2019).
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Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the pricing and terms of the
transactions under the Master Supply
Agreement B and ensure that the prices and
terms offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group
to Jiangxi Jingxing were no more favourable
than prices and terms offered to independent
customers and that the annual cap was not
exceeded:

(a) monitoring the prevailing average
price of aluminium ingots as quoted
on Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous
Metals Market on a daily basis;

(b) comparing the prices and terms of
the supply to Jiangxi Jingxing with
the prices and terms of aluminium
profiles supplied by the Group in
the PRC as agreed with independent

customers on a regular basis;

(c) adhering to the relevant internal
control policy of the Group on
connected transactions in monitoring
the prices and terms of supply
of aluminium profiles offered by
Guangdong Xingfa Group to Jiangxi
Jingxing to ensure that they would
be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent

customers; and

(d) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected
transactions carried out by the Group
including the continuing connected
transactions under the Master Supply
Agreement B was submitted to the
Board.
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3. Licence and Service Agreement

(1) Brief description of the continuing
connected transactions under the Licence
and Service Agreement

On 1 January 2019, Jiangxi Jingxing and
Guangzhou Jingxing entered into a licence
and service agreement (“Licence and
Service Agreement”) pursuant to which
Guangzhou Jingxing agreed to grant to
Jiangxi Jingxing a right to use certain
design patents and utility patents owned
by Guangzhou Jingxing and provide other
related technologies and services.

(ii) Annual Cap

The annual cap in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Licence and Service
Agreement for the Year (commencing from
9 July 2019) was RMB3.5 million, and the
actual aggregate licence and service fee was
approximately RMB3.0 million for the Year
(commencing from 9 July 2019).

(iii)  Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied
with the following internal control measures
to monitor the continuing connected
transactions under the Licence and Service
Agreement were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the Licence and Service
Agreement, on normal commercial terms
and in accordance with the pricing policy of
the Group and that the annual cap was not

exceeded:

(a) instructed its finance department to
supervise the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with
the Company’s internal control
procedures on continuing connected

transactions; and
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(b) instructed its finance department to
follow and collect the data of the
continuing connected transactions to
ensure that the annual cap was not
exceeded.

Views of the independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
carried out pursuant to Master Supply Agreement
A, Master Supply Agreement B and Licence and
Service Agreement, and have considered the
information on internal control procedures referred
to in sections D.1(iii), D.2(iii) and D.3(iii) above,
and confirmed that the transactions have been

entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its letter to the Board containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions as set out in this
section “D” above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which stated that:

(1) nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group, nothing
has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(iii)  nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of
the continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to the attention of the
auditor that causes the auditor to believe the
disclosed continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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The 2020 Master Supply Agreement A, 2020
Master Supply Agreement B and 2020 Licence and
Service Agreement (collectively as the “2020 CCT
Agreements”)

Given that the parties to each of the Master Supply
Agreement A, Master Supply Agreement B and the
Licence and Service Agreement expected that the
continuing connected transactions contemplated
thereunder would continue on an on-going basis, on
30 December 2019:

(i) Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso entered
into a new master supply agreement (“2020
Master Supply Agreement A”) for a term
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both dates inclusive);

(i1) Guangdong Xingfa and Jiangxi Jingxing
entered into a new master supply agreement
(2020 Master Supply Agreement B”) for a
term from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (both dates inclusive); and

(iii)  Jiangxi Jingxing and Guangzhou Jingxing
entered into a new licence and service
agreement (“2020 Licence and Service
Agreement”) for a term from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2020 (both dates

inclusive).

The terms and conditions of each of the 2020
Master Supply Agreement A, 2020 Master Supply
Agreement B and 2020 Licence and Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are
substantially similar to those of the Master Supply
Agreement A, Master Supply Agreement B and
Licence and Service Agreement. Further details of
the 2020 CCT Agreements were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2019.
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E. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements (except the transactions with
Jiangxi Jingxing) fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CONDITIONAL MANDATORY CASH
OFFERS

References are made to (i) the announcement jointly issued
by Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Limited (“Offeror”) and the
Company dated 13 February 2019; and (ii) the composite
offer and response document (“Composite Document”) jointly
despatched by the Offeror and the Company dated 2 April 2019
in relation to the conditional mandatory cash offers (“Offers”);
and (iii) the announcement jointly issued by the Company and
the Offeror dated 23 April 2019. Unless otherwise the context
requires, capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the Composite Document.

On 13 February 2019, Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited, for and on behalf of the Offeror, made the Offers to
acquire all of the Shares (other than those already owned or agreed
to be acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert with
it) and to cancel all the outstanding share options of the Company
in accordance with Rule 26.1 and Rule 13 of the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers of Hong Kong. As set out in the Composite
Document, the share offer price for acquiring each offer share was
HK$5.60 (in cash) and the price for cancelling each share option
was HK$0.14 (in cash).

On 23 April 2019, the Offeror and the Company jointly announced
that the Offers had lapsed and no extension or revision of the
Offers would be made.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as set out in the Company’s
corporate governance report in this annual report, the Company
had complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
for year ended 31 December 2019.

MODEL CODE

The Company adopted a set of code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
for securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently
in force and was in force throughout the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has
brought about additional uncertainties to the Group’s operating
environment and has impacted the Group’s operations and

financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
developments on the Group’s businesses and has put in place
contingency measures. These contingency measures include but
not limited to assessing our suppliers’ readiness, improving our
production process, negotiating with distributors on delivery
schedule, continuously monitoring the operations of distributors of
the Group and strengthening cost control. The Group will keep its

contingency measures under review as the situation evolves.
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As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the outbreak of
the COVID-19 pandemic has caused the delays of production
and delivery, and impacted certain debtors’ repayment schedules
as well as inventory turnover in the first quarter of 2020. The
Group’s management has set a plan for catching up the aforesaid
delayed schedules in the remaining financial year ending 2020.
As the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will continue is
uncertain, it is not practicable to estimate the full financial effect
that the COVID-19 pandemic may have on the Group’s businesses
as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint KPMG as auditors of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of
the preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman
Foshan China, 26 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of
the Directors, save as mentioned in this Corporate Governance
Report, the Company had complied with all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the Shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a set of code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(“Model Code™) as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS B.

()

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. As
at the date of this report, the Board consisted of the
following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)

Mr. LIAO Yuqing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. ZHANG Li (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. LIANG Shibin

The executive Directors, with the assistance from
the senior management, form the core management
team of the Company. The executive Directors
have the overall responsibility for formulating the
business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing such plans of the

Group.
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Board meetings

During the Year, there were three full board
meetings held, at which, among other matters:

- the Directors approved the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and reviewed and related
results announcement, annual report and
the circular to the Shareholders in relation
to the general mandate proposal and re-
election of the Directors retiring by
rotation;

- the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2019 and reviewed the related results

announcement; and

- the Directors approved the master supply
agreements and licence and service
agreement entered into by the Group on
30 December 2019 and the continuing
connected transactions contemplated
thereunder.

During the Year, the Board also discussed and
approved the Group’s affairs by way of circulation
of written resolutions.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters
to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors
were provided with the relevant documents to be
discussed and approved. The company secretary of
the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of

the Board meetings.
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o X-SE 8
(iii)  Attendance record (iii)  HE gk
The following is the attendance record of the board DUTAEERFGREE _F—ILF
meetings held by the Board and general meeting TZH =+t —HILFEE 872 #E
held during the year ended 31 December 2019: ERusF VY N i >
Attendance at meeting
EE U E:S
Board General
Meetings Meeting
R ER JB K &
Executive Directors: F AT #F -
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman) BISLHRSEE () 3/3 1/1
Mr. LIAO Yuqing BE B SAE (FT B )
(Chief Executive Officer) 3/3 1/1
Ms. ZHANG Li WA Lt (B
(Chief Financial Ofticer) 3/3 1/1
Mr. LAW Yung Koon et S A 3/3 1/1
Mr. WANG Zhihua FEHELAE 313 /1
Mr. LUO Jianfeng =y e 3/3 1/1
Non-executive Directors: H B AT 8 -
Mr. ZUO Manlun 72w AR S R 3/3 1/1
Ms. XIE Jingyun dmEL L 3/3 1/1
Independent non-executive B I B AT HF
Directors:
Mr. CHEN Mo R BR Sk 33 1/1
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (DEEE P 3/3 1/1
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy R e 3/3 1/1
Mr. LIANG Shibin Tk S Ak 313 0/1

According to the code provision A.1.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meeting should be
held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Board has held three full board
meetings. The Company has deviated from this
code provision as the Board has discussed matters
of the Company through exchange of emails and
informal meetings among the Directors and has
obtained board consent through circulating written
resolutions.
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Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors have appropriate the sufficient industry
or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders of the Company. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, Andy, has over 25 years in the
accounting, banking and finance sectors and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received the annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent.
Particular consideration is paid in assessing the
independence of those independent non-executive
Directors who have been serving on the Board
for more than 9 years and seeking re-election in
the annual general meeting. When appropriate,
reasons will be given in the annual general meeting
circular to explain why the Board believes those
independent non-executive Directors are still

independent and should be re-elected.
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(v)

(vi)

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuqing, an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, is the son-
in-law of Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser
of the Group. Save as aforesaid, there is no other
family relationship between any of the Directors
and chief executive officer of the Company. All
of them are free to exercise their independent

judgement.
Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company has provided regular updates to Directors
on material changes to regulatory requirements
applicable to the Directors and the Company and
on the latest business development of the Company.
The Directors confirmed that they have complied
with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors,
namely Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. LIAO Yuqing, Ms
ZHANG Li, Mr. LAW Yung Koon, Mr. WANG
Zhihua, Mr. LUO Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun,
Ms. XIE Jingyu, Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. LIANG
Shibin, have participated in continuous professional
development by attending in-house briefing and/
or reading materials to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills in areas related to their roles,
functions and duties of Directors such as corporate
governance, regulatory updates and topics related
to aluminium industry, and provided a record of
training to the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. Mr. LIU Libin is the chairman of the
Board. The Chairman is chiefly responsible for managing
the Board. Mr. LIAO Yugqing is the chief executive officer
of the Company who takes charge of the supervision of
the execution of the policies determined by the Board.
The Chairman also chairs the Board meetings and briefs
the Board members on the issues discussed at the Board

meetings.

Code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman to hold meetings at least annually
with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors. During the Year, Mr. LIU
Libin, the Chairman, did not hold any meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors. However, the Chairman held meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors with the
presence of other Directors periodically during the Year to
understand their concerns, to discuss pertinent issues and
to ensure that there was access to adequate and complete
information. The independent non-executive Directors
could have direct contacts with the Chairman after

meetings if necessary.
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D. INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 March 2018 and each of
their appointment has been renewed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 1 April 2020.

Mr. ZUO Manlun has been appointed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 16 April 2018 and such
appointment has been renewed for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 April 2020.

Ms. XIE Jingyun has been appointed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 6 December 2018 and such
appointment has been renewed for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 April 2020.

Mr. LIANG Shibin has been appointed for a fixed term of
three years commencing from 14 December 2018 and such
appointment has been renewed for a fixed term of three
years commencing from 1 April 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgement on
the issues discussed.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the remuneration committee comprised
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. LIU Libin and Mr. LIAO Yuqing.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.

It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package
of each Director and senior management shall be
determined by reference to the duties, responsibilities,
experience and qualifications of each candidate.

D.

W JE PR RIEBATES

BROBR S A - R SE S A MR IR e R & B
I ERALFE M % — /E=H—H B
> B =4 RS A A 2 RATE AR
HoF ZF4ENA — HqEE MR =
4 o

e A el 2 [ BATAE M — A
WA 475 H B B =4 R BT O A
o B T AR H — BB EE E MR
=

AR EL L2 BEREFER b =% —/F
TANRHERE A= RZEECHE
o B F AR A — B EHE 2 R
B

QAR e 2 8 AT Al & — 4
AT ARLG A= REERECD
MR B R TRAEN A — HAEFE E W
PR =4F o

WL EPATEFCHFES GG I
I 7 A 2 S DR 4L ST B

% 350

ARy A EL ST AR SRR ST R 5 ST W 2
B Sl DA TS M R e R
RN A ZHIRERE S #
ZEGmMATELAE (EF)  BBRLAE
PRI e ~ BSR4
B e B & B e 2 E R A e KR E
AL~ AE AL B H AR A 2 R A
T 2 < 2 e

WRAEA LN RIBOR > 4 3 5 K m s PR
ZHMAGHSH KRN '
1 ~ KCBR MBS T E



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)

The following is the attendance record of the committee
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meeting held by the remuneration committee during the AZ+—HIFERTZEGGHRZ L
year ended 31 December 2019: Rk
Attendance
at meeting
e RS
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu {a] 7B 3 S A 2/2
Mr. CHEN Mo (G 2/2
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MR8 e 22
Mr. LIU Libin Bk se A 2/2
Mr. LIAO Yuging B B A 2/2
NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS F. RAHEF

The Company established a nomination committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the nomination committee comprised
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. ZUO Manlun.
The primary duties of the nomination committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no Directors
was appointed and no nomination committee meeting has
been held.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for
re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment. At a full Board meeting held on 26 March
2019, the Directors have reviewed the performance of the
Directors who would retire at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30 May 2019 and approved to
recommend the re-election of such Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognizes and
embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board
has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) to comply with the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code which was effective from 1
September 2013. The Company believes that a diversity
of perspectives can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors including, but not limited to, skills,
regional and industry experience, cultural and educational
background, race, gender and other qualities. In informing
its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. The composition,
experience and balance of skills on the Board retains
core members with longstanding knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time
who bring fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to
the Board. The process for the nomination of Directors is
led by the nomination committee, which has been made
on a merit basis. A nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) was adopted on 31 December 2018 and became
effective on 1 January 2019, which serves to improve the
transparency of the process and criteria in selecting and
recommending candidates as directors of the Company
for the Board’s approval from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The
Directors and the nomination committee will consider and
nominate candidates according to the Nomination Policy
based on objective criteria with due regard to the benefits
of diversity as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, to
the Board for approval. In identifying individuals and
making recommendations for nominations, the nomination
committee considers whether such individuals have the
appropriate qualifications, ability and perspectives that
would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy on a regular basis to ensure their continued
effectiveness. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the nomination committee was satisfied with the diversity
of the existing Board composition and did not, for the time
being, set up any measurable objective regarding board
diversity.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION G. Y&
For the year ended 31 December 2019, KPMG, the hEE_E—-LFE+__H=+—HIF
Group’s external auditors, provided annual audit services JE > 7 S ) B TS A S B R g o L S S
and other non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown JIT 1oy A 2 ) 4 AR AR A IR B A I A
of the remuneration of the Group’s external auditors is as RS o A 5 A58 42 B 2 T 4 B 4 4n
follows: Ik
For the year ended
31 December 2019
BEE N
S
1k 4R
(RMB’000)
(ANRWT o)
Audit service % IR B
Annual audit services AF 27w IROB 1,355
Other non-audit services (among others, Fo A IF 7w IR BS
for reviewing the interim financial information (0,45 707 B A B2 B o 09 1 355 L)
of the Group) 760
AUDIT COMMITTEE H #B%ZHG
The Company has established an audit committee with AR A EARSRAR S BT ST R 20 S T
written terms of reference based upon the code provisions BT B & B g 06 DA TS T K
and recommended practices of the Corporate Governance HE B - Wi % B & 2 BT 2 e B %
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to S AR A T 2 B R B R B R
review and supervise the financial reporting process and MomBE_ZX—NET_A=+—HI
internal control systems of the Group. During the year AERE . HE A% B i S JE AT AR
ended 31 December 2019, members of the audit committee WA () ~ BRER A R Ar] 22 e A L
comprised Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (Chairman), Mr. R—2HpATHEEH R E L LA

CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, being the independent
non-executive Directors, and Ms. XIE Jingyun being the
non-executive Director.
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REE—EF - NFET A=+ H IR
B H#EEZEECRTMREG®E &1

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the audit

committee has held two meetings, at which:

the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,
who is of the opinion that such statements complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and legal requirements, and that
adequate disclosures have been made;

the audit committee have reviewed the
reasonableness and fairness of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018; and

the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30

FEREATMACHALEEE
Z-NFEF+ZH=EA—HIFEZ
e T B TR AR A B I B AS Y
A SIS AZ B AE AT P A RS
R G R R B
LAE BIRLRE > TR TR 240 4 5%

FEZB GO AL AR
F=/NET_H=E4—HIEEEZ
FRAE B 128 5 2 6 B B 1

K

L B EN A C AL RSN
S A R I o AR R R R
—HEANH=ZFTHIEAMRA Z AR
AR S B L -

June 2019.

UTAEEZAGREE % UFE+ 2
H=1t—HILFERTZBEGaRZ MR

The following is the attendance record of the committee

meetings held by the audit committee during the year

ended 31 December 2019: T8k
Attendance
at meeting
e S
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MRIEIE S A 2/2
Mr. CHEN Mo e SR 2 A= 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu a8 255 Ak 2/2

Ms. XIE Jingyun HmEL L 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The Board has not established a
risk management committee. Instead, the full Board is
responsible for performing the risk management function,
including establishing and approving the overall risk
management strategies of the Group form time to time,
overseeing senior management’s implementation of
those strategies to align with the Company’s risk profile,
overseeing risk management framework structure,
reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies and ensuring
risk management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach
is supported by key business units to identify and prioritise
risks while the top-down approach reviews and assesses
if risks are comprehensively identified, prioritised, and
properly addressed by key business units to accomplish
the Group’s objectives. The management team is regularly
monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based
internal audit plan and periodically assesses the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls
for ongoing risk assurance purposes. This enhances the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control framework.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control
system is designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s
assets, prevent and detect fraud and protect shareholders’
investment as well as to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and applicable legislation and
regulations are complied with. During the year ender
review, through discussions with the management,
the internal audit team and external auditors and with
reference to a report submitted by the internal audit team
and a risk assessment report prepared by a professional
audit firm, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system in various
perspective, including, among others, financial control,
operational and compliance controls and risk management.
The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed by the Board annually and each review covers a
whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is
subordinated to the Board, formulates the internal audit
plan of the Group based on the strategic objectives
analysis, business flow analysis, risk assessment and
performance evaluation and the self-inspection mechanism
with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board and the guidance of the audit
committee. It regularly reports to the audit committee
and the Board for its audit findings and recommendations
on internal control. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in

the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the
Company continuously optimized job responsibilities and
functions of different departments according to the annual
audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work covered
financial, operation, statutory compliance and connected
transactions, etc., of the Group. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and material internal controls
system. Based on information furnished to it and on its
own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and considers them effective and adequate. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, nothing has been found which requires substantial

improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information
disclosure and regularly reminded Directors and employees
to properly comply with relevant policies on inside
information while notifying the Directors (who are also
the senior management of the Group) and employees the
latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on such
information disclosure from time to time to keep all of
them abreast of the latest information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance
functions in accordance with code provision D.3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code and has reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance; has reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management; has reviewed and monitored the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code during the Year as well as the disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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L. COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Ms. WONG Tik was the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”). In
delivering her service as Company Secretary, Ms. WONG
directly reported to the Chairman. Ms. WONG has
confirmed that for the year under review, she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of
association, any one or more shareholder(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself(themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting,
and must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Compamy’s
principal place of business, which is presently situated
at Unit 605, 6/F, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Any shareholder
enquiry may be directed to the Board through the Company
Secretary by sending to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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There is no provision allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Company’s
articles of association or under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 of the Laws of the Cayman Islands (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an

extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in

such written requisition.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin

Chairman

Foshan China, 26 March 2020
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BB A& LB

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The year 2019 is the 70th anniversary of the founding
of new China, it is also a crucial year to become a well-
off society nationwide and achieve the goal of the first
century. The economy of China has changed from high-
speed growth to high quality development with remarkable
results seen in the construction of pollution treatment and
ecological civilization. Meanwhile, global trade frictions
are constantly escalating and international situation is
becoming increasingly complex. Against this background,
Xingfa always believes that stringent quality control,
unremitting scientific and technological innovation and
strong talent construction are the keys to the Company’s
long-term development. Therefore, we founded based on
construction aluminium profiles, achieved breakthrough in
industrial aluminium profiles, developed more high-tech,
green and environmentally friendly products, accelerated
the industrialization of patented products, extended
industrial chains and enhanced value chains, enhanced core
competitiveness, and focused on IT strategic planning. A
number of key projects including data centre construction,
precision manufacturing projects, capacity expansion,
professional marketing service system construction,
product and process standardization, and human resource
management system construction were pushed forward to
ensure the stable running and high-quality development of
Xingfa.
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High quality product is the assurance of sustainable
development. Xingfa Aluminium cares a lot about product
innovation and scientific research, and has obtained
over 1,300 national patents as at the end of 2019. With
the construction aluminium profiles and industrial
aluminium profiles as the two key products of Xingfa
Aluminium, we embed the principle of sustainable
development into the development and planning of our
products. With construction aluminium profiles as our
traditional key product, we position such product as green,
environmentally-friendly, energy-saving and recyclable
aluminium profile products as well as invest more
efforts to research and develop our products to become
more sophisticated and intelligent, so as to save energy
consumption and improve quality. With the lightweight
and durable characteristics, industrial aluminium profiles
have a strong potential in the transformation and energy
conservation of social materials. In 2019, the investment
in and construction of industrial aluminium production
lines had reached a stage of substantial development. As
the Group advances its digital factory project, we will
adjust the construction of precision manufacturing projects
that industrial aluminium profiles are rested upon and
expect to expand the business of industrial aluminium
profiles and deep processing products to 40% of the
overall business within the next three to five years to make
it become the second core major business. At the same
time, in response to national and social attention to on
environmental protection as well as the market demand for
lightweight transportation, the Group continued to promote
the production and sales of aluminium profile products for
lightweight transportation in 2019.

BB A E LB

T I A R T R A ) AR o BL AR
S 2E 7 SR EE A B > A 20194 &
RS 1,300 B K B A o A 44 R
AR 1 3 0 R S B B ZE Y R B
E b A B I H A s R o B e
FH P AE I 7 i 1) B R B o FE B 4R T 1
A AT RS §h o FRAM MG 2 58 8 R b 7 AL 5 Bk
0~ TR B RS T 0F BR A R 0 68 A b
fl o ST G REBRE b K D B A AL
AR > 8T B RERE PR R o
2B SR R b D FLHEAE i A AR A At
o Rl 1 o 28R 6 RE A SRR 1 VB 1 > 20194F
TR A ERNAMER S AE
BTV B I B > Bl S R T L T
T H o A K 34 R T 2558 BB B 4K T 09 K
FERBEHBEES WEERE=ZEHLTFR
T2 B AU B RV 0 T A bR T 5
BE2ERE140% > 52 A 38 — K32 -
(7] B o 7 288 JHE o) ¢ P A P BR AR A E A
DL T 3 Al s AL B IR R 0 2019
A A S (B A o g R AL B R B
1) A 7 B B o

87



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRYE - kg KB RHAE

Reducing hazardous emissions and utilisation of non-
hazardous waste are the essential elements to sustainable
development. In 2019, the Group had already obtained the
relevant disposal licence issued by Guangdong Provincial
Department of Ecological Environment, and will further
promote the recycling, reduction and non-hazardous
treatment of hazardous wastes through commercial
operations, recycling and use of etching solution and mold
die cavity solution and heavy metal chromium-nickel waste
residue, turning waste into treasure. For wastewater and
exhaust gas discharge, we strictly monitored pollutant
purification process and renovated and replaced certain
environmental protection facilities to ensure emission
compliance. The utilization of non-hazardous wastes is
something that cannot be ignored. We subdivided the
classification of non-hazardous wastes for recycling, for
example, aluminum slag from casting workshop can be
used as raw materials for high aluminum cement.

In order to lower costs and strengthen product quality and
industry competitiveness, the Group continued to focus
on lean production and diversified such concept into the
entire process of enterprise production and operation,
expanded the scope and depth of lean production. In 2019,
the lean production lines of the Group’s manufacturing
bases were operated in full form. Through publicity,
training, and independent improvement, the foundation
work of lean production was continuously pragmatic:
Sanshui Company carried out the “single flow” process
on surface packaging and thermal break production line.
The packaging efficiency was improved by 10% to 15%
under the “single flow” process reducing labour force by
26 workers. The powder quality inspection at source by
supplier has effectively solved the impact of powder return
cycle and unstable quality on production continuity. The
Jiangxi Company has effectively improved production
continuity through the implementation of pre-arrangement
of molds and storage location management. It conducted
special research on “compensation rate of aluminium
profiles” and achieved apparent results. It has reduced the
number of repeated mold installations on machine and
reduced production costs. The Chengdu Company has
achieved rapid growth in both production and sales through
measures such as optimized production plans, equipment
TPM (Total Productive Maintenance) management, and
elimination of waste consumption. The product delivery
cycle was shortened by 3 days when compared to 2018.
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In the future, the Group will continue to give full play

to its advantages and strive to build up its development

model and products that meet the needs of modern society.

The Group will continue to innovate and surpass, strive to

promote industrial modernization, improve manufacturing

standards, and promote industry exchanges, cooperation

and co-development.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation

This 2019 Environmental, Social And Governance
(“ESG”) Report of Xingfa Aluminium is prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, covering
the reporting period from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2019 (the “Year” or “Reporting
Period”). This report is prepared in Chinese and the
English version is the translation version. If there
is any discrepancy between Chinese and English,
the Chinese version shall prevail. Unless otherwise
stated, the denominated currency in the report is in
Renminbi. For the content of corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report in
the 2019 annual report of the Group.

Business of the Group

Founded in 1980s’, the headquarters of the Group
is situated in Foshan City, Guangdong Province
and is one of the earliest enterprises specializing
in aluminium profiles production in Mainland
China. During the Reporting Period, the Group
mainly specialised in the production and sales of
construction aluminium profiles and industrial

aluminium profiles.
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23

24

Scope of the Report

The subject that this report covers the activities
of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries and focuses on reporting the
environment and social policies relating to the
Group’s core business during the Reporting
Period. The board of directors of Xingfa
Aluminium is fully responsible for the Group’s
sustainable development strategy, its reporting
and risk management. During the Reporting
Period, we made disclosures regarding our
important environmental and social issues key
performance indicators (see Appendix II), covering
four subsidiaries located in Sanshui (“Sanshui
Company”), Chengdu (“Chengdu Company”),
Jiangxi (“Jiangxi Company”) and Henan (“Henan
Company”) of the PRC.

Information and Feedback

We value your suggestions or opinions in seeking
constant improvement. If you have any comments
about this report, please send your enquiry to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal

place of business in Hong Kong.

23
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT

3.1

Sustainable Development Strategy

The Group adheres to the corporate mission of
“let aluminium industry bring excellence for
better human life”. Our sustainable development
strategy refers to always maintaining constant profit
growth and improvement in overall capabilities
amid the already leading competitive sector and
operation environment of future expansion in
pursuing for enterprise self-survival and sustainable
development after taking into consideration of
operation goals and market positions. In our
sustainable development strategy, we placed great
emphasis on internal management, information
management, customer management, personnel
management and market management, and
established sustainable development plans in terms
of networking, diversification and forward-looking.
We formulated formal sustainable development
strategy in the environmental, social and
governance aspects, which covered the followings:

In order to enhance our flexibility and adaptive
capability, we aim at reducing management
expenses and improving management efficiency
and focus on motivating staff enthusiasm and
creativity in terms of management models.
Whilst the organisational structure of the Group
shifted from the pyramid type to more horizontal-
direction structure, the structure of each department
needs to be adjusted according to development
needs. We have established and are continuing
to enhance the mechanisms relating to decision-
making, monitoring, interests, risks, code of
conduct, investment, capital raising, audit,
information disclosure, capital structure and equity
management, incentive-tagging, etc, with the
purpose of improving human and capital efficiency.

3.
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The key to product sustainable development lies
on continuous innovation and optimisation. We
insist on integrating the concept of sustainable
development into production process and continue
to advance the path of environmental protection
and energy conservation. We have utilised clean
energy for production, and continued to input
a lot of resources in environmental protection.
Our manufacturing base does not only satisfy the
national environmental protection requirements,
it is also the model unit in the aluminium profile
industry. Through research and development,
we launch more low-carbon and energy-saving
environmental protection products, including
aluminium panels substituting wooden panels
operation, solar aluminium frame derived
from photovoltaic new energy and a variety of
industrial profiles clinging on environmental
protection. On the other hand, the establishment
of a complete sales service process is also the key
to the sustainable development of our products.
To produce aluminium panels to the satisfaction
of our customers, we insist on constant sample
testing and adjusting, from preliminary product
design according to customer needs to the testing
of customized profile, then further to subsequent
optimal design. We value after-sales service and
persist on providing professional and perfect
service integrating customer-oriented sales concept,
which enables the reputation of our “Xingfa Brand”

well-received both within and outside the industry.
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The sustainable development of our talent
resources is mainly focused on remuneration
design, performance appraisal, job analysis, quality
model, incentive-tagging, competition, recruitment,
training and development, etc., with an aim to
fully motivate the enthusiasm and cohesion of our
staff. Based on the job position requirements, we
make adjustments to talent resources introduction
policies, introduce talent resources through various
channels and attract talents by adopting sustainable
development human resources policies.

Stakeholder Engagement

The main internal stakeholders of the Group
include our staff (from management to front-line
staff), while the main external stakeholders include
suppliers, customers, etc. We attach importance
to the opinions and demands of stakeholders and
conduct effective communication with stakeholders
through various channels to continuously improve
the Group’s ability in fulfilling its responsibilities
in the environmental, social and governance

aspects.
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Stakeholder category

Main expectations

Main communication methods

A i HH 136 75 28000 TEBE T I X

Employees Employee rights Intranet

AT B THE i AT A
Salary and benefits Training and employee activities
e P A A B al & B Ti% 8

Governments and
regulatory institutions

R 0B

Investment institutions/

shareholders

BOE A IOR

Employee Development
B TR
Occupational health and safety

Tk S fiek B B 2 42

Compliance operation
R

Tax compliance
WA B

Job creation

Al 7 ik 3

Promote local economic

development

i A 3t 5 48 5 % e

Corporate governance
NIRGERE

Business performance
1 AL A
Shareholders’ equity
i SRHE 4
Information disclosure
5 B iR

Trade union and workers congress
T kB TARKE
Various seminars

HRER G

Regular reporting

7E 1 T #t

Supervision and inspection
B B AR

Company announcements

NGNS

General meetings

JBHR K g

Site visits

B 5

Roadshow and reverse roadshow

I VT T S 1) B

Strategy meeting

R &

Email, telephone, WeChat and
corporate website

W~ RS S S R
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Main expectations

FEMY

BB A E LB

Main communication methods

TR I X

Suppliers/outsourced producers Long-term stable cooperation

PERERS S AR E

Customers

®F

Industry

(FES

Media
1

Local community

AL [

RURE S
Integrity and honesty
B ST A

Brand influence
ol W R
Product quality
JEE i L
Service standard
IR 7K~
Customer opinion

HEFER

Comply with industry regulations
AT AT SE D

Promote industry development
feAEAT S 9%

Industrial innovation

FE SE R B

Information disclosure
{5 BN BH
Social contributions

R

Support public welfare

SRR iR

Create a harmonious community
B AR AL

Bidding and tender

R

Review and evaluation meeting

o A1 BT A

Regular communication

TE 2 I 1

Email, telephone, WeChat and
corporate website

T T AR B B m A

Customer opinion survey
RN Nk

Customer centre and hotline
MR v 0 A
Customer visit

% F 59

Exhibition fairs

JE R e

Industry forums and exchanges
A7 S S AN A

Site visit

B Hh B 5 28
Research

i

Result announcement conference
e 4R

Media open day

118 bR s H

Special report

B R A

Community activities

1 [ 1 H)
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33

Materiality Assessment

During the Reporting Period, to enhance the depth
and breadth of stakeholder communication, we
further expanded the scope of stakeholder surveys
and conducted online questionnaire surveys through
an independent third-party institution to identify
the most important issues of the Group’s business
operations. The specific procedures include:

. Initially identifying the ESG issues related
to Xingfa’s operations by combining
the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange, issues of peer companies and
sustainable development trends while basing
on stakeholder surveys and interviews in
2018;

. Inviting internal and external stakeholders
(including directors, employees, investors,
customers, suppliers, distributors of the
Group) to fill in online questionnaires
and collected their ratings regarding the
importance of ESG issues;

. Analyzing the 62 scoring results collected
and establishing a two-dimensional matrix
of “Importance to Xingfa’s business and
sustainable development” and “Importance
to stakeholders and the environment and
society” to determine the priority of various
ESG issues and obtain confirmation by the
management ultimately.

33
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BEEMERE

Materiality matrix

(1]
® 0
 BEE
o Highly |mportant
(6]
o
7]
. (5]
- (9] Moderately important
— EE
Generally important
y BE
HEREBRAHEEERNERY Highest

Importance to Xingfa's business and sustainable development

O EEBERYELRER
Hazardous waste generation
and treatment

O B kHrmEEEE
Wastewater discharge and
management

O BERMEEE
Exhaust emissions and
management

O BEESEYELHEERE
Non-hazardous waste
generation and treatment

O gERER
Energy usage

O KERMEA
Use of water resoures
O aEMBER
Usage of packaging materials
O BZEBER
Green products
O EHRRE(L

Response to climate change

O BRERBHHK

Greenhouse gas emissions

B THEERR
Employee compensation and
benefits
BEREER 2
Occupational health and safety
HERIRE AR R EE
Supplier environmental risk
assessment and management
EREBER
Product quality control
R3S R 28 AR
Innovative R&D and intellectual
property protection
RES
Anti-corruption
SR TFERE
Diversity and equal opportunities
BT ERERIEI
Empolyee development and
training

IZHEKER
Employee participation and
communication

HERTERRTERE
Supplier social risk
assessment and management
EEREE

Customer satisfaction
EFBIALRE

Customer privacy protection
FribE T RoEHIZ T

Child labor and forced labor
prevention

HESHK 5t

Community participation and
contribution
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The following sets out the degree of importance of various

issues identified from the Group’s materiality assessment

during the Year:

Importance degree

BB

Environment Aspect

BB

ARARJE > AR T A AT AN A5 B Y
A TR

Social Aspect
6 i

Highly important
o JEE

Moderately important

o

Generally important

— B

Hazardous waste generation and treatment

A B S A L P

Wastewater discharge and management

JBE 7K P kg LA B
Exhaust emissions and management
JBE SR P g S B

Non-hazardous waste generation and
treatment

I JBE B2 ) A AR Bk P

Energy usage

RE YA 1)

Use of water resources

K& R AE A

Use of packaging materials

LB G

Green products

Bk f00E i

Response to climate change

JRE 36 SR Aok 5 AL

Greenhouse gas emissions
i % SR Pk

Employee compensation and
benefits

B T3 I e A8 A

Occupational health and safety

Tk 2 it P B 22 42

Supplier environmental risk
assessment and management

A B 7R B A B R

Product quality control

TEE it L R A

Innovative R&D and intellectual
property protection

T T 5 e Rk R

Anti-corruption

&5

Diversity and equal opportunities

Z uft BV e

Employee development and training

B T K

Employee participation and
communication

B T2 8 K

Supplier social risk assessment and
management

3 8 7 A B B R A B B

Customer satisfaction

& F R E

Customer privacy protection

% kS FA IR

Child labor and forced labor
prevention

By 11 3 T 7 56 i 25 T

Community participation and
contribution
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Integrating with the national green manufacturing
development plan and guided by enterprise strategy,
in integrating with the requirements of ISO 14000
environmental management system certification and
ISO 50001 energy management system certification, we
formulated the environmental protection system which
clearly stated that the primary mission for the Group’s
environmental protection is to govern production emissions
by relying on technology, comprehensive utilization of
production waste residue, prevent environmental pollution
and develop clean production. We actively excel our
infrastructure construction and system improvement,
intensify our efforts in energy resources devotion and
clean production process, and introduce ecological design
concept. At the same time, we implement environmental
protection target-oriented accountability system, set up
safety and environment office to lead and take charge of
our environmental protection works. The environmental
protection management personnel of each production
workshop is responsible for carrying out specific
environmental protection works. We implemented the
reward and penalty system for environmental protection
to reward on environmental protection employees with
outstanding performance or penalise employees who

violated regulations in respect of environmental protection.

4.
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During the Year, the Group invested a total of
RMB5.36 million in environmental protection, which
was mainly used for environmental protection facilities
renovation, upgrade, maintenance, hazardous waste
disposal, project environmental assessment, and
environmental inspection and testing. On the basis of
abiding by relevant laws and regulations such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and the Environmental Impact Assessment
Law of the PRC, the Company continued to improve
the environmental management system, enrich the
environmental management mechanism, insist on carrying
out environmental emergency drills, and improve employee
energy conservation awareness and working capability.
The Sanshui Company carried out emergency training
drills for non-contract leakage. The Jiangxi Company
revised and updated the Environmental Protection
Management Manual, added the Company’s environmental
rectification plan, launched the environmental and
workshop 7S rectification activities for each workshop,
and regulated management training on industrial hazardous
waste for workshop managers. The mold workshop
organized liquid ammonia leakage emergency drills. The
Chengdu Company carried out training activities such as
environmental protection management, hazardous waste
management, and comprehensive business of hazardous
waste management. The Henan Company arranged team
leader level personnel or above to participate in clean
production training. According to the requirements of local
environmental protection departments, new electricity
supervision equipment was added to gas-related pollutant
discharge units, new requirements for unorganized
emission management and control were added, vehicle
information identification was implemented, and network
was connected with the provincial platform of the ecology
and environment department.

AR BE > A G R BROR O T A BEAS536
6> EE R BRI B BOE - THR - A L
ORAE - fE BB ) o8 2 ~ B R JH H BERT - B
MBS J5 T o 4% A I AERESY (g AR I
B  OR ik ) (P N RS BR 8
RBERTEE ) SF R B E AIE M R
A 2 o0 5 BR BT B L f A BR IS P
il > B2 B BR T ME S A PR B T
REBR PR M TARRE S - =K AFIBE T
AN ¥ B0 L R S G R R ) o VLY 8 W
BRI H R T R EE T > B
T ARSI IR BA R T B8R
35 B B 7S BEIR VR B LA S B A N B T
S e B JBE ) R AL A R ) - AL ) A
ik ) 2 L S B AR o TR ) R
BRI IR B fE B B R B AR
T SEE R BRI B) o R A ) ALAR Y R BT
MR R EANB2M T iR E IR
A L BR DR TS P SR > 39 SR MR 4 LR
18 ) TR LA SO o B G S AR A P A
SR B U 5 S A o S B AR BB BRI
BT W A o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)

Annual Report 2019 F %R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate
any laws and regulations related to environmental
emissions, nor received any notice of violation from
the environmental protection department of the PRC
government.

4.1 Emissions Management

4.1.1 FExhaust Gas Emissions

Exhaust gas emissions generated during
the production and operation of the Group
include nitrogen oxide, particulates,
sulphur dioxide and organic waste gas. We
strictly complied with the relevant laws
and regulations, such as the Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC. In our environmental policies,
the Group requires stringent restriction
of exhaust gas and particulates emission
into the atmosphere. Prior to emissions,
exhaust gas must undergo purification
treatment and shall not exceed the specified
standard prescribed by the national or local

environmental protection bureau.
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Nitrogen oxide and particulates are mainly
generated from casting workshop. The
Group has purchased natural gas energy
transforming equipment and used natural
gas as production energy to effectively
reduce exhaust gas emission in workshops.
At the same time, the Company also has
an aerobic bag dust removal system in
casting workshops to ensure the production
facilities are operated simultaneously with
the environmental protection equipment.
Organic exhaust gas is mainly generated
from paint spraying process in fluorocarbon
workshop. Through integrating the
technology of recycled activated carbon
absorption and catalytic combustion, and
exhaust gas recycling, organic exhaust gas
finally transforms into carbon dioxide,
water and certain heat energy. During the
Year, Sanshui Company upgraded the
exhaust gas purification and treatment
facilities by transforming the bag-cast
pulse equipment. The Chengdu Company
installed a new bag-type dust removal
device for casting and installation and a new
exhaust gas treatment facility for horizontal
spraying installation. The Jiangxi Company
replaced the cloth bag dust removal
equipment to improve the dust removal
effect of the melt casting workshop. At the
same time, the slag and cold ash system
was regularly maintained, equipment were
inspected and sealing parts were replaced
to ensure that slag and cold ash were not

overflown.
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During the plant construction process,
we strictly complied with national and
local environmental protection laws
and regulations, and controlled floating
dust through a series of environmental
protection measures. During the Year,
Jiangxi Company constructed a new
finished goods workshop, and formulated
and implemented a scientific construction
plan during construction of the workshop,
which included: enhancing construction
management, advocating civilized
construction; strengthening transportation
management, and prevention of material
loss and leakage measures on material
transportation and usage to ensure that
materials are not jammed together during
transportation or overflow and transport
vehicles are travelling at medium speed
to prevent loss and dust floating during
transportation, and the speed limit of
entering and leaving the construction site is
limited to 5 kilometres per hour. A simple
work shed was set up to store powder, and
outdoor storage was strictly prohibited. The
construction waste should be reasonably
piled up and cleaned in time, and dry
construction waste should be sprinkled
to reduce dust pollution during loading,
unloading and transportation; watering the
earthwork and roads in operation area, or
regularly clearing road soil to minimize
the impact on ambient air. The Henan
Company constructed a new finished
product warehouse. During the construction
period, the construction site was surrounded
by a sprinkler system, and vehicle washing
device was installed. The excavation work
was carried out by wet work measures.
The slag vehicle was sealed, the ground
at the construction site was hardened, and
materials on site were covered as required
to reduce the impact of dust pollution on the

environment.
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4.1.2

Wastewater Discharge

Industrial wastewater generated by
each of the Group’s production lines
mainly consists of acidic and alkaline
wastewater, chromium wastewater and
nickel wastewater. We strictly abide by the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC and other relevant laws
and regulations. Our environmental policy
requires strengthening the wastewater
treatment to reduce its discharge volume.
The policy also requires good maintenance
of the closed-circuit circulation and
integrated treatment of production
wastewater, including:

. Oily, acidic, alkaline and highly
toxic wastewater is prohibited from
discharging into the water body.
Discharging pollutants into the
water system is strictly restricted to
prevent pollution.

. Cleaning of vehicles and containers
that contained greasy or poisonous
substances with water body is
forbidden.

. Testing centre is responsible for
conducting daily sewage inspection,
strictly controlling wastewater
discharge within standards, as well
as preparing inspection reports.

. The safety and environment
office of the Group as well as
the environmental protection
management personnel of production
workshop shall cooperate and accept
inspection by the environmental
protection agency on waste gas
emission, and wastewater discharge
from time to time.
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At the same time, we operate and upgrade
wastewater treatment and purification
facilities to ensure wastewater discharged
externally meets the national or local
industrial wastewater discharge standards.
In the Year, Sanshui Company built a new
COD treatment system, in which it is
effective in reducing pollutant emissions
and stabilizing emissions. The Jiangxi
Company treated the rainwater and
sewage network visually by installing new
rainwater and sewage network nameplates;
transformed the domestic wastewater
pipe network in the production area,
added biological reagents to the domestic
wastewater for preliminary treatment, and
connected to production wastewater for
central treatment and discharge. The Jiangxi
Company also entered into a supplemental
industrial wastewater service agreement
with a development zone sewage treatment
plant. The Company’s industrial wastewater
discharge has complied with the relevant
standards in the “Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard” (GB8978-1996), and
the second-type pollutants discharge refers
to the third-level standards in the second
period. The Henan Company added a new
defluorination process to the wastewater
treatment station, added a dosing tank and
maintained the wastewater sedimentation
tank.

Moreover, to reduce the environmental
impact from construction site, Jiangxi
Company took the following measures
during the construction of new finished
goods workshop: during the construction
process, avoid any leakage in manual
transportation of cement mortar and clean
up leaking cement mortar in time, place
containers and other appliances in one place
and clean up in time, and rinse water into
grit pool and set up intercepting trenches
around the construction yard to reduce
construction materials loss.
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4.1.3 Hazardous Waste Management 413 FHFEREYEH

The hazardous waste generated by the
Group’s production and operation mainly
includes waste corrosive liquid, waste
washing liquid, waste tank liquid, tank
slag, wastewater treatment sludge, waste
engine oil, etc. We strictly abide by relevant
laws and regulations such as the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution Caused by
Solid Waste and the Measures on the
Management of Hazardous Waste Manifests,
and specify the management requirements
for hazardous wastes in the environmental
policy. Hazardous waste is disposed of
by third party companies with hazardous
waste disposal qualifications pursuant to
the contractual arrangements with us. For
production units producing solid waste,
we require them choosing the ways and
facilities that meet the requirements of
environmental protection in collection,
transportation, storage and treatment of
solid waste produced. At the same time, the
Group took preventive steps on flooding,
loss and leakage and other measures to
prevent pollution, and prohibited to place,
pile up and discharge of solid waste at will.
When pollution incidents may occur or have
occurred, emergency measures must be
taken immediately to prevent pollution from
spreading out, alleviate and even eliminate
the impact of incidents. Major incidents
or emergent events should be reported to
the safety and environment office of the
Company for investigation within two hours
after occurrence.
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During the Year, the Group continued to
propel the process of hazardous waste
recycling, reduction and non-hazardous
treatment. The Sanshui Company focused
on environmental protection projects for
the comprehensive utilization of wastewater
and sludge. It recycled etching liquid and
mold liquid to the comprehensive pool,
and used filtered sludge as raw materials
for water purification agent, turning waste
into valuable use. The Jiangxi Company
transformed the temporary storage
warehouse for hazardous wastes by adding
new overflow tanks. The hazardous wastes
were stringently packed for moving into and
moving out of the warehouse.

Non-hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group’s production and operation mainly
includes aluminium slag, scrap steel,
construction waste, office and domestic
waste, etc. The Group also attaches
great importance to non-hazardous waste
treatment, especially the recycling of waste
materials and non-hazardous waste residue.
Some of the waste materials can be directly
used for production after being processed,
for example, the product scraps can be
used as raw materials after recycling to the
furnace. Other waste materials such as mold
steel can be handed over to the steel plant
for recycling and reuse after recycling. The
main components of non-hazardous waste
slag such as aluminium slag in casting
workshop are alumina powder, aluminium
powder and refractory particles, which can
be used as raw materials for high-aluminium
cement production after being handed over
to the cement plant for treatment.
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During the plant construction process,
we strictly abided by national and local
environmental protection laws and
regulations and control construction waste
through a series of environmental protection
measures. During the Year, during the
process of building a new finished goods
workshop, Jiangxi Company collected
construction waste and domestic waste,
and strictly prohibited mixing them for
transportation. A small part of the generated
construction waste was collected in time
for the relevant departments to handle,
and disposal at will was strictly forbidden
to reduce the environmental impact from

construction waste.

Use of Resources

4.2.1 Use of Energy

Since the Group’s energy management
center system was launched, it has fully
put into play the measurement and trend
analysis of water, electricity, gas and other
resources, enabling each production base to
monitor resource consumption in real time,
and timely debug and repair controlling
equipment to improve resource efficiency.
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The Group took effective measures to
increase the utilization of electricity
resources, including using LED lamps,
using energy-efficient equipment, replacing
electrical machine with new and highly
efficient motors, reclaiming waste heat of
boiler, installing solar PV power generation
equipment on plant roof top. In addition,
the Group also made full use of the energy
generated during the production process,
such as applying the heat generated from
the operation of the air compressor in the
workshop in heating the technology groove
in the oxidation workshop, and also hot
water supply for employees for daily use,
in order to effectively reduce the use of
electricity resources and natural gas, and
reduce safety problems caused by the use of
liquefied gas facilities.

During the Year, different companies
continued to use pragmatic production
activities to reduce process waste and
improved operating efficiency, thereby
reducing energy consumption per unit
of product. At the same time, Sanshui
Company carried out simplified automation
innovation and upgraded its equipment.
After transforming two 1800T machines
with short strokes, replacing servo
motors and mold furnaces, the electricity
consumption was reduced by 100 kWh/
ton year-on-year. The vehicle speed plate
of Jiangxi Company’s factory uses solar
panels; and energy-saving renovation of
spraying workshop was carried out. After
the transformation, about 100,000 cubic
meters of natural gas can be saved each
year. The Henan Company has eliminated
inverters having high-energy consumption
and used inverters for newly installed
extruders and high-energy consumption

equipment to reduce energy consumption.
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4.2.2

Use of Water Resources

Water resources are of vital importance to
our production process as it is indispensable
in every process such as squeezing and
casting. The Group uses both municipal
water and water from its own well, so as to
ensure there is no suspension in production
due to water supply shortage. The ratio of
the municipal water use to well water use is
approximately 8:2.

In order to save water and improve
usage efficiency, the Group continued
to implement the water reclaim system,
and reuse reclaimed water for daily life
activities such as watering, toileting, and
cooling water production in facilities
through water towers and water tanks.
During the Year, Sanshui Company
reused about 150,000 tons of water. The
electrophoresis workshop of Jiangxi
Company has the reclaimed water reuse
equipment in place and its reclaimed water
reuse rate was 100%.
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4.2.3 Use of Packaging Materials 4.2.3 GHEHHEH

We source from packaging materials
suppliers that meet the requirements of
relevant national laws and regulations. For
sourcing products packaging materials,
the Group formulated the group-level
sourcing management plan as its principal
policy. Packaging materials suppliers are
selected by tender, which the Group has
already established long-term cooperative
partnership with them. In view of the good
protecting function of non-woven cotton
and its recyclable features, in 2018, the
Group used non-woven cotton instead of
pearl cotton in its packaging materials.
We recycle iron frame for export and the
wooden boxes for containers from our
customers by using our returned trucks
after delivery. During the Year, the Sanshui
Company recycled 1,586 way-out iron
frames and container wooden boxes from

customers.
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4.3

Green and Low-carbon Operation

4.3.1 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and

Management

From 2012 to 2015, we checked carbon
emission periodically and reported to
Provincial National Development and
Reform Commission (NDRC) according
to government requirements, and provided
NDRC with raw data to formulate carbon
emission indicators in the future. As
greenhouse gas emission is not the most
important issue of the Group, and that the
PRC government has not issued any specific
carbon emission reporting requirements
and carbon trading indicators since 2016,
therefore, the Group currently has no plan
to calculate carbon emissions. In future,
we will continue to pay attention to the
relevant regulations and trends regarding
carbon emissions reporting and update our
disclosures.

In order to reduce direct and indirect
greenhouse gas emissions in production
operations, in addition to energy-
conservation reconstruction of production
facilities, the Group continued to use
natural gas as one of the energy supplies
for production operations during the Year.
The Sanshui Company has launched the
official seal management system. All the
processes involving seals have used online
processes, and no longer operates paper-
based processes. By reducing the amount of
paper used, carbon emissions are reduced.
According to the guidance of the Group,
Jiangxi Company launched the electronic
approval process to reduce the amount of
paper used in the office process. The Henan
Company promotes paperless office by
scanning electronic version in issuing orders
to production units, double-sided printing,
and business approval through Office

Automation System.
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4.3.2 Green Products Promotion

Compared with traditional metal materials,
aluminium profiles possess excellent
characteristics in energy conservation and
environmental protection, and are regarded
as green metals in modern industry and
construction industry. Based on its excellent
performance in reducing automobile weight
and fuel consumption, the Group vigorously
facilitates the research and development,
production and promotion of lightweight
traffic products. At the same time, the
Group also continued to produce and
optimize energy-saving and environmentally
friendly construction aluminium products
and their production processes, and strived
to continuously improve green building
construction technology to promote the
sustainable development of the industry.
The green products that we have launched in

recent years are:
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Aluminium alloy profiles for
motor shells of electric vehicles:
Lightweight automobile is the key
measure for energy conservation
and emission reduction in
automobiles. Aluminium alloy
possesses high strength, light
weight, good heat dissipation,
good sealing performance, high
stability, strong durability, easy-to-
shape processing, easy to recycle,
pollution free, economical and
practical characteristics, making
it the best choice for lightweight
automobile applications. The water-
cooled aluminium alloy motor shell
developed by Xingfa Aluminium
has the advantages of large heat
exchange surface area, high heat
dissipation power and energy saving
and environmental protection. It
is manufactured by hot extrusion
technology, which avoids inner-
hole cutting and greatly reduces
processing costs. It has gained
market recognition and customer
trust. We have mastered the
independent intellectual property
rights of aluminium alloy profiles
for motor shells of electric vehicles.
At present, we have applied for the
invention patent on “a new energy
automobile motor shell mold” and
formulated the industry standard of
“aluminium alloy extruded profiles
used for motor shells”. With new
energy motor vehicles becoming
an important direction for the
transformation of the automobile
industry, such product will have
tremendous market prospects and
social benefits in the future.
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Aluminium panel system for
green environmental protection
construction: Aluminium alloy
panels system has special features
including light weight, convenient
dismantling and assembling, high
rigidity, less joints, good stability,
high precision, smooth and clean
pouring concrete, long service life,
high recycle value, high construction
efficiency, safe and neat construction
site, low dependence on machinery,
etc. Dozens of countries around the
world such as the United States,
Canada, and the United Arab
Emirates have generally adopted
aluminium alloy panel system in
construction. In recent years, the
coastal provinces and cities in
China, Hong Kong, Macau, and
Taiwan regions have gradually begun
to promote the use of aluminium
alloy panel systems. Xingfa
Aluminium has also followed the
trend and set up a project to carry
out the research and development
of aluminium panels for green
and environmentally friendly

construction.
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Environmental protection, energy-
conservation and heat-insulating
doors, windows and curtain walls
series: “Energy-conservation heat-
insulating high-end system doors
and windows” that are independently
developed by Xingfa Aluminium are
of higher quality than other ordinary
sliding doors and windows. All the
performance indicators have reached
international advanced standards
and their market share have reached
over 50%, highlighting the end of
the traditional era that China’s mid-
to-high-end doors and windows
have all along been copying from
the European door and window
system; and the “Chinese door and
window system” market, which is
more adaptive to national conditions,
has entered into a new era of
independent intellectual property
rights systems. Another product
that is independently developed
is the smart “hook-up” building
curtain wall system, which can
save up about 30% of aluminium as
compared to unitized curtain walls
and about 10% to 20% of aluminium
as compared to component curtain
walls, brought about noticeable

comprehensive economic benefit.
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Environmental protection, energy
conservation, low temperature
curing polyester powder sprayed
aluminium profiles: In view of
the current problems of high curing
temperature, long time span, and
curing agent toxicity of powder
coatings for aluminium profiles,
Xingfa Aluminium has conducted
the “research and development and
application of adjusting the usage
of energy saving, low temperature
and curing powder coatings and
coating technology for aluminium
profiles” and adjusted the curing
process parameters from 200 T/10-
15min to 160 T/10min, saving
about 30% of energy consumption,
reducing spraying time by 33%, and
improving equipment utilization
and labor efficiency, in which it has
greatly saved production costs and
solved the current key problems
in limiting the development of
electrostatic powder coating
technology. Compared with the
traditional TGIC (triglycidyl
isocyanurate) system, the developed
new curing agent is safe, non-
toxic, green and environmentally
friendly, which has significantly
reduced the health impact of front-
line production and construction
personnel. The products were
awarded with the “Second Prize of
China Nonferrous Metals Industry
Science and Technology Award”,
“Third Prize of Foshan Science
and Technology” and “Chancheng
District Science and Technology
Innovation Project” and other
honors.
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4.3.3 Caring for Climate Change 4.3.3 BFERMREEN

Climate change has become a major
global challenge of general concern to
the international community. In recent
years, the PRC government has actively
participated in global climate governance
and earnestly implemented national
strategies to combat climate change. As a
manufacturing enterprise, Xingfa actively
responded to the call by Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology to
construct a green manufacturing system.
In 2017, it was selected as the first batch
of green manufacturing demonstration lists
by Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology in 2017 and ranked among the
first 201 “green factories” in the PRC. Our
project of Aluminium Profile Production
Line Air Pollutant Emission Reduction
Technology Reform won the National
Industrial Clean Production Demonstration
Project of Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, and Xingfa was
the only company in Guangdong Province
that won the project. It has also won the
“Guangdong Province Clean Production
Enterprise” and the “First batch of resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise
piloting” in Guangdong Province and other

honorary titles.

In the future, we will further optimize
the management system related to green
factories, continuously improve the
environment and energy management
system, and leverage fully our corporate
technology, resources and external
collaboration conditions to make Xingfa
Aluminium the advanced and smart green
factories with high energy efficiency,
low pollution and low emission, helping
the nation’s green and low-carbon

transformation and development.
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5.  PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY AND
OPERATION

5.1 Sustainable Supply Chain

5.1.1

Supply Chain Environmental Risk
Management

The raw materials used in products
production of the Group are mainly
aluminium ingots and aluminium rods.
Most of its upstream suppliers are highly-
polluted and high energy-consumption
enterprises. Their production operations
may exert significant impact on the
ecological environment. Therefore,
Xingfa attaches great importance to the
suppliers’ environmental risk management.
In order to reduce the impact of the
upstream supply chain on the environment
and promote suppliers to fulfill their
environmental protection responsibilities,
we have put forward specific requirements
for our supply chain partners in terms
of environment, including compliance
with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. Our environmental and social
risk management policies for supply chain
include the followings:

. In respect of investigation on
bidder’s qualifications, the
policy states that bidder must
provide product specifications,
quality certificate, quality
system certification (including
environmental management system),

credit certificate, etc.
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The policy requires suppliers
to satisfy the requirements of
regulatory, reporting and operational
measures. For chemical materials
purchased, general safety will be
enhanced through strengthening
environmental management,
preventing environmental pollution
incident, and integrating supplier
environmental risk management and
supply chain management to achieve

“overall safety”.

Supplier assessment covers the
assessment of risks associated
with the supplier, in which aspects
relating to product quality and
hazardous material control, supplier
environment and safety control
accounted for 40% of the overall

risk assessment.

Letters of guarantee are to be
entered into with suppliers on
exclusion of environmentally
hazardous substances so as to
ensure all materials and components
provided by suppliers are free
from hazardous substances. All of
those materials and components are
required to pass the tests conducted
by professional testing organization,
and testing report with official seal
shall be provided.
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Based on such policy, companies
formulate and implement supply chain
environmental risk management measures
based on actual production and operation
conditions. For example, when Chengdu
Company organizes its supplier files every
year, it requires suppliers to confirm that
they are not accountable for any safety
and environmental incidents in previous
year. Whether the suppliers passed the
environmental impact and safety evaluation
is the key inspection item of the Company
in evaluating suppliers. If any supplier fails
to pass the evaluation, no procurement
contract will be signed with the supplier by
the Company.

Supply Chain Social Risk Management

The Group has established supplier
evaluation control procedures, major
raw and auxiliary materials inspection
procedures, major raw and auxiliary
materials procurement procedures, quality
objectives management and statistical
regulations for the specification and
control of supplier evaluation processes
and procurement. The Group’s tender
purchasing team is led by senior
management, comprising of the sourcing
director and head of each branch companies
and department. The main method of
purchasing raw materials is by tender
invitation.
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In order to decrease the social risk in supply

chain, our social risk management policies

for supply chain include the followings:

Investigation on bidder’s
qualifications: The policy states
that bidder must be an entity
incorporated in the PRC, and meets
the legal person capacity required
by bidding units and holds an
enterprise business license and tax
registration certificate. Bidder must
provide product specifications,
quality certificate, quality
system certification (including
environmental management system),

credit certificate, etc.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Management: The policy requires
the suppliers of the Group to satisfy
social sustainability.
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Products and Services

5.2.1 Product Quality Control

Our product quality control strictly abides
by the ISO9001 quality management
system, government recognized laboratory
management system, measurement and
certification management system, military
certification system and other systems.
Our requirements for product quality are
higher than industry average. On one hand,
we introduced world-advanced production
equipment to optimize the physical and
chemical properties of our products. On the
other hand, we controlled process quality
stringently. We had quality control points
in every segment from casting, extrusion,
molds, surface treatment to ex-warehouse
delivery, and continue to improve while
preventing defective products from flowing
into the next process. We also strictly
controlled every detail of the operation
process, carefully checked whether there
were quality problems such as grooves,
rough lines, and scratches on profile
surface, and check the profile angle and

flatness through square ruler.
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Our “Xingfa Aluminium Product Quality
Management Manual” emphasizes product
quality management, which includes
the provision of satisfactory products
to customers, protection of ecological
environment and protection of staff safety
and health. The general manager of the
Company convened dealers’ meeting once
every year, visited key customers from
time to time every month, and extensively
seeking opinions on product quality
and improvement from customers. For
those faulty products, we implemented
“Control Procedure on Faulty Products”
to regulate and manage faulty products
for recycling. In order to improve quality
control level, Sanshui Company revised
and updated the “Quality Department
Bad Quality Behavior,
Process Specification Supervision and
Deduction Treatment System”, “QUASCAP
Pearlescent Electrophoresis Profile

LRI

Management Plan”,

Inspection Regulations” and the first part of
round ingot for aluminum alloy extrusion
of “Internal Control Standards” during the

Year.
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In the Year, we continued to consolidate
pragmatic production, breakthrough
production bottlenecks, and improve
product quality. For example, Sanshui
Company carried out powder quality pre-
inspection work and conducted powder
quality inspection from the supplier at
source, and had effectively solved problems
that affect production due to factory return
of unstable powder quality. The external
consulting company of Jiangxi Company
provided the lean management reform
design plan and follow-up implementation
for lean process optimization, production
management system, on-site management
system construction, TPM management
system, human resource management
system, customized training, etc. The Henan
Company has carried out post-process
operation standardization management,
promoted and implemented 15 post-
standardized operation instructions,
optimized and standardized mold polishing
and nitriding heat treatment process
operations, improved mold programme
control quality, and improved mold on-
board qualification rate and service life.
Two major quality and process inspections,
led by general manager, department heads
and process technicians, are conducted
monthly to rectify quality-related problems.
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5.2.2

Xingfa as the sole supplier of Red Ribbon
aluminium profile products to celebrate the
70th anniversary of the establishment of
new China at Tiananmen Square.

During the Reporting Period, there was
no regulatory and legal non-compliance
activity relating to product responsibility in
the Group.

Research and Development and
Innovation

The Group attaches great importance
to innovation and scientific research,
and is committed to establishing long-
term and stable cooperative relationship
with domestic universities, scientific
research institutes and peer enterprises by
participating in various industry exchanges
and seminars, and jointly solving common
industry technical problems or conduct new
technology research.

5.2.2
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The Group is the core member of the
Industry-University-Research Innovation
Alliance in Non-ferrous Metals Sector and
is a member of the Guangdong Aluminium
Magnesium Light Metal Materials Industry-
University-Research Strategic Alliance.
As a pioneer in the industry, we actively
participate in and lead the drafting and
formulation of international, national
and industry standards in the aluminium
alloy profiles industry, promote the
implementation of a series of standards,
and contribute to the technological progress
and healthy development of the industry. At
the same time, we use industry-university-
research cooperation as a carrier to
continuously acquire new knowledge and
new technology sources, thereby forming
a systematic knowledge and technical
support system that is critical to the long-
term development of an enterprise, and
to accelerate the cultivation of innovative
enterprise talents through cooperation
projects implementation.

At present, the Group owns the National
Enterprise Technology Centre, Post-doctoral
Research Workstation, Guangdong Key
Aluminium Profile Engineering Technology
Research and Development Center,
Guangdong Industrial Design Center,
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium High-
end Aluminium Alloy Materials Research
Institute, and is accredited as the “Single
Champion Demonstration Enterprise
of National Manufacturing”, “National
Intellectual Property Demonstration

LI TS

Enterprise”, “National Intellectual Property
Advantage Enterprise”, and “National
Technology Innovation Demonstration

Enterprise”, etc.
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During the Year, the Group participated in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao-Greater
Bay Area Aluminium Manufacturing
Industry Green Manufacturing Technology
Exchange Conference. The fifth National
Non-ferrous Metal Structure Material
Preparation, Processing and Application
Technology Exchange Conference as well
as other industry exchange conferences and
forums. The Group also participated in the
drafting of industry standards including
GB/T 27685-2019 “Portable Aluminium
Alloy Ladder” and GB/T 8005.1-2019
“Aluminium and Aluminium Alloy Terms
and Definitions Part 1: Product and Method
of Processing and Treatment” and three
other national and industry standards, and
two group standards. As of the end of
2019, we have obtained a total of 1,325
national patents and have participated in
the drafting of 92 national and industry
standards. As the principal drafting unit, we
participated in China’s first international
standard for aluminium profile industry,
ISO 28340: 2013 “Aluminium Laminated
Coatings Technical Requirements for
Laminated Coatings and Electrophoretic
Organic Coatings on Aluminium Surface
and Auodic Oxide Coatings”, which greatly
improved the influence and right-to-speak
on international stage as an PRC aluminum
profile enterprise. The Group was awarded
the title of “National Standards Research
and Innovation Demonstration Base” and
“International Standards Research and

Innovation Demonstration Base”.
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During the Year, we have worked and
cooperated with Harbin Institute of
Technology, Foshan Jianmei Aluminium
Co., Ltd., Huazhong University of
Science and Technology, Guangdong
Hongtu Technology Holdings Co.,
Ltd., Shanghai Jiaotong University,
South China University of Technology,
Chongqing Changan Automobile Co.,
Ltd., Guangdong Institute of Materials
and Processing, Guangdong Industrial
Analysis and Testing Center, Jiangxi
University of Science and Technology and
other universities, enterprises and research
institutes to carry out project development.
The Jiangxi Company and South China
University of Technology carried out
the Yichun Economic Development
Zone Innovation-driven Development
Science and Technology Project on “Key
Technology and Application of High
Strength, High Toughness and Corrosion
Resistant Aluminium Alloy Profiles for
Marine Ships”. The Henan Company
and Henan University of Science and
Technology signed a strategic cooperation
agreement and jointly established the Henan
Collaborative Innovation Centre Sub-centre
and Henan Collaborative Innovation Centre
Aluminium Industry Base.
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While constantly advancing our
innovative and research and development
activities, in recent years, the Group
has also significantly strengthened the
management of intellectual property rights,
strengthened the promotion of patent laws
and regulations, the popularization of
patent knowledge, patent training, patent
application and protection. At present, a
set of patent management system has been
formed, including “Company Intellectual
Property Rights Management System”,
“Patent Management System”, “Trademark
Management System”, “Intellectual
Property Rights Training Measures”,
“Scientific Research Project Management
System”, “Intellectual Property Rights
Strategic Planning Programme”. The rules
and regulations provide a solid theoretical
and technical basis for the management
and maintenance of intellectual property
rights. We earnestly implement intellectual
property rights strategy, and in accordance
with the requirements of the “Enterprise
Intellectual Property Management” (GB/T
29490-2013) issued by National Intellectual
Property Administration (CNIPA), we
passed the “Enterprise Intellectual Property
Management” system certification in the
Year.

Guangdong
Aluminium
Processing
Technology
(International)
Seminar
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5.2.3 Customer Service

While satisfying customer demand for high-
quality products, the Group also focuses
on providing customers with timely and
effective services, helping customers to
solve problems and improving customer
satisfaction. The Group’s sales network
is distributed nationwide, and we are
committed to establishing close cooperation
with distributors to jointly expand and
consolidate sales channels. Our customer
service channels include customer opinion
surveys, customer service centres and
hotlines, customer visits, exhibitions and
large-scale reception activities such as super
factories. At the same time, our corporate
website was added with an enquiry function
to quickly search for sales sites around
the world, and to provide options such as
online messaging, dealer portal, and anti-
counterfeiting enquiry.

In order to standardize customer service
management and improve customer service
quality, we made the following after-sales
service undertaking in the tender contract

materials:

. Upon receiving customer feedback
on quality problems, Xingfa will
reply within 24 hours or send service
personnel to the site for after-sales
service as quickly as possible until
customer is satisfied;

. When necessary, Xingfa will send
technicians to the site to provide

technical guidance services;
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If there is any damage caused by the
quality of the materials supplied by
Xingfa, replacement will be made
free of charge;

Actively participate in the
engineering coordination meeting
organized by client, strictly
implement the meeting minutes or
agreements signed by both parties,
and pay return visits regularly to
understand the usage of materials by

users;

After fulfilling all obligations in
a contract, Xingfa undertakes to
provide related technical services to
users, and answer users’ inquiries at

any time;

Xingfa will further improve
service works, and implement
timely service, advanced service,
full-process service and premier
quality service in the entire process
of product manufacturing and

installation;

Once a tender is awarded, the
commitment letter will form an
integral part of the contract and
possess the same legal effect as the

contract.
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5.2.4 Information Security and Privacy

Protection

The Group is the first enterprise in the
industry to apply the “ERP modern
management information network
project”, and passed the “Integration of
Informatization and Industrialization
Management System Assessment” in 2017.
We combined Xingfa’s informatization
and digitalization standard, utilize multiple
information systems, adopt new Internet
of things technology, integrate smart
profile WMS (Warehouse Management
System), automated material three-
dimensional warehouse, automated mold
three-dimensional warehouse, energy
information integrated management
platform, production equipment data
acquisition and the comprehensive
performance analysis platform and strive
to promote the construction of big data to
ensure the continuous improvement of the
Group’s operational efficiency and overall

management standard.

Customer privacy is closely related to the
vital interests of customers. The Group
attaches great importance to information
security and customer privacy protection,
strict compliance with relevant national
and local laws and regulations, proper use
of customer information, and prevention
of customer privacy leakage in accordance
with the law. We protect data exchange
at user end through data encryption and
document encryption, and solve the problem
of online data leakage through integrated
software and hardware solution for online
behaviour audit. In 2020, we plan to carry
out the second-level guarantee certification
of the latest national guarantee 2.0 version,
and further strengthen information security
and privacy protection through application
data backup, data audit and network security

solutions for internal and external networks.
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6.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
MANAGEMENT

6.1

Guaranteeing Employees’ Benefits

The Group strictly complies with national and
local labor regulations such as the Labor Law of
the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
and protects the legitimate rights and interests of
employees. We issue policies relating to employee
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, antidiscrimination and
other benefits and welfare in the employee
handbook.

The Group offered competitive remuneration
packages in the same industry for employees
and strived to establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system to ensure
staff with excellent performance would obtain
corresponding returns. We reviewed regularly the
remuneration packages at all levels internally,
collected industry information on remuneration
from the labour market, and adjusted the
remuneration and benefits standards with reference
to position, work capability, work performance,
staff skills and benefits to the Group.
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The personnel management principle that we
adopted is performance-based incentives and
assurance of internal fairness. For example, the
monthly salary of production line staff is calculated
according to the comprehensive piecework on a
team or group basis, so as to ensure that staff who
works more will be paid more. At the same time,
for employee performance appraisal process, they
are being implemented across different positions
according to the performance appraisal method of
the respective department in which they work. We
adopted a policy whereby management personnel
shall abstain from any human resource matter
relating to their family members and relatives,
with an aim to ensure internal fairness, and require
that family members and relatives of management
personnel are not allowed to work in the same
respective departments.

We emphasize communication and participation
among employees, disseminated policy and
information through posting announcements
on bulletin boards, e-mails, employee manual
or training. Staff can put forward their opinion
and question to management through interview,
functional e-mails or group discussion. We
encourage employees to offer suggestions for
corporate operation and development purposes.
At the same time, the Company’s internal trade
union organization strictly abides by the relevant
requirements of the Trade Union Law of the PRC,
protects the rights and interests of employees in
accordance with the law, performs democratic
procedures, and gives full play to the role of
employees in enterprise democratic management.
In order to enhance their sense of belongings and
enthusiasm for work, we have enriched employees
in their spare time by building stadiums, showing
free movies, organizing various cultural and
recreational activities, and helping employees
in need through union organizations. During the
Year, in order to help a difficult employee, Sanshui
Company initiated a donation and raised funds in
a total amount of over RMB42,000. The Company
granted subsidies, condolences and relief funds to
six employees totalling RMB115,000.
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During the Reporting Period, there was
no regulatory and legal non-compliance
in respect of remuneration and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and

welfare of the employees in the Group.

New employee
forum
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Labour Standard

The Group strictly abides by the minimum age of
employment requirements stipulated by the PRC
and the location where it operates. Our corporate
social responsibility has expressly stipulated the
prohibition of recruiting child labour under 16
years old. For minors between 16 to 18 years old,
we carried out special protection in accordance
with the laws.

The Group illustrated the policy of preventing
forced labour in the employee handbook. We
adopted an order-oriented production model.
Pursuant to the approval from local labour
department, we implemented a work system with
integrated computation of working hours to ensure
employees’ right to rest and leave are protected
and production and work tasks can be completed
through collective working, collective rest, on shift
and adjustment leave and flexible working hours,
etc.

During the Reporting Period, there was
no misconduct nor regulatory and legal
non-compliance related to child labour or forced
labour prevention in the Group.
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group adheres to the human-oriented and
life-paramount concept, and regards staff health
and safety as the important key focus in daily
work. To safeguard staff safety and health during
production, we prepared the safety production
management system, which emphasised that “all
activities are based on the life and health of staff”.
The Group established the safety production
committee which is responsible for our overall
safety production management works of the Group.
For implementation, every production department
has established its own safety production leading
group respectively and is responsible for staff’s
production safety work in respective departments.

Our safety production works are in line with
the policy of “Safety First, Focus on Prevention
and Comprehensive Treatment” and adhere to
the principle of “Production Management must
Encompass Safety Management and Person-in-
charge is the Responsible Person”. The staff health

and safety policy mainly covers the followings:

. Regular safety assessment to be organised
by safety expert on each production process
and all equipment facilities, including
performance and risk factors assessment,
and disseminate the assessment results
to staff, and place hazardous signs at

prominent locations.

6.3

AEMESFLL NS 2 B
& B T R B 2 AF 5 H
WOLAERE 2 e Sy R B T
WM R L 2 RMEIE T &2
P L R o o R [T AT
EEHEAER T A @] - A%
BlRoL THERERREEARN L S
AEZBG 2EARNTAEERE
b ) 22 2 A A P AR o FEWUAT TG
T > P A% AR E A P O3 S 2 A A
/ML BRI B T
7 %A TAE o

AL B A E TAEERM %2
B WA E e E] Iy
B BREF (A ELAE LS EE
B AR MR B TR f R
LRBOR EZEWHEL THE

. S WAL A 2 A A
A BR T~ T A M SO AT
%A RPAE > B T REAN 5 B
PR 2R T Al o [r] B 6 T A 265 2R
B IR 450 B T 3l AE B R &
T S B IR AR R o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)

Annual Report 2019 F %R

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

For occupational hazards factors that exist
in production environment, we conduct
propaganda training for staff, and allocate
different labour protection gear to staff
according to the national regulations on the
prevention and treatment of occupational
diseases. The safety production leading
group in each department conducts
inspection on the actual compliance of staff
safety management, and for any staff who
does not wear safety equipment properly,
warning will be given for the first time
of non-compliance discovery, and a fine
will be imposed on the responsible leader
and respective staff for the second time
of non-compliance discovery, i.e. strictly
adheres to the principle of “Person-in-
charge is the Responsible Person”. At the
same time, the enterprise invites the local
Occupational Disease Prevention and
Control Centre to conduct occupational
health examination for front-line workers
and prepare relevant reports.

To focus on the implementation of
firefighting management, including staff
trainings on fire-fighting knowledge
and deploying fire-fighting facilities
in workshops and office buildings, we
require staff, whether working frontline
in workshop production line or in
administrative office, must possess fire-
fighting knowledge, including the use fire-
fighting equipment properly.
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. The environmental measures adopted during
production could reduce hazardous exhaust
gas, waste and wastewater discharge, which
are crucial to the health of staff that work in
workshops for a long period of time. We are
committed to indoctrinating environmental
protection concept to staff, and require
environmentally friendly operation, so as to
attain achievement on actual application of
environmental protection concept as well as

environmental protection facility.

The Group offered a comprehensive safety
consciousness and skills training for staff and at
the beginning of each year, an annual training
programme is prepared according to the training
requirements of each production workshop and
the entire process is tracked and implemented as
scheduled. The training involved specific operation
in certain positions, emergency drills, re-training
for special equipment and first aid training, etc. At
the same time, the safety management department
established corresponding safety communication
group through an instant communication App, and
those staff who are team leaders or above could
blow the whistle or report the safety problems
to management at any time, thus ensuring any
information related to safety will be communicated
at management level in a timely manner. Each
company carries out monthly safety production
activities, including crane safety operation skills
competition, forklift safety operation skills
competition, chemical protective gear-wearing
competition, safety speech competition, and safety
knowledge competition. In addition, we have also
improved staff’s dining and boarding environment
by expanding the canteen, strictly monitoring meal
quality, and educating employees on laws relating
to traffic safety to ensure employees’ health and
enhance corporate cohesiveness.
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During the Year, we continued to improve, re-
construct, install and maintain safety protection
equipment, and continued to strengthen safety
precautions through major hazardous source
monitoring, occupational hazardous testing,
emergency rescue drills, and employee health
checks. Throughout the Year, the Group invested
RMB5.13 million in production safety, which was
mainly used to improve safety and occupational
disease prevention measures, employee
occupational health examinations, purchase
of labor protection supplies and emergency
equipment, rectification of safety hazards, and
safety production training. The Sanshui Company
added a safety performance assessment system
for employees who have violated disciplines and
regulations, and modified equipment by adding
isolation component and silencers. The Jiangxi
Company has updated the safety management
system for tricycles, and the regulations for the
supervision and rectification of hidden dangers in
security risks. Our four branches had conducted a
total of 766 safety trainings, 288 safety inspections
and 135 accident emergency drills respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
violate any law and regulation on health and safety
nor was there any work-related employee fatality
incidents. In response to employee injury accidents
that occurred during the Year, we promptly and
properly treated injured employees, reviewed
and investigated the causes of accidents, and
adopted measures to strengthen employees’ safety
production education and improve workplace
protection conditions to prevent accidents from
happening again.
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6.4

Development and Training

The development and training of employees is
not only our assurance to achieve our business
objectives, improve performance and achieve
sustainable development. It is also a way for
employees to be competent, enhance themselves
and develop their potential. The Group regards
employees’ opportunities and potential for
sustainable development as its responsibility. The
staff development and training policies are set
out in the employee handbook, and staff training
is guided in accordance with the “Staff Training
Management System” and “Administration
Methods for Staff Career Development”. Employee
training is mainly conducted through classroom
training and online learning. We develop an
annual training implementation plan based on the
results of the survey on employee training needs
and integrated with the training resources and
the Company’s human resources activity plan.
Our training works adhered to the principle of
comprehensive coverage and key development,
mainly initiated from the following aspects:

. Through various forms of training, new
employees are able to fully understand
the Company’s development status,
organizational structure, rules and
regulations, process flow, etc., enhance their
recognition and confidence in corporate
culture, and give full play to their initiative
and enthusiasm.
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To conduct general management training
to all employees, such as management
skills improvement, business etiquette,
emotional management, safety training,
communication skills improvement, office
automation, laws and regulations, and
policy presentations to improve staff quality

and comprehensive skills.

To offer a wide range of professional
training for employees, such as trainings
on sales skills, financial operations skills,
human resources management, and training
for specific projects. The purpose of such
trainings is to improve the know-how
and skills of professional staff, thereby
improving work efficiency. At the same
time, we hire highly skilled employees as
internal lecturers to share work experience
and professional skills with other
employees, and use this as an opportunity
to explore outstanding talents, to form an
efficient internal training instructor team,
and to inherit the company’s culture and
skills knowledge.

We tackle current training shortcomings by
integrating with current intelligentized and
Internet-based platform learning methods
and collaborate with third-party training
institutes to develop an on-line training
platform. The platform will match different
training programme for employees at
each stage, and incorporate the training
assessment into the annual assessment
to ensure training effectiveness and
timeliness and improve the pro-activeness of

employees in learning.
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For staff career development, the Group performed
job rotation as and when appropriate according
to employees’ capabilities, work performance
and actual operation needs, which fully gave
staff opportunities to demonstrate their abilities
and potential so as to achieve the purpose of
nurturing staff’s abilities in various aspects and
improving overall work efficiency. We adhere
to internal promotion as the main principle and
external recruitment as support in case of a job
vacancy arises. Staff who worked diligently with
outstanding performance and abilities would be
given priority in promotion and development

opportunities.

Apart from the above training and promotion
practices, during the Year, the Group’s headquarter
undertook a project to establish the organizational
capabilities and human resources systems,
and started to explore and discuss the purpose
and future development direction of Xingfa
Research Institute. The Sanshui Company revised
and updated its “Internal Training Lecturer
Training System” and “College Student Training
Programme”, and conducted group leader
training, college students sailing series training,
internal trainer series training, and large lecture
series courses for different personnel, covering
management and communication skills, production
process, safety production knowledge, customer
complaint handling, departmental corporate
culture, and office skills, etc. The Henan Company
has formulated a system of “Learning from
Experienced Staff” to nourish the labor skills of
new employees.
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Anti-corruption

In order to enhance internal control mechanism and
eradicate corruptive behavior, the Group prepared
and carried out the anti-corruption and anti-bribery
code of conduct. Based on the practical operational
situation, we strengthened system supervision,
promoted anti-corruption system, and reinforced
supervision among key segments and staff in key
positions that are vulnerable to corruption. We have
also strengthened the awareness of the integrity
of party members and cadres by conducting

conferences on discipline education.

The code of conduct for anti-corruption and anti-
bribery is applicable to material procurement,
outsourced processing, facility projects, business
sales, equipment procurement and maintenance,
quality supervision, other economic activities,
and the process of management of individuals,
properties and belongings. At the same time,
all customers, suppliers, service providers and
underwriters who had business relationship with
the Group are also covered by the code, which
contained the following main aspects:

. Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-
bribery conduct for purchasing and sales
staff

. Requirements of capital management
involving anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct during the purchasing and selling

processes

. Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-
bribery conduct for accounting cashiers

. Regular check on evaluation system
. Whistle-blowing registration system
During the Reporting Period, there was no
misconduct or regulatory non-compliance related to

bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in

the Group.

6.5
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT AND
PARTICIPATION

Since its establishment, Xingfa Aluminium has always
adhered to the “reciprocate of where you get” spirit and
has not forgotten in fulfilling its social responsibility
and actively participate in charitable activities. Through
a variety of ways and initiatives to care for vulnerable
groups, participating in environmental public welfare
activities, charitable donations, and poverty alleviation,
and conduct practical actions to unify corporate
development goals and social responsibility. We have
set up a dedicated charitable fund and have actively
participated in social charitable donations in the name of
companies and individuals, and donated funds to socially
disadvantaged groups or charitable associations, and
constantly improving the corporate charitable and public
welfare regime. During the Year, the Group donated a total
of RMB380,000 for charities.

7.

I 3 E K 2 B

SBLE $in 56 A SZ LA — B ORI
W NS EATAL & B AL B S A
AR RMERM TSR 2
BB RN SR 16 B 2 S R Sk A BB SE
ZH 77 AR B > T AT B A SE 5 e
FUBE R AL & B0AE B A0 — B2« FfM 2 it
SLEUHE SR G RILAA A AR 2 2
TR HiX 22 A B 2635 4R S B) - 1) AL IR
T R 2% 5 2 R AR I AN B 2 5 A
BEN G R A E R AL H B
Y = LA 38 T -

Award ceremony of
Sanshui Company

as the “Employment
Practice Base for
College Graduates in
Sanshui District”

il LU T =K 43 A
s = K T AL
LA R S
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The Sanshui Company launched the charitable donation
activities of Nanzhuang Charity Association and Leping
Charity Association for poverty alleviation. The Chengdu
Company and government leaders of Shuangliu District
participated in the poverty alleviation activities in Batang
County, Sichuan Province. In response to the government’s
call for “Hundred Enterprises Helping Hundred Villages”
campaign targeted at poverty alleviation, it played
a pioneering role as a party member, and supported
Shuanghong Village in Tiantai Township, Yuanzhou
District, Yichun City. On January 14, 2019, Jiangxi
Company Party Branch conducted the warm-hearted
visit to the poverty-stricken activities under the theme
of “Loving Heart in cold winter and Earnestly Helping
poverty alleviation” and visited 22 poor households
and gave them consolation supplies and Chinese New
Year’s blessings. To support the development of poverty
alleviation industry in Xiexi Village, the Company also
donated RMB80,000 to Xiexi Village as an industrial
poverty alleviation fund. In order to solve the problem
of rugged roads and insufficient lighting at night in
Shuanghong village of Tiantai township, the Company
cooperated pragmatically with the village committee to
continue the road reconstruction and lighting project,
helping Shuanghong village to build a safe and bright

travelling environment at night.

In the Year, Sanshui Company was honoured as the
“Employment Practice Base for College Graduates
in Sanshui District” by Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau of Sanshui District, Foshan City as it
promoted local employment and practiced corporate
social responsibility by accepting internships for college
graduates to relieve employment pressure.

BB A E LB
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APPENDIX I: MAJOR AWARDS AND
HONOURS DURING THE YEAR

The Group was awarded the following major national awards and

honours during the Year:

B s — = 41 Py 2 22 A8 0 A 58

ASAE L RS F M A T G IH I SEE AN

Awards Sponsor Awardees Honours

AR 5% B4 LS RELW

CNIPA Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu)  “National Intellectual Property Superior Enterprises”
Co., Ltd.

I 5% R i W R B () A IR A A I IR 5% 0 B 3 2

CNIPA Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium “China Excellence Patent Award”
Co., Ltd.

I % ik 7 HE R JiE SR B G S A RS ) [ o B 2L 4 75 4%

Guangdong Association
for the Promotion of
Industrial Development and
Guangdong Manufacturers
Association

R A E R R e
[ R

People’s Government of
Guangdong Province

[ R A N R B

The Department of Industry
and Information Technology
of Guangdong Province

JEH A TS B AL BE

Market Supervision
Committee of Guangdong
Province

ERATGEELZAE®

Jiangxi Federation of Trade
Unions

BRI

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd.

JBE R L% g 26 A R

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd.

TR S A RN

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd.

JBE RS S AT PR
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
Co., Ltd.

i SRR S PR A T

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.

JiE TR B G S (VLG ) A BRA ]

“2018 Merit Manufacturing Enterprise for the 40
Anniversary of the Reform and Opening” (awarded
in 2019)

[20184F Bt 2 B A40 M A 3 SE T B A ] (20194 15)

“Science & Technology Progress Awards of Guangdong
Province (second prize)

[E R RO 88 5542 |

“Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Excellent

Partner (Manufacturing)”

(8 0 T8 A B P ()
“2018 Guangdong Province Enterprise of Observing
Contract and Valuing Credit” (awarded in 2019)

[20184F R A SF AR EE A AZE] (2019F#4)

“May 1st Labour Award of Jiangxi Province”

RINN-Fiear s L SN
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APPENDIX II: ENVIRONMENTAL
AND SOCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE

Pt % -« BRI B k7 TR Sk R4 AR

INDICATORS
Key performance indicators Unit 2019 2018 Remark
CEE s B L —F N —FN\E ik
Total Aluminum output ten thousand 61.7 52.6  Total output of the self-made
SP2E b A e tonnes products of four companies
F R located in Sanshui, Chengdu,
Jiangxi and Henan
oy =K R > L ~ g Y ]
AR AREMNBER-
Environment Aspect
TR 5% 1 W
Emissions
3 &7
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes 921 828  The production of aluminium
disposed of i products and staff number in
EREEY A 2019 increased, therefore total
volume of hazardous waste
Density of non-hazardous waste tonnes/ten 14.9 15.7 increased.
e R ) thousand tonnes 20194 E M A E B R B T A
MR,/ SO > R S A
A B e
Total hazardous waste tonnes 892 706  The production of aluminium
HEBEYAE L products in 2019 increased
and some of the hazardous
Density of hazardous waste tonnes/ten 14.5 134 waste generated in 2018 was
HEREEY thousand tonnes stored and treated in 2019,
Mg/ B therefore total volume and

density of hazardous waste
increased.

20194F 87 7 i A EE B3> HL
20184 7 A= 1 ¥ 4 A 5 B 52
YIF L 20194 JE 3] > IR A
R ) AR R N A T
e
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Key performance indicators Unit 2019 2018 Remark
ZEE S L0 —F N —F)0\E ik
Air pollution emission
PNRGE R
Total nitrogen oxide kg 16,121 46,193 In 2019, we have upgraded and
AELY & T35 renovated part of our exhaust
gas emission treatment
Total sulphur oxides kg 29,169 10,211 facilities. At the same time, as
ALY & T new production lines were put
into operation and production
Total particulate matters kg 32,564 14,621 processes were changed
IR T T3 during the Year, the types and
levels of emissions in different
Total VOCs kg 17,544 99,680 production processes were
HVOCsi: T3 different. Therefore, emissions
of nitrogen oxides, total VOCs
Total fluoride kg 710 4,493 and fluorides decreased, while
ALY A T emissions of sulfur oxides

and suspended particles
increased in 2019. However,
the emission concentration and
total amount of all pollutants
were both within the limits
required by the emission
standards.

20194 FRAM 35 55 7 185 500l 3 5

WEEAT T AR 0 [ WA AR
EAHHEE G EREE
TIp o REAE L
7 14 ok 9 e R O K AR
AT 201948 A L8 -
HVOCs K AL ¥ 1) B i i ek
Do i iR AL BRI
PERCE SN - (HATA 5 R
Pl Bl B R 4 34 A P A
HEFR AR A -
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Key performance indicators Unit

CEEES L0

2019
—F A

2018
—F )\

Remark

i

Wastewater discharge

JE& Kk ik
Total Chemical Oxygen Demand kg
L8 A T

Total Ammonia kg
ARAME T

Exceedance or other non-compliance times
situations W
A ) R ) s At S 5 B L

Fines and prosecutions due to times
inconformity with WH
environmental laws and regulations

PIAAF & BR AR i BT
B B EGE R

38,873

1,232

7,736

74

In 2019, we upgraded and

renovated part of our
wastewater treatment
facilities. At the same time,
as new production lines

were put into operation and
production processes were
changed during the Year, the
types and levels of emissions
in different production
processes were different.
The discharge of wastewater
in some processes increased
and the discharge standard
of local environmental
protection departments was
loosened. Therefore, emissions
of pollutants increased in
2019. However, the emission
concentration and total amount
of all pollutants were both
within the limits required by
the emission standards.

20194 FRAM #5343 5 K il B 5%

WiEAT T IR R FEAR AR
FE A 38 A A A A R
TRPEs A s > RIR A T
119 HE ik oy R R B OK F R
[ > F 4> T K HE i 1
LB BR3P A P g A e
A P RCE  RIE20194F 75 e 4
PERCE SN < (HATA 5 M0/
P BE S 4 2 A R RO
e R FRAE A
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Key performance indicators Unit 2019 2018 Remark
ZEE S L0 —F N —F)0\E ik
Use of resources
IR BE
Total energy consumption kWh 942,347,726 924,964,861  Energy includes electricity and
REVR I FE4R TR natural gas, among which,
the calculation of natural
Energy consumption density kWh/ten 15,273,059 17,584,883 gas is made by reference to
RE V5 TH 6 % 2 thousand tonnes the conversion factor in the
T E IR/ H “Guidelines on the Calculation
Method and Reporting of
Total purchase of electricity kWh 286,416,837 275,279,413 Greenhouse Gas Emission by
EE MR TRy Other Industries”.
REVR B0 16 T8 1A R AR5 Hopr s
Consumption density kWh/ten 4,462,088 5,233,449 RARMFHSET (L%
MAE®EE thousand tonnes FoA A7 3 A 3 T 2% SR HE L
T I,/ B B I7 ik B 1R )
HECES
Total natural gas usage volume S K 60,654,779 60,077,255
KAFRAH & The increase in energy
consumption was due to the
Density of Natural Gas Usage m?¥/ten thousand 983,060 1,142,153 increase in the output of
RIRF =% tonnes aluminium products and staff
SOk E W headcount in 2019.
20194 E M AEEBMA T A
SO > TR RE VR E FE A
Jr 5 hm
Total water consumption tonnes 3,823,988 3,885,915
K A8 & Ui
Water density tonnes/ten 61,977 73,877

K %

thousand tonnes

M,/ M
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JERERHEER 661 (Angadt)

Key performance indicators Unit 2019 2018 Remark
CEEESE B AL —F 0 —FN\E ik
Packing materials used tonnes 22,638 16,291  We have updated and improved
(packing papers such as Wi the statistical methods for
carton and kraft paper etc.) packaging materials, therefore
AL R the statistical information for
(HRHH 2R AR AR 2018 was updated. In 2019,
the production of aluminum
Density of packaging materials tonnes/ten 366.9 309.7 products had increased and the
(packing papers such as thousand tonnes quality of packaging materials
carton and kraft paper etc.) W, A selected were relatively thick
LS bR and heavy, hence the usage
(HRH 2R AR E AR volume and density increased.
A ES G M R BT R 7
Usage of packaging materials tonnes 5,872 4,434 11T ERRSE S BIE S
(Others, including polyethylene Ui FF 720184 1 BdE - 20194
wool, protective membrane, BEEE AR E RN AR
condensed membrane, self- B SE B LT R T
adhesive, transparent tape and I P 2 0 28 T R o o
non-woven cloth)
WEMENE (b G2 HM -
RIS~ AR IR - BORE IS I
8~ i i)
Density of packaging materials tonnes/ten 95.2 84.3
(Others, including polyethylene thousand tonnes
wool, protective membrane, Ly |
condensed membrane, self-
adhesive plastic, transparent tape
and nonwoven cloth)
BRI B (At AF2 IR
ORI~ W I~ ORI
TR W)
Recycling of raw material tonnes 30,970 39,319
(such as aluminium) A
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Key performance indicators Unit 2019 2018 Remark
CEEE S L0 —F N —F)0\E ik
Social Aspect
&
Employment
1 %
Total number of employees number of people 7,652 7,228
A B
By gender
i 3
Male number of people 6,022 5,655
Bk
Female number of people 1,630 1,573
/g N
By age
A B 7
16-30 number of people 2,209 2,210
16-305%
31-50 number of people 4,970 4,643
31-505% N
>50 number of people 473 375
>50 N
By employment type
32 4 AR S8 8 7
Full-time employees number of people 7,631 7,228
EXER
Contract labour or number of people 21 0
part-time employees N
A IR E R A
Turnover rate % 36.8 36.3

i Bk R
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Unit
AL

2019

—ENE

2018
—F )\

Remark

i ik

Health and Safety
i B % &
Number of work-related fatality

ERR(/ AN i

Number of work-related injuries

N T AR 22 155 N8

Number of working days
lost due to work-related injuries

N T3 T A A

Fines and prosecutions due to
inconformity with laws and
regulations related to health and
safety

DRLASAF  ft i B 2 2 A B e T
B R EGE

number of people

N

number of people

days
H

times
W

61

4,195

23

1,758

The statistical information

on work-related injuries
disclosed before 2019 was
subject to the confirmation

by social security bureau,

thus excluding those with
minor injuries that required no
hospitalisation and treatment.
To further strengthen our
safety management, the
security and environmental
protection department of the
Group has established a new
Safety Performance, Work
Incidents and Rules Violation
Assessment System during the
Year, requiring each branch
company and subsidiary to
include minor injuries due

to minor incidents under the
work-related injuries category.
Therefore, the number of
work-related injuries disclosed
in the 2019 statistical
information increased
significantly over last year.

20194F Z Al 4 wt- 48 25 9 1455 %L

TR LLE A (R R 8 E 1) T
157 F e > R 2R — IR A
(AHHBERR) - BiE—F
TIN5 B A > A A B A
LRBRRIHIE TR (&L
EEHC FHEEEH
) BERE D TRAS—
Al S O SO — M B
BN TAG S U R # - 7
BE20194 i 7t e 1) T A5 %K
PREE A A KR I -
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Remark

i ik

Key performance indicators Unit 2019 2018
ZEE e A —F N — %)\
Development and training
B R 3%l
Total training hours hours 242 424 116,762
A I IR IINF
Senior management hours 25 16
1 A B IV
General management hours 14 11
— i S N
Non-management hours 33 16
R P N
Labour Standard
& T
Fines and prosecutions times 0 0
due to inconformity with laws and WH

regulations related to
labour standard

IS AF 6 A B 25 T3 R
B R B

Product Responsibility
7 dh B
Fines and prosecutions due to times 0 0
inconformity with laws and g
regulations related to product
responsibility
RIS A 63 it A 0 2 R 0 AR
B KGR

New products and technical patents cases 157 153
acquired during the Year 1

A TRVHE 71O B FE B Al A

Total number of national patents cases 1,325 1,168
acquired i
EREIET P SIE T

Anti-corruption

R 815

Legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against
the issuer or employees

HEAT N B2 i
3 B &5 09 2005 df s R AT

2
Az
w

In 2019, training hours were
increased due to our greater
efforts in strengthening the
staff training at all levels.

2019F HM M T AEHE T
B BT3B R M 0 e
Jr 5o
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APPENDIX III: INDEX OF HKEX ESG
REPORTING GUIDE

s

BB A E LB

ok = A i CBRBE - L@ M
AR5 K51

Aspects Section Remarks
i i ffi &k
A Environmental Scope ¥ 5 i I
Aspect Al Emissions 4.1 Emissions Management
JE AL e 41 HemwmEm
(a) Policies; and
(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and nonhazardous waste.
A R B i 2 SR B 1 K B 3 4 B
IERAREEN S £ & /LI X K
(a) BORS &
(b) BESFEEEAT NA TR MBI
1l
KPI ALl The types of emissions and respective emissions Appendix II: Environmental and
Syt data Social Key Performance Indicators
All Y iy o Tl K B B Wi Bk — - BRI Bk € B S AR U AR
KPIAL.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) - This performance
R B A U4 and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit indicator is not the
Al2 of production volume, per facility). most material aspect of

% SR AR PR R (DAMERH ) S (g ) )
JEE (DA e B AL~ R JH B R )

the Group during the
Year. We will update
according to relevant
regulations in future.

AR AR BE TR AR BN A
B iR R > T
P9 46 $i AT B UL A
AR 0
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Aspects
i

Section Remarks
4] i ik

KPI AL3
Pl 2 S e
Al3

KPIAl.4
W 8 2 A A
Al4

KPIALS
Wl U A 1
ALS

KPIAL6
Il 8 5 A A
AL6

Aspect A2
Ji& il A2

KPI A2.1
Il i 25 A AR
A2.1

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

S EE A AR (DAMIREE) & (fE
M) R (I bL E e B B E R )

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

JiT AR S E R A (DAMEETEE) K (s
M) R (DL E AL RO R )

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved

A 20 ARG DR 0 A5 B A R

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

il B A R A O i~ AR R
A it T BT A R

Use of Resources

IR B

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.
AR B IR (LS RE I ~ K B AR I AT R
) B R

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BRIy 0 L R/ UM BRI (I R
B ) BFEE (DAT8 T RO RH3) R (i
DU e BB~ B TR R

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

BBk — - BRI AL B S AR CIR AR

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

Wi ok —  BROE S A & B S SUMUIR AR

4.1 Emissions Management

4.1 P & A

4.1 Emissions Management

41 P s

4.2 Use of Resources

42 B

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

BBk — - BRI AL 6 B S AR AOIR 1
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Aspects
i

Section

i i

BB A E LB

Remarks

i ik

KPI A2.2
I 2 A A
A22

KPI A2.3
W S A A
A23

KPI A2.4
W 2 A A
A24

KPIA2.5
el B U A 1R
A25

Aspect A3
JE A3

KPI A3.1
W 8 2 A A
A3.1

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
HFEK R ROB I (WD R AL B
GBEY

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

A gt A TR T 2 B A R

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

2t KR T K U B A AR B DL R T
JHK i w1 81 B i A AR

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SRS B P LS bR AR R (UMD B
(T 1)) A B A

Environment and Natural Resources

RERRRER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

AR BEAT N B BRI B K R R R
) B3R

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the action taken to manage them.
i 70 S5 1 ) B B S K R VR A K
KE RS A B BT E)

Appendix II: Environmental and

Social Key Performance Indicators

BBk — - BRI DAL S AR R

4.2
4.2

4.2
4.2

Use of Resources

BT

Use of Resources

R

Appendix II: Environmental and

Social Key Performance Indicators

Wi ok —  BROE SR & B GTUIE AR

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

Green and Low-carbon
Operation

Ak G R IR

Green and Low-carbon
Operation

RO e
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Aspects
i

Section Remarks

i i fi ik

B

Aspect B1
J& HB1

KPIB1.1
W 2 A A
Bl.1

KPIBI.1
Il 8 2 A A
B1.2

Aspect B2
J& i B2

Social Scope & £ i K

Employment
i

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination,
and other benefits and welfare

A TR T R - T P AR R

P Z ool - RO DL R A

YEEEbE

(a) BUR s &

OE:SEEGUNEPS £ 101l S Es)
6 & R

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region

SRR ~ AR R ~ A B AL Bt [ )2 1 4
B

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region

R ~ AF B AR Bt [ ) 23 19 4 B K HE

e B Bl % 4
Health and Safety

(a) Policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

A B PR 22 A T AR BRI B O e 0 B S B o

P EH

() EHG R

(b)  RESFEEAT A R B B

LB R

6.1 Guaranteeing Employees’
Benefits

6.1  BITHEMRE

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

Wi ok —  BROE SR & B S SIE AR

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

Wik —  BROE SR & B SIE AR

6.3 Occupational Health and
Safety
63  MRMEREELE
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BRYE | KBRS

Aspects
i

Section Remarks

i i i ik

KPI B2.1
I 2 A A
B2.1

KPI B2.2
Il 2 A A
B2.2

KPI B2.3
W S A A
B2.3

Aspect B3
JE B3

KPI B3.1
I 2 A A
B3.1

KPI B3.2
Wl 2 2 i A
B3.2

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

ERR(ECA I ANEPN (9q:&:

Lost days due to work injury.

HT A5 T H 8

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

i 21 bR A S (R B2 R I - L SR B
AT R BRI

Development and Training

B S5

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

BBk — - BRI DAL S AR IR AR

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

BBk — - BRUE DAt S AR AR

6.3 Occupational Health and
Safety
6.3  EMRERZ2

6.4 Development and Training

6.4  HE LI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

skills for discharging duties at work. Description of

training activities.
A B U T4 BV AT TR IR B Rk R RE R
B o Ak B I )

Percentage of trained employees by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management, etc.)

FVE R B AR BRI (s R4S SR - v AR
&4 ) B 73 ) Z I B A 3 H

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category

TR R K R BT #1093 1542 1R B 52 U I
T

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

BBk - B A € B S RO 1

Appendix II: Environmental and
Social Key Performance Indicators

Wi ok = BR O SR & B SUIE AR
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Aspects
i

Section

i i

Remarks

fi ik

Aspect B4
J& i B4

KPI B4.1
I 2 2 A A
B4.1

KPI B4.2
Wl U A A
B4.2

Aspect B5
J& i BS

KPI B5.1
Il 8 5 A A
BS.1

KPI B5.2
I 2 S A R
BS5.2

Labour Standard
5 TR

(a) Policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

AR IEE TR H 5 T

(a) B )

(b) ST EFEAT A\ A H R R A0 R B o e S
1 A

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
i 200 A AR 91 Y i s L e 6 BE T % R o

I

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

A 2L 7E % A B DB 3 BR AT R 1 DL BT R B
9 25 B

Supply Chain Management
ik W 9 45 B

Policies on managing environmental and social

risks of the supply chain.
AR LA A 1 BROE R AL L B BURE

Number of suppliers by geographical region
i o [ ) 23 1 3 6

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

A B AR A A A e AT A B
B BB - LKA B O AT S
Irik

6.2 Labour Standard
6.2 A LHER

6.2 Labour Standard
62  HTHEH

6.2 Labour Standard
6.2 B THEH

5.1 Sustainable Supply Chain
51 ARG

5.1 Sustainable Supply Chain
51 AR
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BB A E LB

Aspects Section Remarks
i i i ik
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility 5.2 Product and Services
JE T B6 2 il B AR 52 FEABLREE
Percentage of sold or delivered products
recalled due to safety and health reasons
5 B C A 2 i AR e ) % 4 B R T
T ZE 2] i ) 7 L
KPI B6.1 Policies and compliance with relevant laws and 5.2 Product and Services
R B A i A A regulations that have a significant impact on the 5.2 & § SLRFS
Bé6.1 issuer relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of
redress.
B8 B R AL o D R ) R R A~ R
8 D L 2 B L R ROy o B R AT A
R B ) TR DL R ST AR B R A B
KPI B6.2 Number of product and service related -
R S A 84 complaints received and how they are dealt
B6.2 with.
R RS E i B 1Y B DA e Sy
%
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing 5.2 Product and Services
R B A 04 and protecting intellectual property rights. 5.2 JEE it B
B6.3 i 2t BRL A e % D Rk AT IR ) 0
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and 5.2 Product and Services
PR S recall procedures 5.2 JEE it B
B6.4 i 20 E B R B i R R
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and 5.2 Product and Services
PR S B privacy policies, how they are implemented and 52 BB
B6.5 monitored.

it I 2 RO I I B BORE - DA A B L

7 B B 507 %
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Aspects Section Remarks
i G £ ik
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption 6.5 Anti-corruption
J& i B7 R &5 6.5 R

Policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

A B 7 0 B B3R R S DR R R R R AT
AT K5 B A SR T A B s e AR

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Appendix II: Environmental and
R B Ak A corrupt practices brought against the issuer or Social Key Performance Indicators
B7.1 its employees during the Reporting Period and B 8% = BRI o AL T B A A A I

the outcomes of the cases.
i TR AT AN LR B R Bl R A
BTG TR BB R A RS R

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and 6.5 Anti-corruption
R S A 84 whistleblowing procedures, how they are 6.5 S B
B7.2 implemented and monitored.
At By A e S SRR AR Y > A B B AT I B
BIrik
Aspect B8 Community Investment 7 Community Investment and
JE i B8 A I 4 Participation

7. R -gp il
Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’
interests.
AL R 2 BT W4T 8 e AL
o TR e R S 0 ) % R A IR R i Y B

i
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 7 Community Investment and
W] S A AU A A environmental concerns, labour needs, health, Participation
B8.1 culture, sport). 1. M IR 4 B S B
HEFREE (INEE RERE S LE
R fpe it #@H)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to 7 Community Investment and
BASEAUAETE the focus area. Participation

BS.2 7 T 0 0 A 0 Y O S (< B IR ) 7. A1 4 B2 B
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

KpME

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 175 to 339,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“TASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

fo 3 B 85 e A6 2 M A B

3 7 A% B
B 5 B S M A PR 2 O
(% B 42 7 5 2 Wl o 19 A R 2 )

=~
=
I

AL (LA A [ 31 1) 2wt a0 HOR 55175
339 B A L% g SE R SR IR | (DA R [ 35
/\7J ) Be FCHH @ 2w (DA T S [ M ) AR

BB RE S WM H MRS —F - UE
H +— E%%A%%%ﬁ% LR E 5% H LA
E’JAVTIII Tt 2% ~ &7 le:l g S HAth A T U 4 % Z?
A%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%AﬁﬁﬁE% VA R 55 W B
R ML TS e R EUOR A

AN TE S - 5% 55 55 G B R AR 9 I B & 5t e
I 2= B Al Y I 58 o 5 s B L)) 0B o
*ﬁbﬂﬁ&ﬂﬂ&T%%@E\yi E+=-ZH=+—H

155 BABIR UL S B &% H R AR B ) &5 A B 3
fﬁ&‘m/\ﬁiowi’ﬂfa%mﬂa{{% o A A1)
) B 5 R % B A A -
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

p=R 7N E

A O ARDR A s w2 G A R (ol o T
) AT A A o BAMAE 5% 5 YE R R ORYE M AL C
TEAHR A [ SR AL 8 A 5 B 5 S 3R 119 2
1o AR — 2 W - R E R A
MR B (RSB R RIE 7 ST D (BT fi RS T
S L) DA R BELFR A 36 B 2 e I A 5 U S S R A A
R B B A T R - A M 2 R R AR 3 B AT
T U A PR DL S ) o H A S S T AT
FAMAAT - BA BT A 5 1) 2 3 A AR T A B
i 7 T AT B B T AR LR o

I3 Bt 7 Wt IR

I A 7 2 TR AR R AT 9 SR B - B A
W55 & B R ) B R e 2 EE A IR o g S
TEURAE FAM B w48 10 A PV R St HL it B
SR AEAT E BR Y o FoAM AN & i Lo AR (it B
MR-

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

W ik T R oy B K R

and the accounting policies in Note 1(u).

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements 752 [M45 4 IR M 73 % & 7 B % [ it 1(u)

The Key Audit Matter
B o 3% 5t 0H

How the matter was addressed in our audit

F A 9 2 4 oy ) BE % IR

Revenue mainly comprises sales of aluminium profiles to
distributors and other customers in a variety of end-user
markets.

Wi 4t 2 BEAAC A 1) % T A% i T 35 2 40 8 R CHC AL %S 8
B SRR

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
from distributor arrangements included the following:
FeAM 1 DL AL 23 8 7 22 PE 2 Wi o A R Y R R HAE T B A
PATH %38 -
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Key audit matters (continued)

fo 3 B 85 e A6 2 M A B

[ o 7 ik FIH ()

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

W i T oy Y K R

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in Note 1(u).

AE2 [ 45 5 TR R W A3 R & G B 7t 1 (u) -

The Key Audit Matter
B o % 5 0H

How the matter was addressed in our audit

F A B S oy R P 5

Sales to distributors accounted for approximately 55% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. Each year, the Group
enters into a framework distribution agreement with each
distributor and sells its products in accordance with the
terms of separate purchase orders. Once the products are
delivered to the location designated by the distributor,
the control of the goods are considered to have been
transferred to the distributor and revenue is recognised.

Ti] 73 8 PR 2 5 65 A1 5 4R B4R TR W45 4055 % o #5144
L4573 B T AT S AE SR 00 B Wil vl AR 4 A% PR I T B 2 Ak
AN FE i o — ELEE i ST 00 S T 4R E B0 b B I &
sty F4 42 1] HE UL 2% MRS T 0 B 7 I B I e SR i i

We identified the recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and therefore
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

FAM 5t 7 1 7 4 P 2 i e R A R R R
2 Wi ) 3 4R P B s R BB AR 2 — Eﬁuﬂ:%@@%ﬁ
AR A % PR IR 3 L 2 B EL B T I A A [ AR

fgr o

. assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls which govern revenue recognition;

. A B I A E R 2 A L R A TS B R
FE HOE FEAT RO

. reading distribution agreements entered into with
distributors, on a sample basis, and considering
whether any agreements contain terms permitting
the distributors to make sales returns;

. il B [ B B2 B P T oL 2 o B M ek 0 B R
A AT AT W e £ 5 U0 T B ROR R 2 K

. for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the related
goods delivery notes, which had been signed
and dated by the distributors as evidence of their
receipt of the goods, to assess if the related revenue
had been recognised in the appropriate financial
period on the basis of the terms of sale as set out
in the distribution agreements and the terms of the
purchase orders; and

. HUR AF R IR O Bk 2 WA 52 5 BRAS T 5 > A A7
PR S B B (LT o 2 0 80 8 Qe W A LA i
BRE) - UL A B dicdi 2 15 O R 98 20 89 Hh ok
i S 22 G A R S B B TR A O T O A S
WA 7 LA RE s B

. inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.

. A A HCH 0 0 s BT VR R R T B R R e A
L ] A R R R Y AL - I o R A 1 BRLAH
B SCPRAEAT L
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Key audit matters (continued)

o o 7 kIR ()

Loss allowance for trade receivables

A2 B IR W ke K 4 s 1 958

Refer to Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 1(k).

7 2 ] A B P TR R I 28(a) J it LA B A1 (k)

The Key Audit Matter
B ot 7% 5t 0H

How the matter was addressed in our audit

F A B w0 oy pE P %

The carrying value of the Group’s net trade receivables as
at 31 December 2019 totalled RMB2,074,826,000, net of
loss allowance of RMB91,066,000.
AZFE—JUETZH = —H o BEEAR S R
FEMR T (B (A8 11 B s 1R 18 A N R °91,066,0000C ) & 36 2%
A R #2,074,826,0007C °

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit loss, based on ageing of the
receivables and loss rate, for the receivables which existed
during the reporting periods in which IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” was applicable. According to the experience
of the Group, the loss patterns for different customers are
not significantly different and therefore, the receivables
are not segmented for the purpose for measurement of loss
allowance.

5 A AL 52 R S I ) R s 1 R R AR R A I
HI15 B0 H A R e I R B A T R B 5% [ <
TR ] 0 0 TR T B s 1R B A o AR AR A
HLTE ) AE B TR BT Y e 1R A Y I e R R B IR A
AFG B SR S ST R 3 4 DAt s 1R A A

Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade
receivables included the following:

FoAM FY LA ST A 22 T B SR R 22 Ml 1R 48 4 B0 R AR )Y R
FELUT &8 :

. obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and estimate of expected credit
losses and making related allowances;

. TR KRG A B A B B~ GBI e TE A B
s TRUA R S i A AR T 48 A < R R R R B R
o H M X EAT RO

. obtaining an understanding on the key data
and assumptions of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including
the historical default data and the assumptions
involved in management’s estimated loss rate;

. TR T PR T 0 R S R % T I AE B sl TR
TR AR s > 6 458 A 1 T O % B A s 1R
W AR
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Key audit matters (continued)

fo 3 B 85 e A6 2 M A B

[ o 7 ik FIH ()

Loss allowance for trade receivables

22 5 W W MR K R s 4 458 A

Refer to Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies in Note 1(k).

75 2 [ 45 B T TR R I 28(a) J B it A B AE 1 (k) °

The Key Audit Matter
B o % 5 0H

How the matter was addressed in our audit

F A B S oy R P 5

We identified loss allowance for trade receivables as a key
audit matter because trade receivables and loss allowance
are material to the Group and because the recognition of
expected credit losses is inherently subjective and requires
the exercise of significant management judgement.

FAMY 54 52 oy B W SR S ) s 8985 A bl ) 5 B SO
5L TRL 2 52 5 G A e ok I Ml 8 93 4 3 5 4 o) )i o B %
A5 B0 1810 B2 AFTE N AE AN REE TR B BRI
L ) g -

. assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical
default data and evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking
information;

. SR 0 A LT Y AR BSR4 B ) R (B
a2 T TH s SO A E Al R AT A R 1 e 1R AR
% AL IR D0 A I R R A T 3 ) A
AT AR LR M 18 1 4 0 Y S B

. assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing category by
comparing individual items with underlying sales
invoices; and

. 1 2 7 IR AT R R B 1) 78 S T ) B A B 8 B 2
352 LA > B P A0 A R R e ¥k o5 TR JEL I 2 5 20
20 E R IR BT &

. comparing, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from debtors subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade receivable balances at 31
December 2019 with bank statements and relevant
underlying documentation.

. Dbt A — L~ FE+ 2 =+ —HA=x%
y ME SR A5 B v 7% JF BB A T2 A48 ROAR AE M5 A i
I 10 3 M SR AT ) R B RO R S A

169



170

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 2% 458 % 2 iR AR A
Annual Report 2019 F#f

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 11 B 85 e A 2 M A B e

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

B 11 0 B e B I B e 4 DA Ab
Elg'ﬁ;4§\

FERETHAMERAR
oA A2 A B
9 A% R o

'ﬂijt,flil ;u@,?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ/\g
’ @T@?ﬁ%’* S5 e & S 3R AM

FRAM 3B 5 5 BB R 19 2 S0 AN R 3 AR B
FAM IR A B 5% 5 HAL A5 BB RAL D A0 B i &5

3
o

A e AN B ARG MBS ORI L AN AR
] i A 5 8 > FE L AR o > B R AR B RS
LA B i 3 TR AE R A BT TR 91
DUAT A B RIS A8 5 8 00T A A K 8 ok L Y 1

EJRFAM CBAT Y TAE > 2R IR A HADE R
FETE B R SRR UL > T H E MG ZHH 8
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Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

fo 3 B 85 e A6 2 M A B

o3 AR B B R H R

IF

AL

R A TR e e & B e i
P B 5 i it e D) R (A ARG A 8 2
SR BT TR B AR S B IR - B R A
Iy o8 2 BV 5 I 2 1) BB 4 A A T o T SR 8 R
T 25 304 R St R O 5 1 oA T A o R

TE R A 5 5 R ey - B 2 BT AT AN AR B
REAC B IO RE ) o I 7E T DL e B A A
A B A I - DA R R A AR B e T R B
A RO AR i AR 1k AR B A
o B B PR R AR T 5

ot 22 B i B 2 A B B A A S
AR F AT

2 i R B A% B R R I Y
HIE

FAM A9 B R A B R R B A AE
PR YT B T 2 B O B R R BT B
PR > Sl R 358 AP R A A S A o T
4 1] R G SRR A o BR G DAL > AP B i i AN T
FAE G A Y 2 o FAM MR AN B0 A i 5 B R 2 > AT
fr oA N - 5 SOR P IR BT -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

A% SR ok 7 ST A B R AR R Y

BAT (41

o BILOR R R KT 9 R A HON AR S R IR
A TR AT BB T R E R B W Ot
A7 7E I A BE 8 B o 85 W BRI AT DL o SRR B R 5
A > QTSR BT A I AR AR T R R
Ao U R A8 T 5 ORE U 3  1R h  E a
PesE > U IR 10 B R R AL T AR O

TEMR IR R FFRHELD E1T RSB > 3
3 T S - PR A T SRR RE R o AN
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. sl P 60T A A SO B R T R A
B i A 7 B R S i B Y SRR, - et
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BLRE o th MRFEATREW oA il W
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

Annual Report 2019 F %R

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

o 11 B 85 e A 2 M A B e

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

f 7 16 i R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-FNF+ZH="A—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LA RIS R )
2019 2018
“ELE T 4
(Note)
(Mt )
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt it AR T NERW¥For
Revenue BEH 3 11,280,848 9,924,517
Cost of sales $H AR (9,791,036) (8,573,745)
Gross profit EAH 1,489,812 1,350,772
Other income HoAthlf £ 4 105,959 54,939
Distribution costs 7 85 AR (293,075) (278,949)
Administrative expenses TTECBH % (430,313) (360,422)
Profit from operations 2 s M 872,383 766,340
Finance costs AR B AR 5(a) (151,480) (164,221)
Share of profit of an associate A A — [H Bk 2 A F ) s ) 15 2,567 5,797
Profit before taxation 3 56 il % A1 5 723,470 607,916
Income tax T 1580 6 (120,864) (113,938)
Profit for the year 4 JE 163 602,606 493,978
Attributable to: PLF AN L REAN -
Equity shareholders of the Company 48 2% ] # ti5 F 3K 606,109 495,230
Non-controlling interests I 2 B B 5 (3,503) (1,252)
Profit for the year AF JE RE 602,606 493,978
Earnings per share 5 Ji &R 10
Basic (RMB yuan) HEA (AR 1.45 1.18
Diluted (RMB yuan) HEH (NRMIT) 1.45 1.18

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the

comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

The notes on pages 182 to 339 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

Note 27(b).

Mfat s ARBEER ZE —JUE— A — H RSB T 8
T UCHE T 1B [ B A L B 169% o AR IR L
Jrik > R R G M 5 o M EEL(C) o

BE182E339H 2 M5k £ 5% 5 WA S R £ 1 — &Ry
AN ) RE £ T SR A A R R R 2 AT RS R

B EE27(b) o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
iy 48 2 Mt 4 W g %

For the year ended 31 December 2019
#HE-FNFES A= —HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(KN RS )
2019 2018
—F A TR
(Note)
(Bt L)
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
Jidza AR T NRWEF T
Profit for the year 4R BE W A 602606 493,978
Other comprehensive income for T E B RHMAE Z
the year may be A BE L i 2 i WY A -
reclassified to profit or loss: 9
Exchange differences on translation 2 % o 3 A & LA
of financial statements of (TP ER ) PSR ETS 2
operations outside the People’s P B R 6 2 T 50 55 %H
Republic of China (the “PRC”) (742) 3,042
Cash flow hedge: net movement B U B
in the hedging reserve 3 i A 52 B VR (2) -
Other comprehensive income A B R b A T WAL 4
for the year (744) 3,042
Total comprehensive income AP B 4 TR 45 4B A
for the year 601,862 497,020
Attributable to: PLF N HEAN -
Equity shareholders of the Company 7452\ & K i i 5 605,365 498,272
Non-controlling interests IE H2 A 5 (3,503) (1,252)
Total comprehensive income 4R J5 4 T W AR AR A
for the year 601,862 497,020

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using M7 - ALK ZF—JL4E— A — H KA ZETEH

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the T2 U FH I B 5 s A R T B 16 9% o AR BRI
comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c). Jrik s nl L R 4 FE G o BB AR 1(c) o

The notes on pages 182 to 339 form part of these financial 51825339 X Mk /4 5% 5 M B R g — ¥ 1y
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

%50 B IR Ol 3R
At 31 December 2019
W ZE—=NFEfZH=1T—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI R )
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
R TR AR
+=ZH=+—H +_H=1+—H
(Note)
(B L)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 7 ANR¥ T AR ¥ET o
Non-current assets I Ui B B

Investment property WEYE 11 71,694 -
Property, plant and equipment ERY & 11 2,188,673 1,952,185
2,260,367 1,952,185
Right-of-use assets i I RE & 12 358,620 -
Lease prepayments TE AT L4 13 - 365,114
Interest in an associate /NI 15 5,791 21,140
Deferred tax assets 0% S 3 JH 26(b) 43,641 38,423
2,668,419 2,376,862

Current assets B
Inventories and other contract costs 7 £ & HAth & & il 4% 16 1,134,375 1,144,044
Trade and other receivables 22 5y Be F Al B iR IE 17 3,103,556 2,792,028
Pledged deposits [T UREE 18 327,037 346,762
Cash and cash equivalents B4 K B S ) 19 528,003 448,787
5,092,971 4,731,621

Current liabilities i B £ 1
Trade and other payables 38 Gy B oAb JRE AT 30H 20 2,738,786 2,451,474
Contract liabilities G R A 21 164,027 218,248
Loans and borrowings B I R 22 1,284,005 1,467,523
Lease liabilities 5 £ 23 6,907 -
Current taxation R A B T 26(a) 68,648 52,806
4,262,373 4,190,051

Net current assets

Ui B % E 830,598 541,570
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A M EHRDLE

At 31 December 2019
WZFE—NFTZHA=1—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS8R )

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
ZEJuE & 4
+ZA=Z=+—R" +=ZH=1T—H
(Note)
(Btat)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR T AR ¥ET T
Total assets less current liabilities 4 % 7 I i B) £1 % 3,499,017 2,918,432
Non-current liabilities I B A 1R
Loans and borrowings B G B 22 414,407 378,204
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 13,921 -
Deferred income PEIE WA 24 20,200 30,983
Deferred tax liability I A8 i 1 B i 26(b) 11,609 5,387
460,137 414,574
Net assets ¥ 3,038,880 2,503,858
Capital and reserves JBe A B fili
Share capital e As 27 3,731 3,731
Reserves GG 3,034,604 2,500,379
Total equity attributable to AR 2 W) RE A R
equity shareholders of JRE A HE %5 48 B
the Company 3,038,335 2,504,110
Non-controlling interests I T It HE A 545 (252)
Total equity HE £ 48 %0 3,038,880 2,503,858
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using Mt - AREE R ZF—JL4E— H — H A ST E W

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

March 2020.

Liu Libin
LA
Chairman

E

The notes on pages 182 to 339 form part of these financial

statements.

TR T UCE I R B 5 A SR 16 9% o MR UL
7 A HOBCEOR R S E B o BB E1(c) ©

AZET
Tl -

Liao Yuqing
LEN

Executive Director

HITEF

TAEZH AN AR R o

1824339 H X M ik A s 5 MBS R A0 — 30 0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o B o ) 3R
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BEF—NFEF ZH=1—HILFEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LU RS )
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KATREE RN
Non-
Share Share Capital Other Statutory Exchange Hedge Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve Teserve Teserves Teserve Teserve earnings Total interests equity
Bk RBER WARG  JURRE  deRE ERBE O EWEE  REEA At ki Al
Note RyB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RVB 000 RMB000 RMB000
liFi3 AGETE  ARETL  ARKTLE  ARKTL  ARETT  ARKTL  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETL  ARETE  ARKTL
Note 27(c) - Note 27(d)i) -~ Note 27(d)fiii) ~ Note 27(d)fii) -~ Note 27(d)fiv) ~ Note 27(d)fy) ~ Note 27(d)fvi)
Wiz Kamen Bimosn  BEmem W Kem Bidm)
Balance at 1 January 2018 REF-NE-f-H &R 31 179,368 6,200 209822 15853 (3,503) - 1434089 2,075,760 - 2,075,760
Changes in equity for 2018: R NEEERE:
Profit for the year FREEA - - - - - - - 495230 495230 (1.252) 193,978
Other comprehensive income Hib2mEiE - - - - - 3042 - - 3042 - 3042
Total comprehensive income AlREAE - - - - - 304 - 495230 980m (1252) 49700
Employees” share option scheme [EE MR 25(b) - - 561 - - - - - 561 - 561
Appropriation to reserves HRsfE - - - - 41,089 - - (41,089) - - -
Captal injecton of non-controlling interest PB4 il e R & 1
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Dividend approved in respect of BEEEEREHRE
the previous year 27(b) - - - - - - - (70.483) (70.483) - (70483)
Balance at 31 December 2018 and REZ-VEFZR=H-RR
1 January 2019 SEAE-A-R2ER 3731 179,568 6,761 209822 286942 (461) - 1817147 2504110 (25 2503858
Changes in equity for 2019: CEhEERES:
Profi for the year R - - - - - - - 606,109 606,109 (3,303) 602,606
Other comprehensive fncome A ERE - - - - - (14) 1) - (144) - (144)
Total comprehensive income RENESER - - - - - (142) bl 606,109 605,365 (3.503) 601,862
Employees” share option scheme [ B B BeAE B 25(b) - - 2305 - - - - - 2305 - 2305
Appropriation o reserves HEERE - - - - 45336 - - (45,536) - - -
Capita njection of non-controlling nterest {4 &1 e P i 1 &
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 4300 4300
Dividend approved i respect of BEEEERENRS
the previous year 27b) - - - - - - - (73.465) (73.465) - (73,465)
Balance at 31 December 2019 REF-0E
LS nibd ] 4 XA} 179,568 9,086 209822 32478 (1,203) () 2304855 3,038,335 45 3,038,880

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

The notes on pages 182 to 339 form part of these financial

statements.

BaE s RGO = F—JUE— A — AR ETE
W) 3 00 20 D 1 o A B 2B 16 9% o AR IR
W7 o LB ORI R T B o BB RE1(c) o

182 FE339H X M 5k £ 5% S B £ 1 — B4y
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

maBlaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BEZFE-NFEL A=At —HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LI RHIR)
2019 2018
ZEF TE— )\
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W7t ANR¥ T AR¥T T
Operating activities BEWmH
Cash generated from operations S TS B & 19(b) 1,057,592 1,324,469
Income tax paid EAT TR B 26(a) (101,826) (68,620)
PRC Land appreciation tax paid B AT AR B A b (A 26(a) 2,192) (1,865)
Net cash generated from REWH MG EFH
operating activities 953,574 1,253,984
Investing activities BEWH
Interest received SRS 42,734 7,813
Proceeds received upon maturity of i B & H 77 3k 2] &%
pledged deposits 2 i 15 50E 1,041,802 377,787
Payment for pledged deposits O K P73 A (1,022,077) (557,130)
Payment for purchase of property, W &4 2 ~ 5 KA 2 17 3k
plant and equipment (560,535) (345,308)
Payment for lease prepayment TAATAR & 2 AT 3K - (181)
Proceeds from disposal of property, &4 - JF%E &L
plant and equipment T 45 3 4,466 1,774
Net cash used in investing activities $#¢ % % B fir F 31 & & % (493,610) (515,245)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HAaBlaemER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BEZF-NESZH="1—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UNRIEIR)
2019 2018
ZEJuE TR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bt 7 AR ¥Fic N R ¥F T
Financing activities Al ¥ 3 B)
Capital element of lease rentals paid T T & 2 A& & #7 19(c) (3,430) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid T 4 2 F B 5 19(c) (716) -
Interest paid e A FILE 19(c) (161,264) (163,605)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 8 7 M f £ i 15 2 A 19(c) 2,437,078 2,180,600
Repayment of loans and borrowings f& & £ 3 & {5 & 19(c) (2,583,697) (2,817,572)
Capital injecting from the B JEG 2 ) I 2 B B 4 2 TR
Non-controlling interests of
subsidiary 4,300 1,000
Dividends paid to equity O A w4 T B 2 i S
shareholders of the Company 27(b) (73,465) (70,483)
Net cash used in Al 3 ) o ) B
financing activities (381,194) (870,060)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RerB&ZEmEm/
and cash equivalents (WA) F# 78,770 (131,321)
Cash and cash equivalents at W—H BB &R
1 January B E&FHD 19(a) 448,787 579,450
Effect of foreign exchange rate R 3R 5 B & 5% B
changes 446 658
Cash and cash equivalents at RT_A=+—HMW
31 December BekBl&%FHYD 19(a) 528,003 448,787

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using M - AREER ZF—JL4E— H — H KA ST E W)

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

T U Y IR B 5 R A YR AR 165% © AR L
J7 i > T HCBEEORE S S E B o BB R (c) o

The notes on pages 182 to 339 form part of these financial 1825339 X Mk /4 5% 5 M B R g — ¥ 0y

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“TASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

1

FEFEHEOR

(a)

HREY

R% S T i AR ) 1 IR P A R 2
P S 5 i o 4 )T I e B 5 i
L)) o AR LA I PR L
ZAEG ([HEestENZEE])
LA FR) A 2 D 10 0 I o 5
L) Y R A (] B Rt
W) B f) ~ A el arat A DL
Lo A U 0% w91 2 2 o R A A
ZEMB MRS HEEBHE LS
Jor A FR A TR R 2 A 4
e S0 o A AR F PR Ay 2 T R
RALFEWT

B B R & B A T
RIS ARG T I R B S i HE T 5%
S5 Y Q) 20y 7 A 4 A g 4 R
UCHE 28BS AT B2 L BR A o ) T T %
& B SR B BH 2 I R B S R
HE R BT 5 | B0E A DU g e 2
AT G FEECR S T - O S R % 5
AR5 R RN > A B ERE S SR B R E
1(c) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in an associate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, which is the functional currency of
the major subsidiaries carrying out the principal
activities of the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the derivative financial instruments
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in Note 1(f).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1 FEEGEFBUR (4)
(b) B i 2 g ALY

WE_F-NFET_HA=1T—HI
A S S R el AR A R S
Wit 2~ =) (HAd (AL )) Lh R A
R B8 O~ w2 AR AL

RO BT IR TR AR (TAR
) B e B R REEHN T
B> N B J i o A A ] = B SE
ZEEWE AR Z R W -

P S 2 2 i AR S AR S T
LR S M AN B RE L) T & st
SR BT L RE > AT AR & Al T
FE A SRR AL -

L A AT R B Y )
WLRE 2 B i Fe IR - ZEAE 5 BRI
SR TE R AP B A B Bl s
B R 0 B Al A R o 5% A A
F AR IR AR B 9 AR B 1 AR B
L AR 0 % 5 1 UL A A LA A
TEH A D R AR > B 45 &5 2R AR
BT % S R A HA R A
B T B AR T (B SR o BT AN
ST RE L% 2 A R AN o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
Group.

Except for IFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective
for the current accounting period.

1

FEEFEBOR )

(b)

(©)

WA R R ()

et B A B AR & Fr AT - B R
st Z BT e A ATl U (0
16 HT {8 5% 2R 52 0T TR ) BB AT 3 1K) &%
ARACHA ] (M 16 5T 3% B H R B R A
WATH]) fte R

A L I P [ R S S s ) B T
A H 3B 5 S A K R S B
FAGFEAHE 2 B R 2 3 AR R
Fff 52 o

Rt B S B

I ¢ Y N 2% B A R T
% B 5 i ot Y A~ R A 5 A e
HIEB16%% - # B B 22 TR AL B AR
B a0  EUCAE Y [ R
W ZEFT -

ik I A i o YR S S5 168 - A T
S > M S AT o] BBUSRA WT 366 A 2 Y
A S 2 O A ] S A M
J 55 R D A R R B o A A
R PR HAT AT J7% 5 i w300 ) e R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and SIC 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form
of a lease. It introduces a single accounting model
for lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases, except for leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) and
leases of low value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from IAS 17

substantially unchanged.

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from
1 January 2019. The Group has elected to use
the modified retrospective approach and has
therefore recognised the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and continues to
be reported under IAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the

transition options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease
mainly relates to the concept of control.
IFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of an
identified asset for a period of time, which
may be determined by a defined amount
of use. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.
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EEGEHBOR (4

Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

Rt BOREE) (4)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) 1 5 B R B 1695 - A B

New definition of a lease (continued)

The Group applies the new definition of
a lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019. For contracts entered
into before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of
which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under IAS 17
continue to be accounted for as leases under
IFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed
as non-lease service arrangements continue
to be accounted for as executory contracts.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by IAS 17. Instead, the Group
is required to capitalise all leases when it
is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17,
other than those short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets which are exempt. As
far as the Group is concerned, these newly
capitalised leases are primarily in relation
to plants as disclosed in Note 29(b). For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee

accounting, see Note 1(j)(i).

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e.
1 January 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease terms
and measured the lease liabilities for the
leases previously classified as operating
leases at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1
January 2019. The weighted average of
the incremental borrowing rates used for

determination of the present value of the

remaining lease payments was 4.9%.

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial

application of IFRS 16:
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of IFRS 16 in respect
of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends
within 12 months from the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or
before 31 December 2019;

when measuring the lease liabilities
at the date of initial application
of IFRS 16, the Group applied a
single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with
a similar remaining lease term for a
similar class of underlying asset in a

similar economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, the Group
relied on the previous assessment for
onerous contract provisions as at 31
December 2018 as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The following table reconciles the
operating lease commitments as disclosed
in Note 29(b) as at 31 December 2018 to
the opening balance for lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 January 2019:

FEEFEBOR )

TRt BORES) (4

g s 5 5 e R S 16 95 - LB

(#4%)

b. TR BN 5t K i R 2
(#E)
TRIRE ZE—E
A=+ — 1 2 88 ERE
(P 88 i M 5E29(b) ) BiL A —

F— L —H — H R R
BRI R EIR

1 January 2019

/R Sy R 0
—H—H
RMB’000
AT
Operating lease commitments at W_F—=/NEF+H=Z1+—HW
31 December 2018 KT BRI 12,395
Less: commitments relating to leases U+ B G A AL R B Y
exempt from capitalisation: AR -
— short-term leases and other leases —F R THE WA —F— JLAF
with remaining lease term ToH=+—HE
ending on or before T A RO A A K
31 December 2019 HAHE (1,296)
— leases of low-value assets — I fi i E A S -
Add: lease payments for the additional S s AR 4R B R Sy A PR B R AT A
periods where the Group considers A 238 45 %) AR AN U AR
it reasonably certain that it will 1545 3K
exercise the extension options -
11,099
Less: total future interest expenses B AR AR B 3 MR (1,935)
Present value of remaining lease payments, 7 i Fil & - 2K (19 B (H >
discounted using the incremental ﬁiﬁﬁ;i WHFE—H—H®
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 B R R 9,164
Add: finance lease liabilities recognised ~ fil : =% — A+ = =+ —H
as at 31 December 2018 filE w8 < Ml AH B A A -
Total lease liabilities recognised T FEUE A — H R
at 1 January 2019 CiER =Rk 9,164
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FEEFFHER ()

Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

Rt BOREE) (4)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) 1 5 B R B 1695 - A B

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to
leases previously classified as operating
leases have been recognised at an amount
equal to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to that lease recognised
in the statement of financial position at 31
December 2018.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
“Right-of-use assets” and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement of

financial position.

So far as the impact of the adoption of
IFRS 16 on lease prepayments previously
classified as operating lease is concerned,
the Group is not required to make any
adjustment at the date of initial application
of IFRS 16, other than changing the
captions for the balance. Accordingly,
instead of “Lease prepayments”, these
amounts are included within “Right-of-use
assets — land use rights”. There is no impact

on the opening balance of equity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEFEBUR ()

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (¢) TRrBURE B ()
IFRS 16, Leases (continued) i B 1 5 A R 16 9E - B
(#)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b. IRRUN B 7t J it 7 B
(continued) (#E)
The following table summarises the impacts I SR A BRI B B R
of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s HE RIS 1698 ¥ A R BAR G B
consolidated statement of financial position: IR0 2% Y 5 2
Carrying Capitalisation Carrying
amount at  of operating amount at
31 December lease 1 January
2018 contracts 2019
e Sy
+=A I Sy 3

=t —Hi AufE  —~H-HW
B A ARE AL S T
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AR TFE  ARKTIE  ARKTIE

Line items in the consolidated statement % §% /1 I8 B {4 % it 75 ¥ I

of financial position impacted by 1655 % BN 45 5 M B

the adoption of IFRS 16: AR DA B
Right-of-use assets i e

— Land use rights — Lt i B RE - 365,114 365,114

- Other right-of-use assets — O fth i i B - 9,164 9,164
Lease prepayments IS e 365,114 (365,114) -
Total non-current assets e o 0 2,376,862 9,164 2,386,026
Lease liabilities (current) HEAE GRS - 1,250 1,250
Current liabilities bk RN 4,190,051 1,250 4,191,301
Net current assets I 541,570 (1,250) 540,320
Total assets less current liabilities A0 R B £ 2,918,432 7,914 2,926,346
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEAR R - 7914 7,914
Total non-current liabilities e it By B AR A 414,574 7914 422,488
Net assets KR 2,503,858 - 2,503,858
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FEEFFHER ()

Significant accounting policies (continued) 1
B atBORE B (A7)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) 1 5 B R B 1695 - A B

Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash tlows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. This results in a
positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss, as compared
to the results if IAS 17 had been applied
during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their capital element
and interest element (see Note 19(c)). These
elements are classified as financing cash
outflows, similar to how leases previously
classified as finance leases under IAS 17
were treated, rather than as operating cash
outflows, as was the case for operating
leases under IAS 17. Although total cash
flows are unaffected, the adoption of IFRS
16 therefore results in a significant change
in presentation of cash flows within the cash
flow statement (see Note 19(d)).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment

results and cash flows of the Group
(continued)

The following tables give an indication of
the estimated impact of the adoption of
IFRS 16 on the Group’s financial result,
segment results and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2019, by adjusting
the amounts reported under IFRS 16 in
these consolidated financial statements
to compute estimates of the hypothetical
amounts that would have been recognised
under IAS 17 if this superseded standard
had continued to apply in 2019 instead
of IFRS 16, and by comparing these
hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the

actual 2018 corresponding amounts which

were prepared under IAS 17.
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(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEFGFEOR )
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) (c) TETBOR B ()
IFRS 16, Leases (continued) b s o R 16 9E - i B
(/gg';

c. Impact on the financial result, segment c. B IE BB T AT AR
results and cash flows of the Group BRI a2 ()
(continued)

2019 2018
“E g TR NE
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to Compared
Add back:  operating Hypothetical  to amounts
Amounts IFRS 16 leases as amounts reported
reported depreciation if under for 2019 for 2018
under and interest IAS 17 asif under under
IFRS 16 expense (Note 1) IAS 17 IAS 17
ki :
R
B st
Wb MBI WORE R
R e ot GE N 3 )
WRREE N AR RNEOR RNEITR
WB Y 165 HIB it TE i)
e I 5 165K fER  WEEE ZFoE ZFNE
EHmas  ALEM (W) WmBREHE  SELE
(A) (B) (C) (D=A+B-C)
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB 000

ARBTE ANRETH ARWTTE ARKFTZ ARWTx

Financial result for year ended R JH I 0 4 00 6169

31 December 2019 impacted by ~ HEE_F R4

the adoption of IFRS 16: A=A 0L

B S A A T

Profit from operations ft- ] 872,383 3,756 4,146 871,993 766,340
Finance costs i A (151,480) 716 - (150,764)  (164,221)
Profit before taxation i i 723,470 4,472 4,146 723,796 607,916
Profit for the year A BE B A 602,606 4472 4,146 602,932 493,978
Reportable segment profit R 1T S0 o 00 16

(gross profit) for year ended BREZZE

31 December 2019 (Note 3(b)) FIRZF—HILAEER

impacted by the adoption of AR A B A (BA)

IFRS 16: EAEWNEE (M H30)

— Industrial aluminium profiles — TEEE B 213,787 3,756 4,146 213,397 273,997

— Construction aluminium —BER

profiles 1,105,520 = - 1,105,520 858,277

— Property development N EL 1 43,501 - - 43,501 120,921

- Other — Al 127,004 = = 127,004 97,577

- Total &% 1,489,812 3,756 4146 1489422 1350772
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FEEFEBOR )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued) TR BOREE) ()

()

IFRS 16, Leases (continued) 1 5 B R R B 1695 - A B

(ﬂf‘é”;
c. Impact on the financial result, segment c. A LE [ B A o aB
results and cash flows of the Group B R B g im0 (A )
(continued)
2019 2018
“EnE ZE
Estimated
amounts
related to  Hypothetical Compared
Amounts operating amounts to amounts
reported  leases as if for 2019 reported for
under under IAS17  asifunder 2018 under
IFRS 16 (Notes [ & 2) IAS 17 IAS 17
T AR 4
B it
WHETE  WORE SR
it 5 Bpxgat  BRER
05 BEME  RNETR ORMEITHE
S HHB it e f)
BURIE AR EAE TNk
R e®  (WiEIk2)  BEXEH SHLY
(4) (B) (C=A+B)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ARWFIL ARWFAZ AREFLZ ARKTL
Line items in the consolidated cash ¥ JiJ B F if # #t 7% ¥ J 55 165%
flow statement for year ended BREZZ-0E
31 December 2019 impacted by FEAZBREE
the adoption of IFRS 16: SAEBESHBERPH
AAEHERZBE:
Cash generated from operations BREHELNES 1,057,592 4,146 1,061,738 1,324,469
Net cash generated from operating %% i B & A: 1) 3 & ¥
activities 953,574 4,146 957,720 1,253,984
Capital element of lease rentals paid BT FI4 1A% 4% (3,430) 3,430 = -
Interest element of lease rentals paid AR H 44 (716) 716 = -
Net cash used in financing activities 7 % % B i il 49 51 & % 4 (381,194) 4,146 (377,048) (870,060)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

c. Impact on the financial result, segment
results and cash tlows of the Group
(continued)

Note 1: The “estimated amounts related to
operating leases” is an estimate of the
amounts of the cash flows in 2019 that
relate to leases which would have been
classified as operating leases, if IAS 17
had still applied in 2019. This estimate
assumes that there were no differences
between rentals and cash flows and that
all of the new leases entered into in 2019
would have been classified as operating
leases under IAS 17, if IAS 17 had still
applied in 2019. Any potential net tax
effect is ignored.

Note 2: In this impact table these cash outflows
are reclassified from financing
to operating in order to compute
hypothetical amounts of net cash
generated from operating activities and
net cash used in financing activities as if
IAS 17 still applied.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

A B U B A M R
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of

the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 1(p) or
(q) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or

loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of interest in an associate (see
Note 1(e)).
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 1(k)).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (Note 1(k(ii))). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Associate (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate (after applying the ECL model to
such other long-term interests where applicable
(see Note 1(k)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(®

(g)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
at fair value. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting
or hedges of net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case recognition of any resultant gain or
loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged
(see Note 1(g)).

Hedging

The Group designates the derivative as hedging
instrument to hedge the variability in cash
flows associated with highly probable forecast
transactions arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates and variable rate borrowings (cash
flow hedges).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedging instrument in a cash flow
hedge, the effective portion of any gain or loss on
the derivative financial instrument is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
such as inventory, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to be included in the initial
cost of the non-financial asset.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g)

(h)

Hedging (continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged cash
flows affect profit or loss (such as when a forecast

sale occurs or interest expense is recognised).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting (including when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised), then
hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
When hedge accounting is discontinued, but the
hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the amount that has been accumulated
in the hedging reserve remains in equity until
the transaction occurs and it is recognised in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
amount that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(see Note 1(j)) to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

()

Investment property (continued)

Investment properties are accounted for using the
cost model and stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 1(k)). The cost
of investment property, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful lives as follows.
- Land use rights 50 years
- Buildings and plants held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
35 years after the date of completion.

Other property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (Note 1(w)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Other property, plant and equipment and right-

of-use assets (continued)

Construction in progress is transferred to respective
items under property, plant and equipment when
it is ready for its intended use. No depreciation is
provided against construction in progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings and plants held for own use
which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
35 years after the date of completion.

- Machinery 3 — 20 years
- Motor vehicles 3 — 5 years
- Office equipment and 3 - 10 years

others

- Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the
period of the lease term
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

@)

Other property, plant and equipment and right-

of-use assets (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(47 As a lessee

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January
2019

Where the contract contains
lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each
lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single

lease component for all leases.
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&5 6 B R B
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(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()} Leased assets (continued)
i) As a lessee (continued)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January

2019 (continued)

At the lease commencement date,
the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily laptops and
office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised,
the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEFEBUR ()
3g) Leased assets (continued) g) MEEE ()
@) As a lessee (continued) @) EBARMA (4)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January (A) HZ=F—NE—H
2019 (continued) — H 28 1 19 B %
(#)

The right-of-use asset recognised TR B AL R Al RR
when a lease is capitalised is V1450 P HEE P i AR
initially measured at cost, which ATV IR FE R Hop
comprises the initial amount of A E AR
the lease liability plus any lease AR b AT AT A B 46
payments made at or before the H 8l 2 Fi A b i A
commencement date, and any 53¢ B RS HE AT
initial direct costs incurred. Where A7) 46 4 o A
applicable, the cost of the right-of- AR il
use assets also includes an estimate HE 2 ) LA IR LS
of costs to dismantle and remove A S~ RS A B A
the underlying asset or to restore E B AR A B
the underlying asset or the site on W T A i S 1)
which it is located, discounted to B = HB(E
their present value, less any lease Wk ) B LR AR
incentives received. The right-of-use oo fiff I ME B AR
asset is subsequently stated at cost T 4% A I B FH T

less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 1(i)
and 1(k)(ii)).
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(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)} Leased assets (continued)
) As a lessee (continued)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January

2019 (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured
when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use
assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property in ‘right-
of-use assets’ and presents lease
liabilities separately in the statement

of financial position.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()]

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019

In the comparative period, as a
lessee the Group classified leases
as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the
Group. Leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group
were classified as operating leases.

Where the Group had the use
of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the
leases were charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they
were incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it

determines at lease inception whether each

lease is a finance lease or an operating

lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease

if it transfers substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to the ownership of an

underlying assets to the lessee. If this is

not the case, the lease is classified as an

operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)} Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor (continued)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance
with Note 1(u)(iv).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in Note 1(j)(i), then
the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, which are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest); and

- lease receivables.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including derivative financial assets,

are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade
and other receivables: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation

thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

- lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease

receivable;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes
into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments,
the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 180 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

@) Credit losses from financial instruments

and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial

instruments, the assessment of a significant

increase in credit risk is performed on either

an individual basis or a collective basis.

When the assessment is performed on a

collective basis, the financial instruments

are grouped based on shared credit risk

characteristics, such as past due status and

credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 1(u)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in

the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- investment property;

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;

- lease prepayments;

- interest in an associate; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii)

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with TAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (Notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

) Inventories and other contract costs

i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in
the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value as follows:

- Aluminium profiles manufacturing

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(i)

Inventories (continued)

Aluminium profiles manufacturing

(continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Property development

Cost and net realisable values are

determined as follows:

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under
development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including
the acquisition cost of interest in
leasehold land, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies,
wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised
(Note 1(w)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in selling
the property.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

Inventories (continued)

- Completed property held for resale

The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location

and condition.

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group which
comprise of multiple units which are
sold individually, the cost of each
unit is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for
that development project to each unit
on a per square foot basis, unless
another basis is more representative
of the cost of the specific unit.
Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see Note 1(1)(i))
or property, plant and equipment (see Note

1(0)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred
if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period
and the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are

expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods
or services in the future; and are expected
to be recovered. Costs that relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations
of costs, costs that are explicitly chargeable
to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract (for example, payments to
sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling
a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory and property, plant and

equipment, are expensed as incurred.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(m)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(ii) Other contract costs (continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet

been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is
set out in Note 1(u).

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 1(u)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(k)
(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional (see
Note 1(n)).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)

()

Contract assets and contract liabilities

(continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 1(u)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note

1(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are

not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
Note 1(u)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if
only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see Note 1(m)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 1(k)(i)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

(p)

(@)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 1(k)(1).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see Note 1(w)).

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will

vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included
in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions

are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

®

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is

after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other

income recognition policies are as follows:

i)

(i)

Sale of aluminum products

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all
the goods and services promised under the
contract on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis.

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the property
is accepted by the customer, or deemed
as accepted according to the contract,
whichever is earlier, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits
of the property. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are included in
the statement of financial position under

contract liabilities (see Note 1(m)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of properties (continued)

When residential properties are marketed
by the Group while the property is still
under construction, the Group may offer
a discount compared to the listed sales
price, provided the customer agrees to
pay the balance of the consideration early.
In such cases, if the advance payments
are regarded as providing a significant
financing benefit to the Group, interest
expense arising from the adjustment of
time value of money will be accrued by
the Group during the period between the
payment date and the completion date of
legal assignment. This accrual increases
the balance of the contract liability during
the period of construction, and therefore
increases the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed property is
transferred to the customer. The interest
is expensed as accrued unless it is eligible
to be capitalised under IAS 23, Borrowing
costs, in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 1(w).

Services income
Revenue from services rendered is

recognised in profit or loss at the time of

provision of the service is completed.

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see Note 1(k)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other income
in profit or loss over the useful life of the

assets.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

()

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an

entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x)

)

Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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Accounting judgements and estimates

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 25 and 28 contains information about the

assumptions and its risk factors relating to valuation of fair

value of share options granted and financial instruments.

Other significant source of estimation uncertainty are as

follows:

(i)

(i)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future years is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous

estimation.
Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires
the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs
are based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The
Group keeps assessing the expected credit loss of

trade receivables during their expected lives.
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3  Revenue and segment reporting 3 Wesm K Ek

(a) Revenue (a)

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles and
property development. Further details regarding the
group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note
3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers by major products or service
lines is as follows:

i %

AL RS Iy R
B TRE e ) SR o AT B AR S £
BT 2 — 20 RE G ER R T

3(b) °
1)) W 7z WY A0
AN e 3 B A SUIRS AR
a2 H A # U A B AL n
o
2019 2018
ZELAE T )\
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TIT ANRWT T

Revenue from contracts with k] % Ef s i o v 1
customers within the scope of WIS HE N Z
IFRS 15 FPRAHBRA

Disaggregated of product lines or % (i 4% B %5 42
service line #5r 2 BA
— Sale of aluminium profiles — & 5 B T
— Sale of aluminium panels, — SH SR AR

aluminium alloy, moulds A R
and spare parts T
— Sales of completed properties —#E DR LY
— Revenue from service — MR A Al 4
contracts

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by the timing of revenue
recognition and by geographic markets
is disclosed in Notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii)
respectively.

10,944,177 9,436,257
235,633 169,698
81,599 301,164
19,439 17,398
11,280,848 9,924,517
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

i)

(ii)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified
and does not include any individual
customer (2018: Nil) with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the

)
Group’s revenue.

Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

As at 31 December 2019, total amounts
of the transaction price under the Group’s
existing contracts were fully recognised as

revenue.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines.

In a manner consistent with the way in which the

information is reported internally to the Group’s

most senior executive management for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment,

the Group has presented the following reportable

segments.

Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium
profiles, mainly for industrial usage.

Construction aluminium profiles: this
segment manufactures and sells aluminium
profiles with surface finishing, including
anodic oxidation aluminium profiles,
electrophoresis coating aluminium profiles,
powder coating aluminium profiles
and PVDF coating aluminium profiles.
Construction aluminium profiles are widely
used in architecture decoration.
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3

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

i)

Property development: this segment
develops and sells office premises and

residential properties.

All other segments: include the revenue
generated from service contracts and sale of
aluminium panels, aluminium alloy, moulds

and spare parts.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments. However, other than
reporting inter-segment sales of aluminium
profiles, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets, is

not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s

senior executive management regularly.
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b BH 3253 Bie 2 T e 2 9
SR > Bk it 7 350 [H] S 20 A4
ZH AN Koy i o —
or ER AR A 2 W B (4 36
EE) AT RAER

A e it s v M 2 T
KT BA - AL B = AT
BB B R A B 2 U
i e ik A 2 5r B A o 23 ET
W T A 9 E S ) AR A
B A AT N B R
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is
set out below:

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

3 Wtk BBl ()
(b)  riEbHELE (AF)

G)  BEbRH - HERAME

(#%)

MEE _F - NFLRF
— A+ H =+ —HIR4E
JE 2GR T B Ay A R
AT 5 > 1) A< 42 [ I S AT
FHN B2 A AL E
GRS 3 -vas 27 K 1NN

Industrial aluminium  Construction aluminium

profiles
THREWH
2019 2018

profiles Property development

REEH ET:

All other segments Total
iy St i wit
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

SRR CENE SB-RE FAE CB-AE SE-AR CRRE SE-AR R-RE SFoAR
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB 000
ARETE AREFT ARKTL ARKFL ARBFE ARETFT ARNEL ARKFT ARNTE AREFD

(Note) (Note)
(H3#) (W)
Reportable segment WS
revenue
Revenue from external K FSMFEFZ
customers W 2061 2205995 8733486 7220060 SLSY LI 255072 18709 11280848 9924517
Reportable segment WA
profit
Gross profit EA 213,787 273,997 1,105,520 858,277 43,501 120,921 127,004 97,577 1,489,812 1,350,772

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS
16 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated.
See Note 1(c).

KMt AL E A ZERTEWN
T2 E U T IR A
5 e HI 2B 165E - AR 9% UL
J7 W AT L I 4
A o LR 1(c)

245



246

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

3  Revenue and segment reporting (continved) 3 WgE K # R (a)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b)  rEbERE ()
(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) AR AR S B R
profit
2019 2018
S T )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR T
(Note)
(M)
Reportable segment profit KAALEINREF 2
derived from the Group’s A R 15 43 8 ik )
external customers 1,489,812 1,350,772
Other income HoAth oy 2 105,959 54,939
Distribution costs G A (293,075) (278,949)
Administrative expenses T BB X2 (430,313) (360,422)
Finance costs A A (151,480) (164,221)
Share of profit of an associate 34— [T B 2 W s 2,567 5,797
Consolidated profit before taxation BFR7BL HI 47 & ¥ Al 723,470 607,916
Note: Bt
The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using ALEHCRAKETBWEE
the modified retrospective approach. Under this TRE F I I B 5 R 2 HE I BB 16
approach, the comparative information is not 5% o AR > AT LR R
restated. See Note 1(c). M 5 o R EEL(C) -
(iii)  Geographic information (i) I &
Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results 7 0 52 51 A AR ] 4 b [ 1T 3
as well as analysis of the Group’s carrying #) 3 2 U g B 2 AR i A
amount of segment assets and additions B A 5 T 3 B MR
to property, plant and equipment by PN/ ENY N P
geographical market has not been presented Gy 0T R A io7% (%
as over 97% (2018: 97%) of the revenue are — N1 97% ) 2 W 7 ¥ 2k

generated from the PRC market. H R T o
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5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

Other income 4 Hib s
2019 2018
ZE TR N
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR Fx NR T
Interest income A B A 42,734 7,813
Government grants (1) B Al Bl ()
— Unconditional subsidies — HE AR A Al B 25,788 16,034
— Conditional subsidies (Note 24) — A7 W A A
(B 7t24) 25,354 21,125
Rental income LEE A UN 13,429 10,869
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) A BEE Wi ﬁJfL/ (K18 e 2,150 (528)
Net loss on cash flow hedging A A M A S b TR
instrument from equity (Note 9(b)) B4 0 2 M 1R T R
(B 7E9b)) (696) -
Loss on disposal of property, By B
plant and equipment Y&l aEs (2,800) (374)
105,959 54,939
(i) Government grants in the form of cash subsidies (i) A [ R 5 4 S B
were received from various PRC government il S % =X A SBORT Al
authorities.
- Unconditional subsidies - S AR A AN

& OB N R ¥
25,788,0007C ( —
= U AR
16,034,0007C ) Z #

The entitlements of certain government
grants amounting to RMB25,788,000 (2018:
RMB16,034,000) were unconditional.
The funds were to subsidise the operating

expenses of the PRC subsidiaries of the U il Bl T 4 T

Group during the current year. Beth - 2% G & 5T
TR A 55 ] 2 o R
N ) 2B B SR R
il B o

- Conditional subsidies — A Ao A A B

The remaining government grants were B NBUNH B AR

conditional government grants and initially A% A TBUTT Al B - 37 47

recorded as deferred income. The amount 05 51 By R A A o

of conditional government grants charged to BE_Z—NETZ

the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB25,354,000 (2018: RMB21,125,000)
(Note 24).

A=Z+—HIFEEZ
AR RN
A TR A4 B 4 AR
B N R 25,354,000
J6(FE— VA
R #21,125,00070)
(Bt 524) -
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

B B Aif i A1

5 Profit before taxation 5

B BE R I TS FUER 7 (FEA) BUT & TR

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): i
(a)  Finance costs: (a) W 8 A
2019 2018
“EJuE —E— 4
(Note)
(Bt7E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRE T AT T
Interest expenses on bank loans SRAT B M BH 3
(Note 19(c)) (HtiE19(c)) 131,743 142,580
Interest expenses on discounted bills B[l B 22 4% 2 A B 5 3¢
(Note 19(c)) (M1#E19(c)) 18,939 21,641
Interest on lease liabilities & & EFLE
(Note 19(c)) (Hf#E19(c)) 716 -
Total interest expense on Az I 4 A R AR 4
financial liabilities not at ZERAE N
fair value through profit or loss B S H AR 151,398 164,221
Cash flow hedges instruments HRRASE B 2
reclassified from equity (Note 9(b)) ¥4 i ¥ v T B
(Hf7E9m)) 82 -
151,480 164,221

Mt AREHERHEBTEWES
U ) I T A S ME R B 16
5% o ARPEIL ik > n] HLE R
MEF A o B EEL(c) -

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See Note 1(c).
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&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

Profit before taxation (continued) 5 BeBiAiEA )
(b)  Staff costs: (b) B ITROA :
2019 2018
ZE—hE TE— )\
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ANRETFT
Contributions to defined ] 7 AR AL FOR R
contribution retirement plans 8 I EE E AL 3K 69,776
Equity-settled share-based DA e HE 468 5 AR A7
payment expenses (Note 25(b)) T FERRE (A B
(KtaE25b)) 2,325 561
Salaries, wages and other benefits WA L& K HAbAE A 765,532 653,518
837,633 713,130

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (“Schemes”) organised by the
local authority whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes
based on certain percentages of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) are required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The
Group and its employees in Hong Kong are
required to make monthly mandatory contributions
to the MPF scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The monthly
mandatory contributions from employees and
employers are subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 30,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
HKD30,000).

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions
described above.

R4 v 12 B 55 38 R B Sk B o
I i o > ] 22 B ol b 5 BT 6 R AL
Ak 09 52 A OB IRAR A E B (TR
B > SR b 2w AR
AR BB e 1 — € T 2 B
AE A 3K o b 7 BOR H B £ 20 4
i TR R KR B AR

e
BN ©

H P S R A ET B R (S
Bl 5548555 ) # A 1a) W M A B 4
(TR FE 4 1) 1 H HE 3K o A< 55 1 Je
FIE B9 A ZH ¥ il AR S
FTEG B A R B A BE A 1)
5% 1) 8 B 4 w5 AR L o e R e
WE_EX—NFETA=ZT—HIE
R B B KR F A g
AR H A B U A 30,0009 56 ([ i
Jgel) (% — \E 30,0004 5T)
5 ERR-

B b At R A - A G2 o Sl 4 o S A+
1 B B AR B A 28 PR A2 A 1R 3
o EE R AT -
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(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

5 Profit before taxation (continued) S B B6 i 2 A (4
(c) Other items: (c) HibEH :
2019 2018
ZEF 0 TR 4
RMB’000 RMB 000
N R Fic AR ¥ET T
Depreciation charge Pres e 32
— Investment properties (Note 11) —REWE (Mit11) 945 -
— Other property, plant and — H At % - W E
equipment (Note 11) Rt (MtaELl) 323,018 281,663
— Right-of-use assets*(Note 12) — i R R
(Mtat12) 12,334 -
Amortisation of lease prepayments® T8 1 FH 4 #f & *

(Note 13) (Mfat13) - 8,766
Research and development costs (i) WF& AR (i) 490,223 425,295
Impairment losses on trade receivables 3¢ & I I 7K JH 2

(Note 28(a)) WAE 1R

(Mt it28(a)) 48,296 17,261
Impairment (gain)/losses on At g K I 2

other receivables (U ts) ks8R (1,121) 1,544
Auditors’ remuneration A% B A <5

— audit services — RS 1,355 1,355

— other services — At Al 755 760 760
Cost of inventories (7)/(Note 16(a)) 178 M A ()

(Bt7t16(a)) 9,791,036 8,573,745
Total minimum lease payments for 2P AR 4% 10 % st 2 )
leases previously classified as SB1T9E A B K
operating leases under IAS 17 *(i) B2 HE mEHE
(REAC L)) - 2,972
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

(c) Other items: (continued)

(i1)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is
required to recognise the depreciation of right-
of-use assets, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31
December 2019 included RMB800,668,000
(2018: RMB698,725,000) relating to
depreciation, lease expenses and staff
costs, which amount is also included in
the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 5(b) for each of
these types of expenses.

Research and development costs for the
year ended 31 December 2019 included
RMB111,854,000 (2018: RMB91,836,000)
relating to staff costs of employees which
amount is also included in total staff costs
as disclosed in Note 5(b).

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

5  BRBOATERA )

(¢ HAWHEHA: (#)

(i1)

I [ C 71 A AE 7T A6 ) i
i JE T 1 B R A R L6
B B T — A —
H 2 10 7] %5 B - LA 8 56 AT 1R
I 10 5% g AR 179 T
HEE T B 2 H B A b 1 A
E o R ZFE—AE— ] — H g
TERR B 1 R SEH (fF
RARTN ) 281 78 (1 HE B A
8 I I 56 B LA B AR 2 1 ad 1
H 4] 355 A 2 s B S
ZBE e IR T7 I I EHY
T TFEI DM FEILC) -

BE_ZX—LE+ A
=t —HIEFE FER
A G BT R A1 & B X
FRLIERARRZ NRE
800,668,0007C ( =& — )\
o NR 698,725,000
Jo) eI E A B
o B RS (b) 43 BH 4% 75 19 458
B S Bl

BE_ZFZ—-NLFE A
=+ — H Ik F 2 0k
AGFEERE R 2 8 T A
HE 2 NRH111,854,000
JL (= FE— NE D AR
91,836,00070) > #% & FEIRE
FHA M FES(b) B #E 2 B Tk
RN
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5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

6  Income tax in the consolidated statement REGHRERENZ ISR
of profit or loss
(a)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) REABEGRNZBIES:
or loss represents:
2019 2018
“E U AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥TT
Current tax B 391 856 0
Provision for PRC corporate income  H [#] 1& 2 iy 15 8t
tax (“CIT”) ([fSERTi3Hl ) ) 38 111,018 82,723
Provision for and Hong Kong e IR Rk i)
Profits Tax - 471
Provision for PRC land Hp ] 3 (R B
appreciation tax (“LAT”) (70 Hh 3% (BB ) 43 6 4,842 18,066
115,860 101,260
Deferred tax 4B HiE 5 JE
Origination and reversal of temporary [ Ff 25 % & A= K 13 1]
differences (Note 26(b)) (M it26(b)) 5,004 12,678
120,864 113,938
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of (1) FR A5 B 2 T I R o Jog B £ T
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin By (T3 J68 b& L #E 55 1) BRI
Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not T A - 7 5 [ 0 78 45 4M BH
subject to any income tax in the Cayman 2 S U B R B R AT
Islands and the BVI. o] B A5 B o
(ii) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax (ii) B s F A5 BB s R

is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: 16.5%), except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered
Profits Tax rate regime.

—E -+ A=+ —
H 1k 48 B 2 Al 51 1 S Bl i
FILA16.5% (. F— )\ 4
16.5% ) Bl 55 A5 3
— W1 & B RIS BL w4l & &
6 4 26 2 B S A I BR Ob o
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(i1)

(iii)

(continued)

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the
same basis in 2018.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for 2019 is taken into account a
reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR
Government of 75% of the tax payable for
the year of assessment 2018-19 subject to
a maximum reduction of HK$20,000 for
each business (2018: a maximum reduction
of HK$30,000 was granted for the year of
assessment 2017-18 and was taken into
account in calculating the provision for
2018).

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are liable to
PRC corporate income tax at a rate of
25% for 2019 (2018: 25%) except for
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Xingfa”), Xingfa Aluminium
(Chengdu) Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Xingfa”),
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan)
Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Henan”) and Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.
(“Xingfa Jiangxi”) which were certified
as “Advanced and New Technology
Enterprises” (“ANTE”) and entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% for
2019 (2018: 15%).

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

6 jj’:\h

S

(a) &R

(i1)

(iii)

HHGERNZ B )

AHMRNZIBIES: (A7)

(#)

UK E A RIS - H2E
#E T ME HR B A LS. 25% 1)
B R BBE 110 8 N e SRR
FILA16.5% 1 B OB - ik
Wi G 2 7] 22 7 s R A5 B
Ty Bl % — )\ AT AR ) 3
HEGI B o

TR U A B A
Th 8851 B A s e T A 1B i 1B
Rt =& — 4EE L
A B M 5T BB AT Bl AR
T5%A1 W B8 (%5 T f =
F0 3 A8 520,000 96) (.
BN B —LER
T — AT B 3 HE SE R 352 ) A
15 41 38 %6 30,000% o¢ - H
FHE T BT R
Je BN AE ) o

R A5 Hp B Py 45 Bl AR B R KR
B > A B [ 2 o A
AR — U EE25% (.
F— )N4E 1 259% ) 2 Bl R4
A B A S T AR B > HEROR
BB GRS PR A A (TR R
BLEE ) - B R 2E (AR)
R 2 A ([ AR B | )
JBE SR BB R 2 (W g ) A PR
o) (TS R ) B R R
BLEE 4R 2 (TL7E) A R4 A
(THLZETT VG ] ) A [ mbr ik
fir2E ] (TR aE])
ZERII B EER
15% (= F— N\NF:15%) 2
1B B S BB % -
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(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

6

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

(iv)

Pursuant to the new tax law in the PRC,
from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which
have an establishment or place of business
in the PRC but whose relevant income
is not effectively connected with the
establishment or a place of business in the
PRC, will be subject to withholding tax
at the rate of 10% (unless reduced by tax
treaty) on various types of passive income
such as dividends derived from sources
within the PRC. Pursuant to the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and the
related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident will be liable for a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends
from a PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong
tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and
holds 25% or more of the equity interest of
the PRC enterprise. As Guangdong Xingfa
is held by a Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiary, a rate of 5% is applicable to the

calculation of this withholding tax.

At 31 December 2019, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB11,609,000 (2018:
RMB4,421,000) (Note 26(b)(i)) have been
provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from
Guangdong Xingfa in the foreseeable future
in respect of the profits generated since 1
January 2008.

6

GEL

=

(@iv)

RN

SR AR N Z B

HR 45 o BB Bl 7% > B 2
JNAE—H — H# > 7E B B
AR B L B - 3 BT > B3
it A o B BE A R ST R - 1
PR TUAS 2 A7 B WA B AR
Hh BT N T RS 55 TR
AHEBB S EERAZE
S ZE T 2 B A B U A (R
BN 2 iR 2 10%
B & (bR IE 4% Bk T 52 Wk
G ) BN TE AR B o AR 95 A
RS IV IR I 57
ZHEY KA BE R i — 4
GERFBBEER A TE
A NG A2
25%% DL b Y R > B 5%
B RZE L HARk [ A B
4 25 0 B S i 1 B R5%
BN TEAR B o F S R B
Ay — P B v i M ST 2
@A FREA S R E T TE R
BL ] 2 Bl R 5% ©

RoFE—FE T A=+
H o> DL 5B 8% 7 v 71 %
Rt H FEE/NFE—H—H
LT 2 A RIS R T T
WM B A T ot AR
11,609,0007C ( 2 — \4E:
N R #54,421,00000) 2 1B 4E
BLIH A E A (R
26(b)(i))
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6 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents: (continued)

V)

(vi)

During the year of 2019, Guangdong
Xingfa, Xingfa Henan and Xingfa Jiangxi
obtained approval from local tax authorities
to claim super deduction on research
and development expenses. As such, the
income tax for 2019 was reduced by
RMB11,843,000 (2018: RMB8,755,000).
Such additional tax deduction on research
and development expenses equals 75%
(2018: 50%) of the amount actually
incurred.

LAT is levied on properties developed in the
PRC by the Group for sale, at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, which under the
applicable regulations is calculated based
on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and relevant property development
expenditures.

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

6 REGHEBENZINEH @)

(a) &R

v)

(vi)

AHMRNZIBIES: (A7)

e IR R
S Y] T R BB VT R
Sl INEE 0 BRI 5 B S AR E
B R e [k, &
— LA Z BT A Bl e o N R
11,843,00070 ( —&— /\4F
A R #8,755,0005C) A
EHFEE B 2 2 B AN A A
REBELE ST (—
E— N 150%) -

- 3 (A B T A AR L Y
B ) 2 b 1
{H 4% + b 3% (8 Bl 2 3 Bl R
30%E 60%E N > 1R ¥ A
EHLE > HE B (E R4 2
$H B T A5 3 a2 T A0 L
(B - M RE AL
T &R A T AH B ) 2L 5%
JEBAST) o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

B XN Z BB ()

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 R
of profit or loss (continued)

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) 1538 ) B R 5T E 2 B E B 7 B 6 5
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: e ) 3 WG
2019 2018
“E U AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ANR¥TT
Profit before taxation B4 i i A 723,470 607,916
Less: LAT T G (B 4,842 18,066
Profit before CIT and Hong Kong B A 3 B 15 Bl K%
Profits Tax 7 M A5 i i A 718,628 589,850
Notional tax on profit before iR B D 1 L
taxation, calculated at the rates i Rt 2 BRBLAT
applicable to the jurisdiction i ¥ 2 24 2 Bl IH
concerned 184,666 152,731
Tax effect of non-deductible ENCIE DL v
expenses Tl 5 5 4% 860 783
Tax effect of share of profit of an 3 Ak — T W A A )
associate i 1] 2 B ,% £ (385) (870)
Effect of tax concessions B 22 (68,464) (51,823)
Super deduction on research and e = VANE= S 71 4
development expenses in respect B SO st R
of 2018 (Note 6(a)(v)) (HtiF6(a)(v)) (11,843) (8,755)
Effect of withholding on FE AT o R R A T
undistributed profits retained by 743 Be AR B i A
PRC subsidiaries (Note 26) (52 B (M 7£26) 11,188 3,806
CIT and Hong Kong Profits Tax A S AR R W R AR B 116,022 95,872
LAT - o 4 (B 4,842 18,066
Income tax expense JIT A3 B B 52 120,864 113,938
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section

383(1) of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of

7 HHWE

HR 5 B s 2 A W 553831k S 28 A (%
e 2R OF g R ) KR SR 2 4 2 2 B T

the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits EoR/ I
of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salary,
allowance  Contribution
and benefits  to retirement Share-based 2019
Fees in kind benefit plan Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
B Bl Rk DBRE  ZF-nE
We  REHHE it 314k Eff A ik R R it
(Note)
(W)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTFE  ARWTZ  ARWTZ  ARWTZ  ARKTZ  ARETZ  ARKTZ
Executive directors HHES
M. LIU Libin SIS 460 453 3 1415 2,351 17 2478
Mr. LIAO Yuging BER A 636 265 - 1,700 2,601 = 2,601
Mr. LAW Yung Koon f Jifey i 423 - 16 1,163 1,602 - 1,602
Mr. WANG Zhihua THEELE 416 99 16 2,081 2,612 107 2,79
Ms. ZHANG Li RAL L 216 527 29 250 1,022 107 1,129
Mr. LUO Jianfeng et 3t 424 = - - 44 = 42
Non-executive directors FafnEF
Ms XIE Jingyun HRELL - - - - - - -
Mr ZUO Manlun Tk 318 - - - 318 = 318
Independent non-executive directors v J 34 {7 # %
Mr. CHEN Mo WSS 150 - - - 150 - 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu WRRRE 150 - - - 150 - 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy {6300 180 - - - 180 - 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin Pt 150 96 - - 246 - 246
Total st 3,523 1,440 84 6,609 11,656 341 11997
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there was no replacement to alternate director to Mr. Liu

Libin.

#E

7 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 7 HHRME )
Salary,
allowance  Contribution
and benefits ~ to retirement Share-based 2018
Fees inkind  benefit plan Bonus paid Sub-Total payments Total
e u BRI DRfE  —F-AE
e RENHG il # i 3 et Mat o BRI #5t
(Note)
(#it)
RMBO0O0 ~ RMBO00 ~ RMBUO0 ~ RMBOOO — RMBOO0  RMB000 RMB000
ARETE  AREFZ  ARFFZ  ARKFT  AREFT AREFT  ARKTL
Executive directors WEE
Mr. LIU Libin B 720 20 3 1,389 235 31 2383
Mr. LUO Su i3 St
(resigned on 16 April 2018) (RZF—NE
A +75 HRHE) 188 208 - 1,250 1,646 - 1,646
Mr. LUO Riming f LiLIP
(resigned on 16 April 2018) (RZF—NF
WA+ HEH) 158 199 - 1,250 1,607 - 1,607
Mr. LIAO Yuging BB 636 m - 1,389 2302 - 2302
Mr. LAW Yung Koon B 523 - 15 952 1,490 - 1490
Mr. WANG Zhihua TRELL 416 93 16 1,111 1,636 2 1,662
Mr. DAI Feng T
(resigned on 10 May 2018) (R-Z-N\E
A HAEHT) 116 87 8 1111 130 - 1322
Ms. ZHANG Li RALL
(appointed on 10 May 2018) (RZF—N\E
TATHEZT) 349 157 19 - 525 2% 551
Mr. LUO Jianfeng BRIESEE
(appointed on 16 April 2018) (RZF—N\E
WA+~ RERL) 291 - - - 291 - 291
Non-executive directors FaES
Mr LU Chaoying B
(resigned on 6 December 2018) (RZF— N5
FoAABRE) - - - - - - -
Ms XIE Jingyun WREL L
(appointed on 6 December 2018) (A =% —/\f
TRAHERIT) - - - - - - -
Mr ZUO Manlun R EE
(appointed on 16 April 2018) (RZF—NE
MA+RBEZT) 218 - - - 218 - 218
Independent non-executive BukanEs
directors
Mr. CHEN Mo B EE 150 - - - 150 - 150
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu A%EE 150 - - - 150 - 150
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy Mk 180 - - - 180 - 180
Mr. LIANG Shibin Pt k4 150 9 - - 249 - 249
Alternate director to Ak
Mr. Liu Libin HIEES
Mr. WONG Siu Ki* HI R - - - - - - -
Total 5t 445 1,340 81 8452 14,118 83 14201
* Mr. WONG Siu Ki passed away on 7 March 2018 and * o IE IR - F— /N F= A L H Attt

S ilf B Sr AR SE L B AT #F R CA
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7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Note:

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in Note 1(r)(ii) and,
in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to
reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of
equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in
the Report of Directors and Note 25.

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five Individuals with the highest emoluments, three

(2018: three) of them are directors whose emoluments

are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments

in respect of the other two (2018: two) individuals are as

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

7 HHEMES w)

Bitat : S SRR RIEA A R R RE R B4 T
(1 S BORE 10 A B o 52 45 i BOHE
) A58 (1R 952 B 3 1) (i) i o 7 46 0 A B
B AT B3 5 W B 5T BOR B > 1 AR
A BBUR - 3% 4 R8G5 08 A 4T B AR T %
HPRE £ LA B R AT R R R 1 DL R BT
ER R R

%A EC R S5 R REA - LA TR
RER) 2R R H > O 3 g ik
A TR T ST 8 ) — B B RE25 45
&

8 mEBHMAL

HAREHMA LT =4 (=T — /4
SR By RS 2 T R B R T i
HAb Wi 47 (& — \4E W45 fie i B A
B4 AR R

follows:
2019 2018
ZEF A TE— AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR IFT T
Fees G - 273
Salary, allowance and benefits in kind Hra - B RE YR 45 828 769
Contribution to retirement benefit plan B R AE R 4k 32 39
Bonus paid LA TE AL 3,239 2,862
Share-based payments DA B 003 25 R B8 114 £ K 157 56
4,256 3,999
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ML )

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8
(continued)

M4 (& — 4 W4 fem B AL i

The emoluments of the two (2018: two) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands: 4T T 5 E
2019 2018
SECRE CF A
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
A% A#
HK$1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,000 7T £
2,000,000 JG 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001% T &
3,000,000% 7 1 1
9  Other comprehensive income 9 Hihzmiki
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) B At i WA 25 4% AL R TR A =2 B
comprehensive income B B
2019 2018
“E0E ~E— N\
Tax Tax
Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BE BA
B Bt i (W 3%) b B 1% B B8 i (F3) [CRki
&H vzt &8 8 Vgl 8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBTFL ARBFZ ARBTLZ ARFTLZ ARFTLT ARFTZ
Exchange differences on BAUTHAZ
translation of: IS4
— financial statements of — SN A F 2
overseas subsidiaries B S e (742) = (742) 3,042 - 3,042
Cash flow hedge: net e
movement in hedging SRl 2 B A
reserve (2) - 2) - - -
Other comprehensive income £l 2 [ i £ (744) = (744) 3,042 - 3,042




XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

Other comprehensive income (continued) 9  HAth &R )
(b)  Components of other comprehensive income, (b) Hofth 2 v U 25 2 AL R4 » L AG
including reclassification adjustments B 43 R R
2019 2018
SIS S| K20 AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T N BRI T T

Cash flow hedges: B 4 0 =
Effective portion of changes in A A e R ) ek LA

fair value of hedging instruments 42 T (B 5 ) 114

recognised during the period BRI (K ##20)

(Note 20) (780) -
Reclassification adjustments for (L ek = Enk e aiv]

amounts transferred to profit or loss: & 73 % i % -

— finance costs (Note 5(a)) — il A

(Htit5(a)) 82 -

— foreign exchange loss (Note 4) —HNRE 8 (K F4) 696 -
Net deferred tax credited to other Fh A A A T R g Y

comprehensive income A0 S 3 I i A - -
Net movement in the hedging A b A T A A TR

reserve during the period 2 1 et A

recognised in other Z B E I

comprehensive income 2) -
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10 Earnings per share 10 #R&EF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) A B G A 2
The calculation of basic earnings per share is Jie AR A K] T AR PR AR A R
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity A JBRE AR RO RE AL RN I
shareholders of the Company of RMB606,109,000 606,109,000 ( = F — /\4F: AR
(2018: RMB495,230,000) and the weighted average #495,230,00070) & 4F N #5475
number of 418,000,000 ordinary shares (2018: 3 JB T HE SF- 34 924 18,000,000/1% ( —
418,000,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the Z— VA £ 418,000,000 % 38 48 i)
year. G
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) i 15 B 98 2
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is Ji 4 M) T AR R AR A R
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity W RE f B R AL i RN R W
shareholders of the Company of RMB606,109,000 606,109,0007C ( & — /N4 AR
(2018: RMB495,230,000) and the weighted average #495,230,00070 ) K % %8 K fin A
number of ordinary shares of 418,176,000 shares Y)8418,176,000 ( % — J\4E:
(2018: 418,000,000), calculated as follows: 418,000,000/ ) w5+ H- 4R -
@) Profit attributable to ordinary equity @ K4 w2 A R 2 I A
shareholders of the Company (diluted) Tt FY (R 7E)
2019 2018
“E A e SN2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T AR T IT
Profit attributable to ordinary % 3 A% # 45 % 3R
equity shareholders (diluted) &1k s A1 (%) 606,109 495,230
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10

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

B A a1)

Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) AR (F)
(ii)  Weighted average number of ordinary (i) BT ()
shares (diluted)
2019 2018
I S I e SN
000 000
FiL T T
Weighted average number W rFH=+—HZ
of ordinary shares at 78 I o R S 2 B
31 December 418,000 418,000
Effect of deemed issue of PAERBEA LA Z
shares under the Company’s i B # 51 #1 4% {5
share option scheme for nil  #F17/I% {7 2 5% 2
consideration (Note 25) (M 7E25) 176 -
Weighted average number of AT = H =1—HZ
ordinary shares (diluted) at S S n R T X
31 December () 418,176 418,000

For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the effect of the Company’s Share Option
Scheme was anti-dilutive.

HE T — N4E+ A
=+ —HIEEE AN TA
JEERE T ) 2 R B S
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11 Investment property and other property, 11
plant and equipment

%%%%&Eﬂﬂ%% ~ 5 B vk

(a) MR fE 2 BHR

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Office
Buildings Motor  equipment ~Construction Investment
and plants  Machinery Vehicles  and others  in progress Subtotal ~ properties Total
W%
e R R B e R ERTH hit EWE At
RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000

ARFTE ARKTLZ ARETL ARKETT ARBTZ ARETL ARETT ARKETZ

Cost: A :
At 1 January 2018 BZE-AF—H—H 1,049,085 24,957 158,002 108,898 3,098,147 - 3,098,147
Additions NE 20 2,113 14,962 98,365 373,27 - 373,027
Transfer from construction BRATRIR
in progress 38,759 476 (61,245) - - -
Disposal HE - (2,321) (323) - (8,352) - (8,352)
At31 December 2018 and REF—N\E
1 January 2019 FIAZT-HR
“F-NE-A-R 1,087,864 24,781 173,117 146018 3,463,022 - 346302
Additions NE 5,261 4117 15,701 307,965 620,993 - 620,993
Transfer from construction in BRATRIR
progress 117,057 732 (250,450) - - -
Transfer from other property, R
plant and equipment LR (59.281) - - (59.281) 59,281 -
Transfer from right-of-use assets  F45¢ 1 {f i A 4 - - - - 22,780 22,780
Disposal ik (113) (26,182) (163) (1,571) - (28,029) - (28,029)
At 31 December 2019 REF—UE
+ZA=1—H 1,150,788 2,425,083 29,322 187,979 203,533 3,996,705 82,061 4,078,766
Accumulated depreciation: Bkt
At 1 January 2018 RZE—=NF—A—H (165,781) (919,708) (18,588) (131,301) - (1,35378) - (1,235378)
Charge for the year FEL (33,633) (237,420 (1,613) (8,997) - (281,663) - (281,663)
Written back on disposals H R I - 3818 2,123 263 - 6,204 - 6,204
At31 December 2018 and REF—NE
1 January 2019 FIAZT-HR
ZE-NE-H-H (199,414) (18,078) (140,035) - (1,510,837) - (1,510,837
Transfer from other property, R
plant and equipment IR Bk M 5,060 - - 5,060 (5.060) -
Transfer from right-of-use assets 48 {1 i i - - - - (4,362) (4,362)
Charge for the year EET (34,362) (2,079) (8,363) - (323,018) (945) (323,963)
Written back on disposals R 7 1,336 - 20,763 - 20,763
At31 December 2019 REF—NE
TZAET—H (228,689) (20,004) (147,062) - (1,808,032 (10,367) (1,818,399
Net book value: G i 0 <
At31 December 2019 REF—NE
TZAZT—H 922,099 9,318 40917 203,533 2,188,673 71,694 2,260,367
At 31 December 2018 e SN
TZAZT—H 888,450 6,703 33,082 146,018 1,952,185 - 1,952,185
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11 Investment property and other property,
plant and equipment (continued)

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

®

(i1)

(iii)

All properties owned by the Group are
located in the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Group
is in the process of applying for the
title certificates of certain properties
with carrying value of approximately
RMB40,425,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: RMB97,474,000). The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the use
of and the conduct of operating activities
at the properties referred to above are not
affected by the fact that the Group has
not yet obtained the relevant property title
certificates.

Certain plants with net book value of
RMB602,309,000 (2018: RMB241,684,000)
were pledged as securities for bank loans
of the Group as at 31 December 2019 (Note
22).

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

11 HEE LRI WZE - B Kt

i a1

(a)  JRWE{EZ B (4)

@

(i1)

(iii)

AR B AT B AR SE R
A o

HERRE S AL E
R —E—ILFE+ A
=t —HZIRmALS S AR
#40,425,00000 ( & — N\
0 NR§97,474,0000T) 2

A T 1) S HR R R R
AN ARG T bk
/E Y M E i Sy

1 B 37 A i DR A £ ] 1 R
75 A0 B A S S e s T 2 3

1=A
B

WoE =T ZH =+ —
Ho Mm% A A AR
602,309,0007C ( =& — N\
N R #5241,684,00000)
Z 5T M E B AR 5y A
S W SRAT AR 2 IR (BT
22) °
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11

Investment property and other property,
plant and equipment (continued)

(b)

Investment property

The Group leases out owned properties under
operating leases and began to treat these properties
as investment properties since 1 July 2019 because
the Group decided to hold these properties in the
long-term for capital appreciation or rental income.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
3 years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases in place at the

11

%%%%&Em%%‘ﬁﬁ%&%&
(#)

(b)

BEWE

AL RS E AT A Y
A~ UEEH — R R
o % S W SR BUE 3 IR
A PR J R A B (R
IEAONITESEEEE X7/E EEiiN -t
A2 s W1 Z34F > 3l A HE 988 4 A6
R JiE R T AT A0 S 4% T A T
R A5 B0 AR > LR
W E KT - HIHHE A E
AT SR A A e

A AR FH T R AR S AR 7 i i
AT S A A A R A8 AR B R AR

reporting date will be receivable by the Group in A BAH B AT
future periods as follows:
2019 2018
ki —ER— N\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ Tz AR ¥ET T
Within 1 year RSN 1,889 -

Investment properties of the Group were stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Fair value of these investment properties
was RMB131 million as at 31 December 2019.
The valuations of fair value were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, who
have staff with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued.

A% [ 1 4 W 3 T R A S IR
L e B AR W B T R i s 1R
B ZEREMEN _F—ILF
T A=t ARAFEE N R
131,000,0007T ° 2 V- {E Ak £ T H ff
AT A S SRl A A R A
17> AR B 35 Al (B 9 3 97 76 b s
T SO J K5 A 0 A 40T A B o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

12 Right-of-use assets 12 fEAREE &
Other
Land use right-of-use
rights assets Total
+ H Hfth A H
{3 I HE & e At
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(KEEG) ) (Bt E i) )
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
N R BFoc ANR¥TFT A R ¥T T
Cost: B A
At 1 January 2019 A B — LR
—H—H 439,671 9,164 448,835
Additions nE - 15,094 15,094
Transfer to investment property LIS RS L E (22,780) - (22,780)
At 31 December 2019 A=A
+-HA=+—H 416,891 24,258 441,149
Accumulated amortisation: L iR 3
At 1 January 2019 W ZE— U4
—H—H (74,557) - (74,557)
Charge for the year AR ST (8,578) (3,756) (12,334)
Transfer to investment property B %5 4§ & Py 3E 4,362 - 4,362
At 31 December 2019 B oFE-UET A
=+—H (78,773) (3,756) (82,529)
Carrying amount: i i A
At 31 December 2019 R I
+—A=+—H 338,118 20,502 358,620
At 1 January 2019 (Note 1(c)) W T E—JUAE
—H—H
(Bititice)) 365,114 9,164 374,278
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12  Right-of-use assets (continued) 12 fEHRERE )
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by T TR N 43 AT (8 P R R 1 VR
class of underlying asset is as follows: mnr
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
“E U
+=A —E U
=+—H —H—H
(Note)
(M)
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
Bzt AR¥ T AR ¥ET T
Included in “Right-of-use assets”: 7 A [{# Ji & 7E | -
Land use rights, carried at T AT 85 AR 51 R 1Y
depreciated cost & b fiff I RE () 338,118 365,114
Other properties leased for own use, % 37 % i 74 51| HE fH & 1
carried at depreciated cost A HAh 4 2 (i) 20,502 9,164
358,620 374,278 ~
Included in “Inventory and FEATfEE K
other contract costs”: HoAth A #y A
Land use rights under completed 3% T.{FEWEMN
properties for sale & b fiff Y RE 28,538 27,847
Included in “Investment property”™: FFA [ &Y% ] :
Land use rights, carried FE AT 85 AR 51 R 1Y
at depreciated cost & b fifE ) RE 18,221 -
405,379 402,125
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Right-of—use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

12 MHERE

SR 18 1 Al R 2 A B A B 2 B SCIE A 2 A

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: ﬂﬂT :
2019 2018
ZE A T\
(Note)
(Htit)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T AR IFTIT
Depreciation charge of other right-of-use T A R A ) 4y
assets by class of underlying asset: 114 JHL A A5
Pres bl
Plants W7 3,756 -
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 5(a)) iER=E=Ri=EiIDN
(Htit5(a)) 716 -
Expense relating to short-term leases and BT AR B M Bk T AR
other leases with remaining lease term nW_F—-E+ZH
ending on or before 31 December 2019 =+ —HE 2R
ZHMWHEAREZ
B % 1,445 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases 2 AR 9 R e 5t M L
previously classified as operating leases ERVE ¥k P Tty
under IAS 17 L 1) LB 1 B A
L A AR - 2,972

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use
assets relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17. The depreciated
carrying amount of the Group’s land use rights located
in the PRC which were previously included in lease
prepayments is also identified as a right-of-use asset.
After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See Note 1(c).

MEE - AS SR bR T AR A8 AT A6 135 A0 4n JE T
IR 85 P 55 S £ Y6 U 25 1 6 5% 37 o A i —
—IJUAE— ] — B Z IR &5 B o LAERE
AR A2 0 i w0 D £ 1 7 55 20 A
AR % L B B o ) O o AN SR B

i ATEL B TR A SR A A B A M
JFF R B I T {1 S e R Py {7 T A

B E—HAE—H— B RS E
ATV AR TERRAR > A SE FIE ARk LN 5
Tl w0 P M > T S i TR U T £
AR 0T 1A DA A 0 e R AR PR A
LB A A 4 7 o AR PR UL 7 i I
T 5 L R o LB EEL(e)
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12

Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB15,094,000. This amount primarily related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy

agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 19(d) and
23, respectively.

The land use rights under right-of-use assets with carrying
value of RMB338,118,000 were pledged as securities for
bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2019 (Note
22).

(i) Land use rights

The Group holds several industrial buildings for
its aluminium business, where its manufacturing
facilities are primarily located. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests,
including the whole or part of undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests
from their previous registered owners, and there
are no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to
time and are payable to the relevant government

authorities.
(ii) Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its plant through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 3
to 10 years. Lease payments are usually increased
every year to reflect market rentals.

12

1 Fi) HE & 5 (an)

RN (PR A T B A AR 15,094,000
Lo R EREHE W HIE T EAR
AL JREAS FHL B A A B

FHERSWHAELHESEZ R HE
BT s 18 40 Bl 0 B 52 19(d) K23 o

RoE—NETFHZ=Z+—H ERES
N #5338,118,000 G K A& EIH N L+
i R L IR A 2 A 4R I SRA T B R 4
5 (B EE22)

()

(ii)

& 4 55

A I 0L B S T A e
BT MR A T LT - A4
2 E e A 2 B RO
L5 A B 4t 2 A AR AR A3 R 1 4)
% o 17 3% 5 ) SEME 4 2 il &
RO NS % 2 1 SEE G TR —
AT 3K B3Il 4 AR 4 1 3t AR
R A A3 AR R A B R
188 I S ) MR R 2 M LA o 1) 51
TR A o 5% S A BRI T 52 B AT
T AT B U B -

HAb M A AR

% S5 01 975 08 R B T e M A O ) A
Wt (fEREME) MRS - &g —
5 40 25 By A3 F 104F o A1 4+ 3ol
HE R ARG > DA T35 A 42K
o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

13 #HAH4

Land use rights

-+ £ ) A
(Note)
(BaF)
RMB 000
AR ¥ET T
Cost: BRAR
At 1 January 2018 WoF—NF—H—H 439,490
Additions N 181
At 31 December 2018 R_F—/\FHFZHA=+—H 439,671
Impact on initial application of )25 T8 Y R I B 5 i o Y DB 16905 1) 2
IFRS 16 (Note 12) (Bititi2) (439,671)
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 AR —NE—A—H R
—%- ¥ t+=-A=t-8 - -
Accumulated amortisation: 2 %’r%fﬁ :
At 1 January 2018 WoFE—-NHE—H—H (65,791)
Charge for the year RS (8,766)
At 31 December 2018 RoFE—-ANFE+H=+—H (74,557)
Impact on initial application of IFRS 16 W25 I (B8] I B R 5 e )5 1 655 1Y) S
(Note 12) (MtaE12) 74,557
At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 A ~ZF —JLAFE—H —H K&
ZEZ—-HFEtT+ZHA=1+—H -
Carrying amount: R THI A
At 31 December 2019 RoEz -+ A =1+—H -
At 31 December 2018 AZE— ) EF+ZA=+—H 365,114
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13 Lease prepayments (continued)

Note:

()

(i1)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use
assets relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under IAS 17. The depreciated
carrying amount of the Group’s land use rights located
in the PRC which were previously included in lease
prepayments is also identified as a right-of-use asset.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 1(c).

Lease prepayments represent the Group’s land use
rights located in the PRC. As at 31 December 2018,
the remaining period of the land use rights ranges
from 35 to 50 years.

The lease prepayments with carrying value of
RMB247,580,000 were pledged as securities for
bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2018
(Note 22).

13

AL 4 )
W2k 7S T L ER R A AT WY i ) 14 RE

()

(i1)

12 O S 5 e 15 Y 1) 5 1 6 NI AR S &
—JUFE—H—H Z W& & LIERR St
AL 457 0 e A ) 55 1 7 95 0 S A A
LB A AR 5 T 0 ) RE 7 o AR [T 5
R E AT 8 FEAS R I A o Y
PR B 85 W T (S e 2 5 P o
AR UL 5 % > I 48 5] LE W R o LR
EAOK

T AT AR < 4 A S | AR P B 2+
o A RE - —F— NF+ A
=+—H LM &% ER
T35 8 504F -

WoF—-NE+_HA=+—H
T {E 2 N R H247,580,0007C 2 FE 1+
T4 BRI > 75 2 AR 42 F SR AT B
ZAER (B sE22) -
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Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of

subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or

liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated:

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

T Wit & 2y W 2 K

TR T A WA R
B BB 2 A REAS o BR 5 A 4R R E S
HFp A 2 A U 7 3 2 T

14

Proportion of ownership interest

Authorised/
Place and date of registered and Group’s
incorporation/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the ~ Held by a
Name of companies establishment capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
aE L,/ Wi/ wE Rk AEE WAL A
B % 1 LS B % 1B MRk HEHG kil O EEER
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI United States 100% 100% - Investment holding
(“Xingfa BVI") 2 October 2007 Dollars
(“USD”) 2,000/
USD2,000
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited KRELHE 2,000% 7t igeade
([ Xingfa BVI ) < S 2 (1%5xl)/
tAZH 2,000 7
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD1,000/ 100% - 100%  Sales of aluminium
( Xmgfa Hong Kong ’) 14 April 2008 HKD1,000 profiles
ﬁ%’ééﬂ% FilE) HRAF 3 1000476,/ SHE R
[A%EE]) “EFNE 1,000 ¢
Ly S
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd PRC RMB360,040,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
W ABLE SR A RAT (i)ip) 26 May 2006 RMB360,040,000 sales of aluminium
(“Guangdong Xingfa”) profiles
Eﬁ L3 50 A IR ) i) Gl N iﬂi%ﬁ’@%’” #
(TRREE]) “EERE 360,040,0007¢,/
AAZTAH AR
360,040,0007¢
Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd. PRC RMB130,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
LA (HUER) A IR A (o)) 7 July 2009 RMB130,000,000 sales of aluminium
(“Xingfa Chengdu”) profiles
LS GRE (HURD) A IR i) i N i?&%ﬁﬁiﬂ"" {2
(TELEAH)) “FENE 130,000,0007C/
tALH N
130,000,0007C
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. 14 August 2009 RMB100,000,000 sales of aluminium
TR BB SR 3 (TLIE) 4 R ) )i profiles
(“Xingfa Jiangxi”)
BORBE R (L) A RA /GG TR N RS R
(THELR]) “FENE 100,000,0007C/
AR+IA N

100,000,0007¢
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14 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 14 RMEARZHEE )
Proportion of ownership interest
L 1:41]
Authorised/
Place and date of registered and Group’s
incorporation/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the  Held by a
Name of companies establishment capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
s,/ Wi/ wE Rk REE WAL A
B % 1 B B B H MREEA  ERES kil IR £
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) PRC RMB100,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. 10 May 2010 RMB100,000,000 sales of aluminium
JER IR () A IRAF ()i profiles
(“Xingfa Henan”)
ROREBAE (R ARA A PR N B RHE SRR
(T ) “Z-%% 100,000,00075,/
TATH NI
100,000,0007C
Foshan Xingfa Real EstateCo., Ltd. PRC RMB8,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Development, sale
LT S EE R A A RA A ()Giii) 5 Tune 2013 RMBS,000,000 and management of
(“Xingfa Real Estate”) properties
fhil i BB R E B AR A R G)a) P N VEL AL
(THEFHE]) SRk 8,000,0007C / REH
AAIA N
8,000,0007¢
Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Trading of aluminium
LT B I A IR A (i) 3 December 2014 RMB10,000,000 profiles
(“Xingfa Trading”)
o i B 7 A PR R i) i NG RV
(TREHE]) e Sl [ 10,000,0007%,/
+ZAZH N
10,000,0007¢
Guangdong Xingfa Precision PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 26 September 2017 RMB119,036,000 sales of precision
T RELBE R A RN A () i) products
(“Xingfa Precision”)
SR LB 0 A A R0 R ) i) i N EERHERTED
(TR ]) SR 200,000,007,/
JURZ+AH N
119,036,0007C
Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture PRC RMB20,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Manufacturing and
Technology Co., Ltd. 20 July 2018 RMB15,500,000 sales of architecture
T R LB IR A LA IR A (1)) products
(“Xingfa Aoke”)
RRARANRENEARA AGG)  PH N LERHEREED
(TRERRH]) “E-0E 20,000,0007¢ /
tAZ+H N

15,500,0007¢
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14 RHEARZBE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

A B0
Authorised/
Place and date of registered and Group’s
incorporation/ fully paid-up effective  Held by the ~ Held by a
Name of companies establishment capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
s,/ Wi /R ARE mkLE HEEAR
B % 1 B3 B B H MREEA  ERES kil O EEER
Guangdong Xingfa Environment PRC RMB12,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Manufacturing
Technology Co., Ltd. 30 August 2018 RMB2,500,000 and sales of
RO B R R A RA A (i) environment
(“Xingfa Environment”) » protection products
B B BRI R A IR L)) e NG B RHERRE S
(TR ]) It S\ 2 12,000,0007%,/
AA=1H NG
2,500,0007C
(i) These entities are all PRC limited liability () FAEEBY PR RAA %
companies. The English translation of the company NFEI BB TR EEMR S 5%
names are for reference only. The official names of NGNS W - L &y
these companies are in Chinese.
(i) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned (i1) A NV TINEE ) (e
enterprise.
(iii)) The subsidiaries are companies with limited (i) FZEMEARSARELAF -

liability.

. . > P sy > RYN
Interest in an associate 15 REZEAnZHERE
Details of the Group’s interest in the associate, which is AL AT s F RE SR (R &5 B RS
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated FAH AR IR ARR) T -
financial statements, are as follows:
Proportion of
ownership interest
B HE L )
Form of Place of Particulars ~ Group’s
business incorporation and of issued and  effective Held by Principal
Name of associate structure business paid-up capital interest a subsidiary activities
C#ik  KEH o 5 2% )

Tt > 7 44 1 EBHRAMER GRUERAES 3E B GAEN ARG Eiki) EEEH
Jiangxi Province Jingxing Limited liability People’s Republic of Registered capital of 80% (ii) 80% (ii) Manufacturing

Aluminium Panel Manufacturing company China RMBS,000,000 and sales of

Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Jingxing”) aluminium panels

(LG & R BRI

AR (@) )
AR REERAT  ARAH Gk NIl M E A HEE TS B SRR

(MPREL) () AR #5,000,0007C
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15 Interest in an associate (continued)

(i) The English translation of the company name is for
reference only. The official name of the company is

in Chinese.

(i) 20% of Jiangxi Jingxing’s paid-up capital was
contributed by J& JH 5 B A SR B A R A A
(in English for identification only, Guangzhou
Jingxing Construction Technology Co., Ltd.)
(“Guangzhou Jingxing”). The Group has entered
into the contractual arrangement with Guangzhou
Jingxing. According to the agreement, Guangzhou
Jingxing has control over Jiangxi Jingxing. Hence,
the Group considered that Jiangxi Jingxing is an

associate of the Group.

Jiangxi Jingxing, the only associate in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity
whose quoted market price is not available.

During 2019, the amount of the Group’s share
of profit from this associate and the realised
profit from transactions with this associate are
RMB2,567,000 (2018: RMB5,797,000) and
RMB1,939,000 (2018: unrealised profit of

RMB1,108,000), respectively.

15

i gk 2 O W) 2 BE AR oar)

(i) SR ZEXHEERSE
AL Y L EE

(i) VLY B 2 20%%0 2 B AR B N
S B S RL A RS A (TR 5t
B ) B o AR 4R [ B BHLRRE N S BT
ST A H P AR AR I R RN S
S VTG SR B A A R R AR 4R
VB 6 VG S LA 2 A AR B 2 g
Ao

TP 5% S A A O — 22 BRL () I
Al R Bl A R O
T35 R M5 -

A T — JUAR » AR AR T RE A 5%
2 B 386 R T B 5% B N R A 5
FE AR 2 R B R A B A N R
#2.567,0007C ( =& — N4 : AR
#5,797,00008) & A K #51,939,000
JE (A R R
#1,108,0007C) °
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Inventories and other contract costs 16 F8 &HAMmEH A
2019 2018
R s Tk AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRE T AT T
Inventories 8
Aluminium profiles manufacturing §i B A 5
— Raw materials — 5t B 312,721 260,446
— Work in progress —TER 110,018 471,823
— Finished goods — B 461,193 134,086
883,932 866,355
Property development LUE 190
— Land use rights — - i fe P A 28,538 27,847
— Deed tax — 3R 2,866 3,273
— Construction costs — R A 219,039 242,706
250,443 273,826
Other contract costs At A 29 A - 3,863
1,134,375 1,144,044
(a)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (a) WA Z Rt AREZFEEH
recognised as an expense and included in profit ST
or loss is as follows:
2019 2018
ZE & \4E
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARE T AT
Carrying amount of inventories sold B8 {7 & MR (H 9,791,036 8,573,745
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16

Inventories and other contract costs
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

No property under development is expected to be
recovered after more than one year (2018: Nil).
All of the other inventories are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Contract costs

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December
2019 relate to the incremental sales commissions
paid to property agents whose selling activities
resulted in customers entering into sale and
purchase agreements for the Group’s properties
which are still under construction at the reporting
date. Contract costs are recognised as part of
“distribution costs” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which revenue
from the related property sales is recognised. No
capitalised cost was recognised in profit or loss
during the year (2018: RMB12,911,000). There was
no impairment in relation to the opening balance of
capitalised costs or the costs capitalised during the
year.

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph

94 of IFRS 15 and recognises the incremental costs of

obtaining contracts relating to the sale of completed

properties and services as an expense when incurred if the

amortisation period of the assets that the Group otherwise

would have recognised is within the same reporting period

as the date of entering into the contract.

No capitalised contract costs that is expected to be

recovered after more than one year.

16

A8 B L Ath &5 IR (49)

(b)

TR — 4 DIAR Al i o] 2 38 )
EERBE (2R — /) o ff
A H A A7 B TR AT — 4 R[] o

R A

RoE-JUEF =1 —HE&EAR
b & %) LA B S A5 T 1 B 905 B ALk
HF R B AR 4R A e 2
HIEA-S- 17 LR/ NS Libpbw
B 4 A B o A 4 AR FE T R AR B
Py 2 B Y A IR R S A 1R 2SR
TERB B [ 4384 LA | () — 853 o AAF
JE RS A A 4R 25 R AR AL AR 4
B E—UE AR%12,911,000
JC) o G AAL B A 1 ) 4 i ok AR
A A AL B AR 7 20 Gk A

A I R TR B A Y 2R 1598 5594
BB FI AT REEL T % > A AR 4R B s LA H A Ty
SRR ) 5% 55 S 1) 44 0 ] 9 AE B T
SEA A H S BA R () 0T PR o S A B
AN I A LG 1 9 B S B B A MR A
IR 114 38 2 i A i 8 2 B S o

Slf7 408 FH G — 4 4R W[ B9 B AL A 2 AL

7 o
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17 %2 5 B 3L Al W sk JH

2019 2018
- S| R —E— A
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
bt il ANR¥Fi N R+
Trade debtors and bills receivable, 2T S ME W TE R
net of loss allowance MEWCEEE (0B
i A ) ()/(ii) 2,824,832 2,620,584
Other debtors, net of loss allowance H:fth & it 7K JH
(0B s 18 40 (iii) 79,887 23,314
Financial assets measured at FEHE B AR TR 2
amortised cost 4 Rl 2,904,719 2,643,898
Dividend receivable JRE g It 2 (iv) 19,855 -
Deposits and prepayments 2 4 Je TR AT #0E 178,982 148,130
3,103,556 2,792,028
@) No trade debtor was pledged as securities for bank i) W E—JE+_H=+—H I
loans of the Group as at 31 December 2019 (31 40 2% Sy M SO TE L G P A A A 4
December 2018: RMB57,659,000) (Note 22). SR AT B R HRAT i ( ZF — N4
THA=+—H: AR¥57,659,000
Jt) (HEgE22) °
(ii)  No bills receivable was pledged as securities for (ii) W o_E—JE+_H=+—H:
bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2019 A0 JRE A T4 L HC P AR 2 A SR [ 4R AT
(31 December 2018: RMB192,333,000) (Note 22). BRI (== /FE 1A
=1+ —H: AR ¥192,333,00070)
(F5E22) -
(iii)  As at 31 December 2019, loss allowance on other (i) M-F—NNLE+_HA=+—H"

debtors is RMB2,294,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB3,415,000).

e Ath R i 3k TE 2 B IR B AR
#:2.294,0007C ( & — NAE+ A
=+—H: ANR%3,415,0007C) °
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17

Trade and other receivables (continued)

(iv)  As at 31 December 2019, dividend receivable of
RMB19,855,000(31 December 2018: Nil) is due

from the associate of the Group, Jiangxi Jingxing.

v) The Group’s trade and other receivables as at 31
December 2019 included amounts due from related
parties of RMB43,792,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB134,690,000) (Note 31(b)(i)). The remaining
current trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense within one

year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of
trade debtors and bills receivables (which are included in
trade and other receivables) based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

17

B8 S Be LAt T Wk JH (49)

(iv), WMZF—NHFE+_H=1+—H &
WA 45 T W 7 )V B S B 6 A
il 4 A BR 2> | R N R
19,855,0007C ( —&F — N4+ A

=t—H: M) -

(v) AEER=EF—NLFET+H=Z1—
H 0 58 By B o Ath 1 i 3k TE 60 45 1
Wi B 8 U7 R IE N IR #643,792,000
(= E—=NFE+ZH=1T—H:
A R #134,690,0000C) (Kt 5£31(b)
(i) 8 N E M2 85 K H A R L
TR TR A — 4 T i ] 8 e 5 2 B

o

R B8 43 e

T SR > 45 8% 52 U R RS 41 B O 1R
B M 2 22 B B MSURKIE I B SR iR (LTS
it A2 5 B FoAt B WSO ) 2 BR i 23 Hr

I

2019 2018
“EZ A —E— 4E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fix NER¥For

Within 1 month — 1 A A" 1,574,144 1,177,207
1 to 3 months —FE =M A 704,279 782,075
3 to 6 months =ZE N H 393,040 524,965
Over 6 months ek AN DS 153,369 136,337
2,824,832 2,620,584

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 days
to 180 days from the date of billing. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivable are set out in Note 28(a).

28 Sy MRE AL 3¢ T T JRE s S i B B 4% 30
H 2180 H N 2 11 - 75 BH 4= 4 M {5 £ BUK
R 58 5y ME MUK T e IR i 5 0 7 6 1) 15 AL
B 1Y) A — 20 51 O B EE28 () o
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Pledged deposits 18

Pledged deposits mainly represented bank deposits pledged
to bank as securities for certain banking facilities, bills
payable, and other deposits, required by the local laws and
regulations (Note 22).

Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19
flow information

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

C 4K #1717 K

ORI A7k B9 TR TERATIE A A T
AT (5 B0 AT SRR 2 PR 2 SRAT AR 30
L 0 ) B BB RE 1 F At A7 3K (B sk
22) -

BBl e&FEY L&
<@

(a BERAEFHDORE:

2019 2018
A e SIS
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR Tt N BRWT T

Cash at bank and on hand AT ] TP 4

528,003 448,787
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19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19

BEkBlE&FEY LS &

flow information (continued) WMEER (42)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) ErBiniw A EEFE ARG S Y
generated from operations: M
2019 2018
—Z A e SN2
(Note)
(Bt tE)
Note RMB’000 RMB 000
B 7 AR T NR¥F T
Profit before taxation Bl /1 i45 A 723,470 607,916
Adjustments for: KR A1) 4 TH 0 %%
Depreciation P8 5(c) 336,297 281,663
Amortisation of lease T 15 7 ASH AR 46
prepayments 5(c) - 8,766
Impairment losses on trade A 5y B HoAth R Wi 2 TR
and other receivables SRR R 5(c) 47,175 18,805
Equity-settled share-based DR M 4 53 DA R 17
payment expenses TR AT FRBH S 5b) 2,325 561
Finance costs B AR 5(a) 151,480 164,221
Interest income FLE WA 4 (42,734) (7,813)
Loss on disposal of property, HEE - RE &
plant and equipment 2 1A 4 2,800 374
Share of profit of an associate {5 — [l B 4% /A 7
i 1 15 (2,567) (5,797)
Unrealised profit from e H B — [ B S
transactions with an INTAE G0
associate o 58 Bk 15 (1,939) 1,108
Net foreign exchange loss AN 5 48 75 58 (1,188) 2,384
Changes in working capital: MRS B
Change in inventories and 17 B K Hofth & &) i A
other contract costs 2 55 9,669 134,688
Change in trade and other 25 e HoAth FE Wi
receivables B 2 5 ) (338,848) (685,351)
Change in trade and other A8 5 K HoAth JE f-F
payables IHZ 5 ) 234,409 986,166
Change in contract liabilities SHAafEz g (54,221) (168,513)
Change in deferred income PEAE UL A 2 5 ) (8,536) (14,709)
Cash generated from EBEEZHE
operations 1,057,592 1,324,469
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19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: (continued)

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating
to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. Previously,
cash payments under operating leases made
by the Group as a lessee of RMB2,972,000
were classified as operating activities in the
consolidated cash flow statement. Under IFRS
16, except for short-term lease payments,
payments for leases of low value assets and
variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities, all other rentals
paid on leases are now split into capital element
and interest element (see Note 19(c)) and
classified as financing cash outflows. Under the
modified retrospective approach, the comparative
information is not restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to IFRS 16 are set out in
Note 1(c).

fo B B 5 e A PR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

HEkBREEHED RELMWEE
WMEER (42)

(b) ERBiRTEASEEF AR EZH
W : (A7)

Mfat - AR TR A SRR WY
U ) I T B S ME RIS 16
BRI —F— LE—H —
H 2 8000 45 6k > DURE SR e AT A i
] %t B SR 7R A R 4K
L ) L R B O P A
MR A o AR BE AR AR
EEE i kX PN
#52,972,00070 55 1l A %7 £ Bl 4
i3 NS S T B o AR
I 5% B A5 A R BB 16908 - PR oA
FEAGFT R EAMEN I E
A5k~ L AR (B A5 3K S T
BB I > A HAL A &
LA 46 B IRE 20 1 2 A 4 0 O
SRR Ay (BLBEHEE19(c) ) KAy
B RAE B &0 - AR EERT
WG A B LB R o AT
o) A0 P T I S S O 5
168 19 52 00 o — 20 SE I R
B 5E1(c) °
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19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19 W& KB E&EEHY KL b3 4

flow information (continued) WMEER (42)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) il G B RS 2k 0 A 2 BHIR

financing activities

Interest
rate swaps
held to
hedge
Loans and Interest Lease borrowings
borrowings payable liabilities (liabilities) Total
i A 00
% RN HE
Bk B fis B HE it B MR fLfR (fifR) A5t
Note 22 Note 20 Note 23 Note 28(e)(i)
Hit22 Hit20 Wit23  Wiat28e)i)

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARKTIE  ARKTL  AREFLC  ARBETE  ARFTX

At 31 December 2018 W FE— N
+ZA=Z+—n 1,845,727 12,709 - - 1,858,436
Impact on initial application of ) & & 1 [ % i1 745 4 15 e A
IFRS 16 (Note 2) H69E 2 R (HFE2) - - 9,164 - 9,164
At | January 2019 RZFE—NE—-H—H 1,845,727 12,709 9,164 - 1,867,600

Changes from financing MEHSWRZ

cash flows: )
Proceeds of new bank loans W RAT B2 BT R EOR 2,437,078 - - - 2,437,078
Repayments of bank loans R SRAT 3K (2,583,697) - - - (2,583,697)
Capital element of lease O S 2 &40

rentals paid - - (3,430) - (3,430)
Interest element of lease B B A 4 2 A B 2

rentals paid - - (716) - (716)
Finance costs paid B 1 B HS AR - (161,264) - - (161,264)
Total changes from financing Al & Bl & i 2

cash flows BERE (146,619) (161,264) (4,146) - (312,029)
Exchange adjustments 5t 2 il 4 (696) - - - (696)
Changes in fair value AT - - - 698 698
Other changes: Hibgg):
Increase in lease liabilities from 7% H 5T 7 B A & 2k 2.

entering into new leases T 55 A f s

during this period - - 15,094 - 15,094
Interest expenses (Note 5(a))  FI BB (H7E502)) - 150,764 716 - 151,480
At 31 December 2019 =LA

tZA=1T—H 1,698,412 2,209 20,828 698 1,722,147
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w56 B ik 3R B T
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

. 2
19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19 HE&RB &% EHY AHbEH 4
. . vay Bl YR P —
flow information (continued) mEE R )
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) REE B EAEM A BIK ()
financing activities (continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the Mt AT A ZERT RN
modified retrospective method and adjusted the Ufy B A I B B R E IS 16
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise SR BN —F — JLE—H —
lease liabilities relating to leases which were H 2 BI04 6 > ATERR e AR 48
previously classified as operating leases under W g s e RIS 1795 2 A 5
IAS 17. See Notes 1(c) and 19(b). AEHEMAEMEEEAR B

BF3E1(c) K 19(b) -

Loans and Interest Lease
borrowings payable liabilities Total
B R fh £ JE & L £ wit

Note 22 Note 20 Note 23

Hit22 Hit20 Hit23
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000
ARWT I ARWT T ARWFIT AR BT

At 1 January 2018 RoF—\—H—H 2,482,699 12,093 - 2,494,792

Changes from financing cash flows: Bl & R & W E 2 %5 :

Proceeds of new bank loans B BT 2 I 75 FOR 2,180,600 - - 2,180,600

Repayments of bank loans ERMITER (2,817,572) - - (2,817,572)

Finance costs paid AT BB LA - (163,605) - (163,605)

Total changes from financing BEHSMEZ EHAME

cash flows (636,972) (163,605) - (800,577)

Other changes: HAibsE)

Interest on bank loans (Note 5(2))  SATERME (Hilsa)) - 164,221 - 164,221

At 31 December 2018 W= F—

+ZA=+—H 1,845,727 12,709 - 1,858,436
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19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19
flow information (continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for

BEkBlE&FEY LS &

mMEER )
d HEBHLRLAHE

MR ABLE 8RN SR

leases comprise the following: T
2019 2018
—E R e
(Note)
(Hit)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T IT
Within operating cash flows BN S HeRE 1,445 2,972
Within financing cash flows Ja s i B 4 I 4,146 -
5,591 2,972

Note: As explained in the note to Note 19(b), the
adoption of IFRS 16 introduces a change in
classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid
on leases. The comparative amounts have not

BiFEE - SR A B FE19(b) B I R > £R 44 R
I B 5 i o ) S 1698 S B0
TR A A 4 Y B 4 iy
o BR A ) o Lb R A I A R

been restated. 5] o
These amounts relate to the following: WAF DL & THA B
2019 2018
ZE - ZE )\
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANREF AR T
Lease rentals paid BT 4 5,591 2,972
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Trade and other payables 20 2R 5y B H il BE ) K JH
2019 2018
“E - e SN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tx NR T
Trade payables 32 5 EA 3K 814,775 664,605
Bills payable JRE A S 1,284,032 1,247,422
Accrued payroll and benefits JREF L B R 219,521 186,842
Other payables and accruals H Al 18 A SR E K
JREF] 2 H 392,202 316,794
Interest payable (Note 19(c)) JREAST RIS, (M AE19(c)) 2,209 12,709
Deferred income (Note 24) IRAE WA (Bt 7E24) 25,349 23,102
Financial liabilities measured at R AT 2 2
amortised cost (a) & & @) 2,738,088 2,451,474
Derivative financial instrument: i e m T H:
— held as cash flow hedging instruments (b) — FF/E Bl 4 it
Bk T Hb) 698 -
2,738,786 2,451,474
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20

Trade and other payables (continued)

(a)

(b)

20

52 By B Fo At JE ASF K JE (1)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (a)  TREREH ARG & Z 4 b A
All of the trade and other payables, apart from A 28 Gy B oAb A 3k I (B B
those mentioned in Note 21, are expected to be 21 4l 35 A6 ) TE LR — 4F N AT
settled or recognised as income within one year or o e R 2 WA Tk R SR A o
are repayable on demand.
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging P a8 N R B i =y
analysis of trade payables and bills payable (which S WEAT 3CTE KA 52 48 (T 5EA
are included in trade and other payables), based on 38 5 B Fo A AT BRI 2 W% 43 A7
the invoice date, is as follows: s
2019 2018
ZEJuE TE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Within 1 month —fHH A 715,231 771,715
1 to 3 months —FE =M A 384,420 470,252
3 to 6 months ==NMA 583,421 517,031
Over 6 months A 7N A H 415,735 153,029
2,098,807 1,912,027
Derivative financial instrument (b) WMAEEBILHA

As at 31 December 2019, there was a cross-
currency interest rate swap contract being entered
into with HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited
to hedge against the interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk in respect of short-term loan of
US$7,500,000. The cross-currency interest rate
swap contract will mature on 31 August 2020.
Details of the fair value of the derivative financial

instrument is set out in Note 28(e)(i).

ArFE—NEFF H=Z+—H-F
7 ) R AR AT (b ) A R
SRS U A B B 3K7,500,000 3 TG
2 I S Ja B B A1 SR B R T ST A8 U
e 5 1) 1) S &) o A8 U s A
READAN _F_FF)NHA =+~
H 28 o 74 4 b T B > N F(E R

8 W B 5E28(e) () ©
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Trade and other payables (continued)

The following table provides a reconciliation of the
hedging reserve in respect of interest rate risk and foreign

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

20 AR5 Ko M At E A SRR ()

currency risk and shows the effectiveness of the hedging

relationships:

T RS ) 5 JE B K S R LR ) S fek A
SR > 3l 57 7 3B b BRAR B A

2019

ZE g

RMB’000

AR Fx

Balance at 1 January W—H—HZ & -
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge i L Ath 2 T A A R 2

recognised in other comprehensive income B4 B 2 A R (780)

Amounts reclassified to profit or loss (Note (i)  HH M ER i 2 A (M) ) 778

Balance at 31 December (Note (ii)) WA = — B2 & (aEd)) 2)

Change in fair value of the forward exchange AN A ANE A & 2 AT E S E)

contracts during the year (780)

Effective portion of the cash flow hedge T LAt 42 T i 25 T RR 2

recognised in other comprehensive income B4 T B 2B Ry
(Note 9(b)) (M7t9cb)) (780)

Notes: Kt -

i) Amounts reclassified to profit or loss are recognised in i) OB EREZ KER AR EN
the “Other income” and “Finance costs” line item in the [ A #s | R T RA T RS | 40 E A e 32
consolidated statement of profit or loss (see Notes 4 and ( LB 514 K2 5(a)) -

5(a)).
(ii) The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates to (ii) SR N 2 BT A R B R A A

continuing hedges.

B o
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21

Contract liabilities 21 HHAME
2019 2018
SFOME SF N
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Aluminium profiles apy)
— Billings in advance of performance — & £ A A FOH 163,923 194,439
Property development L/E 395
— Forward sales deposits and — O Wi s A 6
instalments received B o3 BAAT 3k 104 23,809
164,027 218,248

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

B O AR & 2 BB SRR

AN :

B — S

Property development

The Group offer customers a discount compared to
the listed sales price, provided that the customers
agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing, rather than on
legal assignment. Such advance payment schemes
result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the remaining property construction
period for the full amount of the contract price. In
addition, the contract liability will be increased by
the amount of interest expense being accrued by the
Group to reflect the effect of any financing benefit
obtained from the customers during the period
between the payment date and the completion date
of legal assignment. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it therefore increases the amount of
revenue recognised when control of the completed

property is transferred to the customer.

) 3 5% i

A R T T AE AN R i
TR 5E A R AT SR AU o R
A 2R WA B R A B 1 & P BRI
0o 5% B A ARG I EOR R B )
SE R R A B & 2 (B RS A3k
BRBME BN AR E A
at LS B S BRI 3 2 4 R A LA
JR AR S T A i I 2 0
SE I H I HGE % 15 B B9 AT fo
I 4 0 5 28 o i MERH I H 8 T &
7 Y TR B 5 ) R TR T 9%
T ¥ T W) S B 2 W RE R RS T & 5 I
AR AU A o
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Contract liabilities (continued)

Movements in contract liabilities

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

2019 2018
ZEJuE TR 4
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥ T AR ¥ET T
Balance at 1 January W= H—HZ &R 218,248 386,761
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of TEFR A A
recognising revenue during the year that (FEABR G K B
was included in the contract liabilities at MELZ /R EE
the beginning of the period (218,248) (385,301)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result 3 Y ) TR AT BKCIE T
of billing in advance of manufacturing SR A A A R
activities 163,923 194,316
Increase in contract liabilities as a result TSN 4 A A R R A 2
of receiving forward sales instalments Py S U 1 8
during the year in respect of properties not 43 I i EE A 4
delivered as at the year end 104 22,472
Balance at 31 December B+ _H=+—HZ4H% 164,027 218,248

No billings in advance of performance and forward sales
instalments is received expected to be recognised as

income after more than one year (2018: Nil).

SO S8 WS MR 2 A LA T T A A £ 4
R IR — SF AR R A (& —

i) o

291



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 i B BR A 7)

292 Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

Bk & Afn &

22 Loans and borrowings 22

B FE-FETF A= H BSOS

At 31 December 2019, loans and borrowings were

repayable as follows:

FERETR T 51 H R R -

2019 2018

SENE F A

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANR¥ T AR IFT T

Within one year — N 1,284,005 1,467,523
After 1 year but within 2 years — AR AR AH WA N 349,200 286,659
After 2 years but within 5 years MHEFZBEREN 15,150 91,545
After 5 years TAER 50,057 -
414,407 378,204

1,698,412 1,845,727

At 31 December 2019, all loans and borrowings were

secured, and were secured by the following assets of the

ACE—-JUET A= —H A ER
BAEEETIE T AT K AL LN B E

Group. FE KA -
2019 2018
ZEJuE TE A
(Note)
(Hit)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARMT T
Carrying value of assets: % R T -
Other property, plant and equipment HAh W2 - W5 I 5k
(Note 11) (MfaE11) 602,309 241,684
Right-of-use assets (Note 12) i RE & R (Mt aE12) 338,118 -
Lease prepayments (Note 13) TEAT R (M aE13) - 247,580
Bills receivable (Note 17) MW AR (M at17) - 192,333
Trade debtors (Note 17) 5 MEWSCE A (M aE17) = 57,659
Pledged deposits O HEHR A7 3K 8,402 8,571
Total Mt 948,829 747,827
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Loans and borrowings (continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

As at 31 December 2019, banking facilities of the
Group totaling RMB7,690,366,000 (31 December
2018: RMB6,151,800,000) were utilised to the
extent of RMB2,599,084,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB2,472,939,000).

As at 31 December 2019, certain bank loans of the
Group, amounted to RMB339,000 (31 December 2018:
RMB643,000), are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios,
which are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the drawn down loans would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 28(b). As
at 31 December 2019, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down loans had been breached (2018: Nil).

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

B RIEE 4)

Wi aE - A PR T AAE R 48 U IR ) I R T I
% B 5 0 E ) 5 1 65% « MR I T

Lo i R R T8 o 2 BB REL(C) ©
W ZE—-NLFT+H=Z+—H> ﬁAZIK%
A 3t AR %7,690,366,0000C ( & — )\

EJr A=+—H: J\E”“n%lswooooo
Jt) Z AT E R AR #52,599,084,000
(ZF—-NFF+_A=+—H: AR¥

2,472,939,00073) mOeH A -

ﬁé:?~ﬁﬁ+*ﬂ =t—H> AEEFT
TRITEH AR 339,00000 ( —F— /)\4F
Jr#HQJr H N R #643,00000) 7H
EWARME ARG TEEAMRLRZ
A (CH SR B S M T L 2 B PR )
BHAVEE - MALEBERZERL B
tmﬁxz% RIS B R R B R - AR E I
REBTEERL ALY
T E 4 R 2 B o — A R N
FE28(b) c A ZE—IJUE T H = + El>
I 418 48 S ATAAT A B R U B 2 324 (
F— AR - )

J]IL/T‘\ /\
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23 Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to IFRS 16:

23 HMEHAE
T RGN IR A G I B S o WK K
0 P 2 (R R P e Y BB 16 5 H R AL
BREZHBAARMH -
31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (Note)
ZE-METFZAZETH “E-NE-H-H ()

Present value
of the minimum

Present value

Total minimum  of the minimum Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments lease payments lease payments

I AL AR I AL AR RAEH & RIEH &

ik Y BLE sk 4 AR BEE Gp et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000

ARW T ARW T AR T ARBT T

Within 1 year —HR 6,907 7,082 1,250 1,285
After 1 year but within 2 years — RN 9,599 10,526 1,268 1,367
After 2 years but within 5 years WA R E AR 2,329 3,008 3,600 4,285
After 5 years TR 1,993 2,657 3,046 4,162
13,921 16,191 7914 9,814

20,828 23,273 9,164 11,099

Less: total future interest expenses T R AR B B S A (2,445) (1,935)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAESRE 20,828 9,164

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. Comparative information
as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated. Further
details on the impact of the transition to IFRS 16 are set
out in Note 1(c).

A AR [ ©BR 4816 5T 48 9 125 ) I TE T
I 58 5 R A Y B 56 1 o B G S i —
—JUE— A — B Z &R LIRS L
AR 5 B P Y ) SR 1 7 R A e e
VENERRENER L R = =R R & i
CE - NEF A E RS
ko A7 B U 2 B R A S S HE R 2B 16
S 5 B — B R R MR L (o) -
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3 2 W A

Deferred income 24

FUAGE) KRB AR T 2R IE A Z

The movements in deferred income as stated under current

and non-current liabilities are as follows: BT :
2019 2018
ZE T\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T AR IFT T
At 1 January w—H—H 54,085 68,794
Received during the year A T RS 16,818 6,416
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 4) BT N TERR (M At4) (25,354) (21,125)
At 31 December wt—-_H=+—H 45,549 54,085
Less: current portion included in trade and & : 51| A 3¢ %) S HiAth
other payables (Note 20) JE AT 3R TH 2
Ui B
(Htit20) (25,349) (23,102)
20,200 30,983

Deferred income represents government grants obtained
for the purposes of subsidising the Group’s operation
costs and sponsoring the costs of acquisition of fixed
assets incurred by the Group. Government grants received
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position as deferred income.

Government grants received to subsidise the operation
costs are amortised through profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the related costs of
operation are incurred.

Government grants received for sponsoring costs of
acquisition of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset.

A HEE WS 5 0 SO A R 2 7 A
By A% S5 1 S 1] 7 O E A 2 TR T B
2 UG Al B 4 o B HURS 2 SRR A B <2 40
T A AR DL R A TR A AR AR LA

LA Ul 6 A T R A 2 RS Al 1 < T AR
IR A48 8% AR B A 22 A [ S0 i e 2% 0 M 2
7 i 18 4 1 o

LW [ R T A 2 B A T A
I A B 4 4 8 T AR DA 48 A 1 e

27
i o
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25

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company granted share options pursuant to a share
option scheme on 15 October 2018. Pursuant to the
share option scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to grant share options
to employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group and other eligible participants, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The options granted
will vest after two years to four years from the date of
grant and are then exercisable on or before 14 October
2023. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross

in shares.

(a) Details of the options granted on 15 October
2018 are as follows:

Number of

25

%Hﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁk%%%?&

ARAAR ZF - NEH A+ HRE—
TE B AE T 3 432 L O SRR o AR R I MR
# > AL E IE SRR 1) A 42 1 A B
(ELIEA B BAE T B B~ Al 2 I oA &
B 2 B ) 45 1T PBORE DL R I A A mD
o METR S I B 452 iy H U AR WY = 00 4
7 S BEAR A — & = AR A I H R
ZHIAT AT o 4% 1 M RO HEE MK T o A B
A8 AR 2 ) — s A B % D B3 48
o

@  REFEAE AR
I A

Vesting conditions Contractual life

underlying shares of options
A JB A 2 B H Bl AR JEIROHE A A AR
Options granted to directors:
JALLT 4 T 3 3 2 WA -
—on 15 October 2018 204,334 2 years from the date of grant S years
——F-NE+A+TLH EEEENER iR AR 4
—on 15 October 2018 204,333 3 years from the date of grant 5 years
——Z-NFt+HA+EH B H % =4 A
—on 15 October 2018 204,333 4 years from the date of grant S years
——F-NE+A+TRLH SECHNER CE U A
Options granted to employees:
JRLLT BT 8 B 2 W A -
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 2 years from the date of grant 5 years
——F—-/FE+A+RLH A% i H 1 AR A
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 3 years from the date of grant S years
——ZF—-/NE+A+TRH SECHINER L A
—on 15 October 2018 1,189,000 4 years from the date of grant 5 years
——“F-NE+A+TLH B F AR AR 4

Total share options granted

L 452 S A 4

4,180,000
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25 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(a)

Details of the options granted on 15 October
2018 are as follows: (continued)

The exercise of the options granted on 15 October
2018 is conditional upon (i) the fulfilment of
certain requirements on the Company as set out
in the respective offer letters, including, among
others, Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries having achieved the financial
performance target, the auditor expressing no
disclaimer or adverse opinion in the annual
financial report of the Group, there being no
relevant institutions, supervisory boards or audit
departments for state-owned assets investors raising
major objections to the annual financial report of
the Group and there being no significant breaches
by the Company or punishment of the Company
by relevant government authorities; and (ii) the
fulfilment of certain requirements on the grantee
as set out in the respective offer letters, including,
among others, there being no serious dereliction of
duty by the grantee, there being no breach of any
rules or regulations or constitution of the Company
by the grantee, there being no corruption or other
violations and misconducts by the grantee which
caused damage to the Company and there being no
situations where the grantee fails to perform his/her
duties up to the required standard or fails to pass

the assessments of the Group.

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

25 %Bﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁk%%%ﬁ
(#)

(@ REF-NFHATLHRBZE
W REGERE T (A

R FE— ) FEHH L HBEB
JREAE ZEURS AT 4% JE A 3 A% - 7 Al
A0 ()JBAT 4% B2 40 1K 4 Jr s 3 A
NE] AT HRUE > R R R
TR A PR A R MR A F B
) BA 45 B R 5 A% SO I 4 A
M 22 AR IS RS R A R OR
AN BRGEE R WEEEGE
FE NI R B AR~ B R ki
F 1S P S A A ] 2 AT B B A A R
R B DL RO A R A R AR
TR RLAT /5 B 52 S M B R
B K Gi) B AT & B4 R 4 T o
RIZANZ T e H PR
N7 4 f B 4 i 5 R A A A I
AT A 3 FI) B8R 49 B A 2 ) 1 R
AR NN A T s AR R AT S K
AT R T AR S s R 2 A
T M 4 25 A R 52 N 8 3k AT LI 72
o RE A 4 AR AL 2 AL Z AF U o
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25 Equity settled share-based transactions 25 DL RE &5 5 DL N Ay 2 BE R Y 22
(continued) 5 (#5)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise (b) W REBCH K HE P 29 47 06 5
prices of share options are as follows: T:
2019 2018
ZELE ZF— N
Weighted average Number of Weighted average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
T HE 33 77 B 5 TERAEEH  IniEE AT A T HE R H
"000 ‘000
Fh T
Outstanding at the beginning of A G A AT HKD5.46
the year 5.46¥% 70 4,180 - -
Granted during the year FENER L HKDS.46
- = 546 7T 4,180
Outstanding at the end of the year 45 i K47 {fi HKD5.46 HKDS.46
5.46% 70 4,180 5.46% T 4,180

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ 4F K o 7 {#i

No share option was lapsed, cancelled or exercised

during the year.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had
an exercise price of HKD5.46 (2018: HKDS5.46)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 3.79 years (2018: 4.79 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses of
RMB2,325,000 during the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: RMB561,000).

AF TN > B IS MR O 2~ R Y AT
i o

WoZE—NNFET+TA=1+—H>
W AT 8 I R 2 AT (T AE 2 5. 467
JC (= F— )\4E 1 5,461 70) K
IR G A B39 (F
— J\4E 1 4.794F) »

HE-Z—-NF+_H=+—HI
AP B AR A [ e O RO B S IR
#2325,0007C ( = F — V4 AR
#561,00078) °
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25 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

()

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on a binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice

model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date (HK$) 1.32~1.45
Share price (HKS$) 5.27
Exercise price (HK$) 5.46
Expected volatility 45.10%
Option life 5 years
Expected dividends 2.70%
Risk-free interest rate 2.38%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

25 %Bﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁk%%%ﬁ
(#)

(c) Vi BEHE Y 2 P4 % Bk

05 AL T 452 S M s R S PR S ) 2
SF{E > )5 275 P4 I RE B
{ELRT 8 o T3 i 8 S ) 2~ (L il
S i — IE U B R R o A
RE 2 A %9 W1 R T 7E A 2 A i A S
5% AR A E AR R AT

fifi 2 FE I -

S 11 2T 1 T B il
REHE

WV (#oC) 1.32~1.45
RefE (o) 5.27
1T EEfE (o) 5.46
T H U 45.10%
% 8 E A7 3 S4E
TH 1B S 2.70%
41 Ja gz ) % 2.38%

TEUIU U8 W T L 45 S PSR ) o R 3%
TR ik 4 301 T SR A JRR o 6 Ay R EE
Sl 8 22 B 4 S B 9 A T
Y F AR D5 W 5 80 A o R R o TE R
BT LARE S i B R A - T B AR
R 5 AL AT BB B9 At R
HRER-

S HE T AR I S R 432 1 o LR
PRI R B SCBOIR B 8 432 B Y
D8V IR S 48 A A o B PR R
Hh Sz 0 B 24 7 85 A o
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement 26 &AM BERAEZRNZHEH
of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) W &% A W IR DL 3R N Z BP9 B 0E
of financial position represents: #H:

2019 2018

“EZ A TE - \F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt ANRWT T

At 1 January wh—H—H 52,806 24,469
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities ###§ [ %% %E i 6 & 15 4,000 4,500
Transfer from prepayment for LAT O - o (R

TEAT FIH = (6,938)
Provision for LAT (Note 6(a)) - i (B A

(Mtit6a)) 4,842 18,066
Provision for CIT (Note 6(a)) w0 T A5 A 4 A

(Bititeca)) 111,018 82,723
Provision Hong Kong Profits Tax T vk R AT Bl H3E H

(Note 6(a)) (HtiFe6(a)) - 471

Income tax paid O T 459 B (101,826) (68,620)
LAT paid ELAST - 3 (BB (2,192) (1,865)

At 31 December wrHZH=1+—H 68,648 52,806




. . >, 2 Y » ZH 1
26 Income tax in the consolidated statement 26 R TMBRI XN Z s B
of financial position (continued) (%)
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CHERBEERIEE EMAE:
(i)  Movement of each components of () AL B E R A 55 T
deferred tax assets and liabilities Z#E
The components of deferred tax assets/ AP IR A G5 BAFS R UL R TR
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated ZREREE E (A
statement of financial position and the A INER A B A2 BN
movements during the year are as follows:
Unrealised
Temporary profit from
Temporary differences intra-group Government
Impairment of differences from pre- Amortisation transfer of grantsin Undistributed
non-current from right- sales of Credit loss of capitalised certain land deferred ~ profit of PRC
financial assets of-use assets properties allowance Taxloss  confract costs use right income subsidiaries Total
KERATR
AT Ll
Deferred tax assetlabiie)arising B2 2 MAEREAR Fis EMEREL il F+4 fktad  EREEL:  BEHARZ WA
from Yot/ (8 AREENRE [} nER  GRERER HAER RERE  OKEREN BRENE RAREA it
RMB O RMB O RMB O RMB O RMBOW RMBO00 RVBO00 RVB U0 RMBUW RMB O
ARKTE  ARETT ARETE  ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARKTT
At January 2018 REZ-AE-A-H 1,781 - 6155 6,094 n 2141 2494 10319 (5.115) 4114
Credied(charged) to proit r oss RREAGIA/ (R
(Note 62 (it - - (6,155) 857 m 1275 (3,365) (2.008) (3.806) (12678)
Transfered to curenttax HREDNRE - - - - - - - - 450 450
At31 December 2018 REF-AE
T2AZT-H 1787 - - 6951 3448 (966) 18129 8113 (4421) 33036
At January 2019 REE-NE-A-A 1,781 - - 6951 344 (966) 18129 8113 (4421) 33036
Credited(charged) to proft orloss IR/ ()
(Note 6(a)) (Wit - 4 - 705 2450 966 (3981) (356) (11188) (5.004)
Transerred to curent tax ERTNERE - - - - - - - - 400 400
A31 December 2019 RoE-1E
tZAZt-H 1,781 49 14007 5893 14148 1757 (11.,609) 30,03

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement 26
of financial position (continued)

(b)

()

(continued)

If’\‘,.m/‘ﬁﬂ'%ﬂk{ﬂﬁﬁqzﬁ}?ﬁﬁ

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) % T 58 90 8 e W s I B
(#F)
(ii)  Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HLAE G AR 0 B
statement of financial position
2019 2018
SR s TR \AE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥Fi NREEF o
Net deferred tax assets A G A BA S AR 2
recognised in the Tl 38 2 % 4 B IH
consolidated statement of EEFE
financial position 43,641 38,423
Net deferred tax liability A 5B B IR L %
recognised in the R L S B IE
consolidated statement of BEFE
financial position (11,609) (5,387)
32,032 33,036
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) A e 58 2 3 4k B JH £ %

The Group is subject to 5% withholding tax on

dividends receivable from its PRC subsidiaries

in respect of their profits generated since
1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2019,
deferred tax liabilities in respect of temporary

differences relating to such undistributed profits
of RMB2,362,516,000 (2018: RMB1,897,097,000)
were not recognised as the Company controls the

dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has

been determined that those profits will not be

distributed in the foreseeable future.

ALE B AR AR B AP g AR B
ZRENAE— A — B LT E R A
PR AT S BB S 9% KA AR o
NIRRT ol /NS RO D 5
3@ | A (A N I ST N
TR A B A WO —F—JUAE T =
H =1 —H o 3 5k B 3% 55 R 7 Uk
% AN R #2,362,516,0007C (&
—/\4E 0 AR %1,897,097,0000C) A
[P P T IR 22 A 0 A B T A A o
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. e s = L
27 Capital, reserves and dividends 27 JRA - Gk 2 Ik B
Movements in components of equity (a) M3 AR 10 5 Eh
The reconciliation between the opening and AR B A R A 45 AR 2 AR B AR
closing balances of each component of the Group’s K& 2 SR HON 45 6 Wt 2 B
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated R o AN v i | HE 4 AR AR A I 4F
statement of changes in equity. Details of the W B AR R 2 S B s AN
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company 4 Af
Share Share Capital Other Exchange Retained
capital premium Reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
FeAk Rty o JEAb G T4 G REAN it
Note RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
it AGFTFE  ARETE  ARETT  ARKTT  ARKFT ARKTE ARETE
Noe27(c)  Now27 (i) Nowe27(@yii)  Note27(d)i)  Note 27(dv)
Wire  Wavae WA @6 B @h KRG
Balance at 1 January 2018 REE-NE
—A—H 24 » 37 179,568 . 441976 (47,440) 1899 579,674
Changes in equity for 2018~ ~F—AFEREED
Profit for the year FEER - - - - - 72758 7,758
Other comprehensive loss Hh2mER - - - - 25943 - 25943
Total comprehensive loss for £ 2T HAH
the year - - - - 25,943 72,758 98,701
Employee’s share option 1 B B et &1
scheme 25(b) - - 561 - - - 561
Dividend approved in respect £ FAEZ S
of the previous year 27) . - . . . (10483) (70483)
Balance at 31 December 2018~ FA =% —\F
and at | January 2019 TZRAZT-AR
“E-NE-A-H
ZER » 3731 179,568 561 441,976 (21497) 4114 608453
Changes inequity for 2019 —ZF—JUEZEHEH
Profit for the year FE A - - - - - 431 7431
Other comprehensive loss Eib2mES - - - - 10,820 - 10,820
Total comprehensive loss for AT BAH
the year - - - - 10,820 74231 85,051
Employee’s share option & B et 21
scheme 25(b) - - 2325 - - - 2325
Dividend approved in respect % At 2t
of the previous year 271b) - - - - - (73,465) (73,465)
Balance at 31 December 2019 H=F—JLE
TZAZT-H
Va3 K 3731 179,568 2,886 441,976 (10,677) 4,880 622,364
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 27 JEA -~ G RIS (4

(b)  Dividends (b)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year

i 12

@) JEE ] 254 B 2 2K 4 ) fE 5 IR

H I
2019 2018
SEUE SEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR W T AR TIT

Final dividends proposed i B R AR R
after the end of reporting TR A 2 R A B
period of HKDO0.28 per 1 37 4 10,2815 T
ordinary share (& — 4
(2018: HKDO0.20) 5 820.20% 7C)

The final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period has not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting

period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders

105,324 71,419

R i A AR AR R UR A 2 K
S P S SIS 5 S A e

(i)  BAERHRERIRANZ L — W

of the Company attributable to the A JEZ AT A 4 ) B
previous financial year, approved and Y P
paid during the year
2019 2018
SEONE FE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TT NRWT T
Final dividends in respect of  JA 4% (A HL#fE &2
the previous financial year RAT F—1H
were approved and paid W BUAE B 2 R
during the year, of HKDO0.20 & & 4 I 31 8 ik
per ordinary share 0.20#5 70 (= F—/\
(2018: HKDO0.20) 4 A 0.20% T) 73,465 70,483
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 27 JEA -~ G RIS (4)
(c) Share Capital (c) Ji%t A<
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: CETRHE IR :
2019 2018
ZEO0E “E-NE
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
shares fully paid shares shares fully paid shares
it #H SR Hety#H BUE M8
RMB RMB
equivalent equivalent
(000)  HKD’000 ‘000 ('000)  HKD000 000
(TH) Tt F (TH) Tt ¥l
ARETx NE#Tx
At 1 January and at 31 December R=A—Hk
+ZA=+-1 418,000 4,180 3L 418,000 4180 3731
The ordinary shares of the Company has a par value EN/NIR S Y A TR R 5
of HKDO.01 per share. 0.01¥ 0
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) il 10 1 L B D 3
@) Share premium (i) JR 1 ik 1

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the

issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account and other reserve account of
the Company are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

I A5 v 8 i A 2 ) M A3y T
SLERAT AR 2N m B Wi B B
AR TH 2 T B 2238 -

RAEH 2 RS A A% AR
) 2 P A5 v A M B KA fof
ez B AT 23 IR T BOR > M
B R RS H AR
AN T RETE (R F W 3
5 it T B ) 2 AR o
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27

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital and the existing balance on
the share premium account of a subsidiary
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the re-organisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company
represents the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the re-organisation of the Group on
29 February 2008.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

- waivers of liabilities due to related

parties; and

- the portion of the grant date fair

value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the
Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 1(r)(ii).

27

Je A ~ il ol B B ()
d) R R g (A7)
(i) HE Gk

AAE B 2 HoAt ok 44 4 LA
HZFEW (T I 2
] B 3 it B 2 P A T L %
BUA &R 5 BL(b) A 24 AR R
R FLNEZA LA
AR A R SR T R AT
JBe A7 Th (L

AN F 2 HAb Rk 4 46 LA
B ()2 WU S
R 2B EE TRE S B(b) A
2 TR & F A A
U H AR G AL S
111 8547 2 Fe 0y T 4

@iii) B AR
B RE DL 4

- R A AT B 2 Ty
Bt &

- BT AR EE B MR
T 22 i A 2 3%
HIAATEZ H 5 E
MR B 55 1(r) (i) 3k LA
W 105 LBl 2 A KR
Wz E R BORTER -
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

)

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory general reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity
shareholders.

PRC statutory reserves can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to equity shareholders
proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
companies with functional currency other
than RMB.

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

27 AR S R (am)

(@  FEfEEEEME ()

(iv)

v)

I 75 GE il

R B i S e A T AR SR A B R
I B HI) SRR DA % A 4 [
W] oo 2 ) 22 A Ak 2 A )
R ST o B 2 D ZE g AR
P A 1B & R B RO e T
ZHIR 2B D10 E L E—
P ot Al L AR A 2 B
EAR 2 50% 1k o 18] 7% ik A
JIT VR g A 2B A 43 TR B R T
HE 25 T R 2 A FE -

o B 5 E ol AT AR B A
TEAFE 2 8 () > SlfaT
AR 55 A SR B A R 7T
b 4 L o1 10 45 26 8 47 587 SR 4y
A PR - AT B R AT A
R PIREEMEA Z
25% -

FEE 52, faf 15

HE 52 fiff B4 R R B T RE &
WA IR o N R 2 R B S

ok P A AR 2 BT A BE S 22
% o
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27

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

(e)

®

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi)  Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in
the fair value of hedging instruments used
in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 1(g).

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2019 was
RMB618,633,000 (2018: RMB604,722,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

27

JRAS ~ il i B Be 2 (4)

(d

(e)

(®)

g K ()
vi) B

R B 1 (o) P 00 B O
T R A 2 R EOR
S A S AR A T AR
il 50 3 b B 4 L B 2 Bl
B T RN AE
B B 2 ERR AR o

ATk 3 Uk ok 1

ATE—JUETF A=+ —H &K
7 ) 22 AT AR UIR fif 4 AR I N RV
618,633,0007T ( =% — /N4 AR
#604,722,0007C) °

HAE

ARSI Y B B AT R B
A B I KR A AE B B RE T > SRS A
B KT Ty E ity RS E A - A DA
PR A AT Rl - AR A IR R 4R
1 S % 2 003 3 B AH AR A

A B RN S S A B B A
R > DATE A F5 0 i 4 K- T e
A AT 1R PR [ i BEL AR TR
R DL I 2 24 1) 48 2 e AR B 22 ] 9~
iy > SN0 A A 75 B 0 ) WA A R AR 2
MEAEAT I % -
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27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

®

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity, other than amounts
recognised in equity relating to cash flow hedges

less unaccrued proposed dividends.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group recognises right-of-use assets
and corresponding lease liabilities for almost all
leases previously accounted for as operating leases
as from 1 January 2019. This caused a slight
increase in the Group’s total debt and hence the
Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio remained
at 46% on 1 January 2019 when compared to its
position as at 31 December 2018.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at a level
considered reasonable by the Group’s management
from time to time with reference to the prevailing
market conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue new
shares or raise new debt financing.

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )
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JRAS ~ il i B Be 2 (4)

27 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 27

f) Capital management (continued) f) ARG (4F)

A [ A S A 30 T R A R
T DA 3 P 45 [ % A e At A B 5
165582 H A 2 S8 R H W A L

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the
end of the current and previous reporting periods
and at the date of transition to IFRS 16 was as

follows:

FAF

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—F A e SN =
+oA ZF L +=A
=Z=+—H —H—H =+—H
Note RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Bt ARBFL ARETT ARETT
(Note) (Note)
(Hit) (Hit)
Current liabilities: mE A
Loans and borrowings BHRBEE 22 1,284,005 1,467,523 1,467,523
Lease liabilities HE AR 23 6,907 1,250 -
1,290,912 1,468,773 1,467,523
Non-current liabilities: FmE A E:
Loans and borrowings BHRBEE 22 414,407 378,204 378,204
Lease liabilities HE AR 23 13,921 7914 -
Total debt B A 1,719,240 1,854,891 1,845,727
Add: Proposed dividends A S 27(b) 105,324 71,419 71,419
Less: Cash and cash R B
equivalents B 19 (528,003) (448,787) (448,787)
Pledged deposits EHE A7 3K 18 (327,037) (346,762) (346,762)
Adjusted net debt KRR AT 969,524 1,130,761 1,121,597
Total equity e A 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,503,858
Less: Hedging reserve B A 27 2
Proposed dividends et i ¥ 27(b) (105,324) (71,419) (71,419)
Adjusted capital FE RS <wN 2,933,558 2,432,439 2,432,439
Adjusted net debt-to- KR AEEA
capital ratio Ho 33% 46% 46%




27

28

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)

Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

®

Capital management (continued)

Note:  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements,
except that banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to the subsidiaries’ balance
sheet ratios (Note 22). The Group will actively and
regularly monitor its compliance to such covenants.

Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents, bills receivable and
derivative financial assets is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions,
for which the Group considers to have low credit

risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 2% (2018: 2%) and 12% (2018: 7%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the plain aluminum profiles and

aluminum profiles with surface finishing segment.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 to
180 days from the date of billing. Any debtors with
balances that are past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain

collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group’s different customer bases.

28
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

w56 B ik 3R B T
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

28 SREEBEHRESMTHZA
P (4)

(a) faBmBE (4)
& 55 HEW I sk (AF)

R AR A B AR 42 B g 52 ) HE R
XTI HE  BE JRL B S SR B 1R

Current (not past due)

1 — 180 days past due

181 — 360 days past due

361 — 720 days past due

More than 720 days
past due

BIHA (R H9)
HH1E 180K
w181 % 360K
BI361 720K
i1 HA B 720 %

H 2R
2019
A

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TR R i 1HG A4 {E s 45 98 5
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
0.50% 1,478,207 7,391
5.00% 583,321 29,166
10.00 % 26,478 2,648
50.00% 52,050 26,025
100.00 % 25,836 25,836
2,165,892 91,066
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28 Financial risk management and fair

28 b EEEE B Kk aR T HZ A

values of financial instruments (continued) PAH ()
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) S8 (4)
Trade receivables (continued) 5 BEN I (4 )
2018
—F— )\
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
T 4R R R T A [ Ficki i)
% RMB 000 RMB 000
AR ¥T T AR¥T
Current (not past due) B (R i) 0.50% 1,698,608 8,493
1 — 180 days past due MH1E 180K 5.00% 112,457 5,623
181 — 360 days past due  #HI181% 360K 10.00% 33,744 3,374
361 — 720 days past due I H361% 720K 50.00% 37,011 18,506
More than 720 days i 1 720K
past due 100.00% 6,911 6,911
1,888,731 42,907

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the

expected lives of the receivables.

TE I s R EE R TG SO A = E
I M 1 Ay Y o % 5 LU AR T AR
B DUR i S IR sk S 30 e o 8
PR DL~ B AT AR DO DA B A 4 T ) e
WS L ) S T 4 0 ] 6 R
W BIERER -
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28 Financial risk management and fair 28
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

<o il L B B R ik T H 2 A

A (47

(a)

fa Bl b (A )

& 55 HEW I sk (AF)

A TR > 52 o B WK T Y Nl 4 % A R

of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEENT -
2019 2018
—F A TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR M T
Balance at 1 January W= H—HZ &R 42,907 38,088
Uncollectible amounts written off SIS S AT s 1] 4 (137) (12,442)
Written back 3 [l - -
Impairment losses recognised e fife 2 el (B A 1E 48,296 17,261
Balance at 31 December wt+—-H=+—H
Z BB 91,066 42,907

The following significant changes in the gross

carrying amounts of trade receivables contributed

to the increase in the loss allowance during 2019:

increase in 1 — 180 days past due resulted
in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB23,543,000 (2018: RMB3,608,000);
and

increase in days past due over 180 days
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of
RMB25,718,000 (2018: RMB11,765,000);
and

a write-off of trade receivables with a gross
carrying amount of RMB137,000 (2018:
RMB12,442,000) resulted in a decrease in
loss allowance of RMB137,000.

DL a8 e — UL B
09 52 5 4 ) 446 )
KT

i) K BB 1 E 180K H
Bl B A AR
23,543,0007C ( —&F— /\4F:
A R #3,608,0007C)

3 ) O B i A 180K

ALY e A AR B N R
25,718,0007C ( —~F— )\ 4 :

ANE#¥11,765,0007C) 5 K&

sy MR AR AN R O¥F
137,0007C ( =& — /N4 A
[ #12,442,0007T ) 128 5 e
WK P R S R A D A
E#137,0007C
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

28
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities (excluding advances from customers)
and derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

&5 6 B R B
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

28 SREEBEHRESMTHZA
PAH ()

(b) WEESSRE (A)

R IR W AR A G 2 R A
EaMAE CRERER A% F E
WO IE ) 2 T A B0 OE > T
BEHMARMBEHRERE (LE%S
R A (0 ) 9 ko 8 OR
ZBUAT R B 2 R BRIH) A
A 1 A 2 e R H R

2019
“E Mg
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
A BB A
More than ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but Carrying
lyearor  lessthan  less than More than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 Dec
R+=A
N i W4ER =+—H
BER  HWERN  HIER L% mE ZIRWH
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARWTFL NRWTL ARWTL ANRWTZ ARWTZ ARWTZ
Loans and borrowings SRR 1309216 377,19 26,707 53714 1,766,833 1,698,412
Lease liabilities (Note) HERE M) 7,082 10,526 3,008 2,657 2373 20,828
Bills payables, creditors and JEAT AR~ AT IR SR
accrued charges* TEsT 2% i+ 2,712,739 = = - T1739 2,712,739
4,029,037 387,722 29,715 56,371 4,502,845 4,431,979
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

28

SWEBEEREBTHZA
PAH ()

(b) WEE S (4)

2018
ZF-NE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
REARIBE 2
More than More than
Within lyearbut 2 years but Carrying
1 year or less than less than amount at
on demand 2 years 5 years Total 31 Dec
i |
—HERR —iEf KR =t-H
ek EmEN HEER as ZkmfE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
NRETL ARFTT ARETT ARETT ARETL
Loans and borrowings BEHREE 1,505,243 329,562 77,201 1912006 1,845,727
Bills payables, creditors and TEfH 58 TSRS
accrued charges* Gk 2428372 - - 248372 2418372
3,933,615 329,562 71,201 4,340,378 4,274,099

Note:

The balance included trade payables, bills
payable, accrued payroll and benefits, other
payables and accruals and interest payable, which
were financial liabilities in nature.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. Other lease liabilities include amounts
recognised at the date of transition to IFRS
16 in respect of leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17 and amounts
relating to new leases entered into during the
year. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See Note 1(c).

* A7 R 6L 95 X 55 I SO JE A
TR R A R AR A
TS 30T R it 221 R JE A 7
B TI R A -

Mt o AEBEE KA EERTBIEY
U B P B I B R HE IS 16
SRR —F— LE—H —
H 2 A& ik > DATERR JC AR 9%
B % o A 175 A B
EHE AL E AR BRI Ao 1
by FEL T B A A A O = P
S RIS 169% 2 B
S T AR 45 I I o AR 179
O3 S T Y R R RR Y
B RE S B AR N BT N7 R AL
A7 B A0 4 B o MR B G k> 7 4
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(b)

(o)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and
related interest expense of the Group amounting to
RMB1,311,425,000 were due to be repaid during
2020 (2018: RMB1,517,952,000). The short-term
liquidity risk inherent in this contractual maturity
date was not significantly changed after the

reporting period.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in
(ii) below.

i) Hedges of interest rate risk

At 31 December 2019, the Group used
cross-currency interest rate swap to manage
its interest rate risk in respect of bank
borrowings which bear floating interest
rates denominated in US dollars in the
principal amount of US$7,500,000 (2018:
nil) (see Notes 20(b)).

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(0

Interest rate risk (continued)

i)

Hedges of interest rate risk (continued)

The cross-currency interest rate swap
mature on 31 August 2020 matching the
maturity of the related loan. The existence
of an economic relationship between the
interest rate swaps and the variable rate
borrowings is determined by matching
their critical contract terms, including the
reference interest rates, tenors, interest
repricing dates, maturity dates, interest
payment and/or receipt dates, the notional
amounts of the swaps and the outstanding

principal amounts of the loans.

28
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings at the end of the reporting
period, after taking into account the effect
of cross-currency interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedging instruments
(see (i) above).

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

SBEBEEREBTHZA
P (4)

() FIREEE (#)
Gi)  FIRMEH

RS AS S A RS R
FTEE B 2 R AN (BT
FigE B EREH W TR
238 SR s A
(R EXaE)) e

2019 2018
SR ZENE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
EHAE &% {7k Ex
000 ‘000
Fi T
Fixed rate borrowings: E B &
Lease liabilities (Note) HEAR (Mt 4.90% 20,828 - -
Bank loans RATEN 3.48%-5.13% 878,318 3.37%-5.70% 1,021,880
899,146 1,021,880
Variable rate borrowings: FEMEE:
Bank loans BATHR 3.90%-5.23% 820,094 4.04%-6.18% 823,847
Total borrowings et 1,719,240 1,845,727
Fixed rate borrowings as a E BB
percentage of total borrowings BEEM 52% 55%

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS
16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. Under this
approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See Note 1(c).

Bt ALEERNKETIS
P50 4 JRE I % B
oA e HI S 1655 10 7
W —FE—H—H
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17950 B A 2B L E
FH 5 AR B FHL B o AR
P800 7 vk W 4 FE A L
BE R - B EELC) ©

321



322

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(0

Interest rate risk (continued)

(iii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by
approximately RMB6,904,000 (2018:
RMB6,945,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2018.
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases which
give rise to receivables, payables and cash balances
that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily HKD and USD. The Group manages this
risk as follows:

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk

At 31 December 2019, the Group used
cross-currency interest rate swap to manage
its foreign currency risk in respect of bank
borrowings denominated in US dollars
in the principal amount of US$7,500,000
(2018: nil) (see Notes 20(b)) until the
repayment date of foreign currency short-

term loan.

The Group applies a hedge ratio of 1:1 and
determines the existence of an economic
relationship between the forward exchange
contracts and the highly probable forecast
transactions based on their currency
amounts and the timing of their respective
cash flows.

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

28 SREEBEHRESMTHZA
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(@  BWEE

PN N B = B e ]
o T 4 MR v I 2 3 v R P
T Z A HE BR ] o A A B 3 B A
BLEB M Z e B KN
R B E RO R (L R
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52 B T B o w% R B B B T
Je 36T o A AR H 5T 51 7 U B

[

i B B

R oFE T A=+
H o A 4 |0 1 52 X5 ¥
) & 45 19 4 BB HC R 4 %0
%47,500,0003 76 ( & — N\
MR ER) W T EHE AT H
A B AN R (R
20(b) ) - B & 4048 I B K
&% H 5k -

A5 R 1: 11 3 o EE R
REHEWEHEASARSE
T e IR (] Tl S22 S 1 BEE 5 4
SR AR = i TR 2 5 2 T
) 48 75 B AR
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.
Difference resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency is excluded.

28

< L B PR R Rk TR 2 4
PAE )

@  BWmBE ()
(i) HF W B R

RIS G B i R
TE VA2 W) A B 2 R B R DA S
ZHA B E L R E
7 B B AR T A 2 W
R i - B2 S B
J\ B 7R I 2 B AN R 5
ol LhAR &S B 2 BB AR
o T U AP S5 B R
B 2B W
2R A AFAE N o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

UL VS HOINN PN
2019 2018
“E0E e S
HKD UsD HKD UsD
#7 F7 #r #£7
000 000 ‘000 ‘000
T 12 T T
Trade and other receivables 55 B ARk 7,899 10,816 11,447 4273
Cash and cash equivalents Ra k&5 EY 16,924 12,466 14,576 13,470
Trade and other payables 285 R e HOR (14,748) (15,148) (16,590) (15,106)
Loans and borrowings B RS - (52,322) - -
Gross and net exposure CHERER kAR
arising from recognised EEZRRATERTH
assets and liabilities 10,075 (44,188) 9,433 2,037
Notional amounts of forward JRAE 4 2 i 40
exchange contracts used as SMES 4 2 Wi & 4
economic hedges - 53,018 - -
Net exposure arising from CHERER kAR
recognised assets and liabilities £/t LR I A 10,075 8,830 9,433 2,637
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(iii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables

remained constant.

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

SBEBEEREBTHZA
P (4)

)  BWEE (4
i) W IESE S

ES ENCES S S e
ARA R R B R 3 2 E R
% H A7 B 5 ) > 3 A8 B A
A g 5 KA AN B R
B ) 2 R BLAR ik 1) S DR B i
A AT BE B 2 RV 52 )

2019 2018
ZE0E ZE-
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Effect on profit
in foreign  after tax and

(decrease)  Effect on profit
in foreign  after tax and

exchange rate retained profit  exchange rate retained profit

HERH % HRBL %

ExbA/  WHRRE  ExLA/S WARRE

(TH)  BHZEE (TH)  BHZEE

000 ‘000

T T

United States Dollars T 1% 64 1% 21
Hong Kong Dollars iy 1% 79 1% 62

Results of the analysis as presented in the FEREBIZ A R E A
above table represent an aggregation of the LA AFLIS B Zhet

instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

Wt B 2 BB A 2 ARt
BIVERE 52 2 NI 2 51 H R 4%
ot IR 2 HE A0 Ty N R
o
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(iii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2018.

(e) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair
value of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:
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< L B PR R Rk TR 2 4
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@  BWmBE ()
(iii)  BIERSES T (H)
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ERROEIYS & ONCRIE N
WRER ML R RHEZ 4
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FIH o 3 M7 37 A 6L 45 $ 5 g
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B 65 W BT A AR 2 2R o AT
O % 8 2 — )\AE A ] 2 2
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L FLEE R
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (continued)

i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

28 b EEEE B Kk aR T HZ A

A (4)

(e)  AFEuHE (4)

i)

% 2Pt 18 2 s il B
AfE (H)

LTEER ()

. S — AR (E DA
— R A (E R A
(B> BIAR ] & 72 BB
R wH R AE T B
5 W) 2 o R e 1

. B ARAGE  DLAR
A AR Z A
(B> BY Hodgg A (B 2w
LR R 0 25— 2]
iy A (B > HL I A )
A BEZ Y-
B 2 i A AE 2
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (continued)

@) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

28

SWEBEEREBTHZA
PAH ()

()  AFMEuEHE (4)

(i) AVl aHE2Z M EER
AfE (H)

LT E R (#)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

Fair value at REZ-REFZA=ZF—HZ

31 December VSR Nin vk
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
/% S K2
+ZA=+—H

A #—H B B4

RMB'O99  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTFL  ARBTFx  ARKTZ  ARKTZ

Recurring fair value B M A
measurements

Liabilities: fE:

Derivative financial it &R TH:
instruments:
- Cross-currency interest — B W
rate swap

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

698 - 698 -

wHE_F-NLFE+ZA
=t HIREE g
i iR 3L S
LS NG I EAS PN T
85 4 o AR 4R B 2 B A 8%
22 R R RS A T (H
& 8k 2 TH] Z A -
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28 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair values measurement (continued)

i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of cross-currency interest
rate swap contracts are calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows based on the terms and maturity of
the contract, taking into account the market
rates as at the valuation date and features of

the swap.

Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair value as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018 except as
disclosed in Note 11.

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

28 b EEEE B Kk aR T HZ A

A (4)

(e)  AFEuHE (4)

i)

(i)

% 2Pt 18 2 s il B
AfE (H)

A R THE RHE A 2
1o 11l R A

L IR SRR TP/
RN WSy SEEENER i)
55 M 3R S A5 ) 2 R AR 4 R
T B AR e B DL 22 A
FEOR AR B & R 2 BLEFF
o

0 4 A PN HAM 2
R A2 AT

R B RE 10 PT 4 R A AR R
V45 B AS S B AR AR Z
A TR 2 R SR
ToNFTZA=ZH K
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29 Commitments 29 KRB
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a) WR-F-RNEF+_A=Z+—HR
2019 not provided for in the financial statements B 55 Sk 2 S S AR 11 R R AT AR R
were as follows: W
2019 2018
B SRS e SN2
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T AR BT
Contracted for SRS
— Purchase of property, plant and — BT 2
equipment for the production Az 7 B g
base in Chengdu City L ENN NG 15,879 16,763
— Purchase of property, plant and —BEAFENZ
equipment for the production A Ik Hh I
base in Yichun City LY S & 70,492 25,802
— Purchase of property, plant and — LT =K E
equipment for the production A i b i
base in Sanshui, Foshan City L/ERY S & ] 145,894 49,630
— Purchase of property, plant and RN AP
equipment for the production Az 7 B b B
base in Qinyang City L/ESY &5 10,400 20,592
242,665 112,787
Authorised but not contracted for [SECE L EEN-HE] - 1,235
242,665 114,022
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Commitments (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

5 W 5 A i Gk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

3

29 KB (w)

(b)y RAZFE—-NFFTH=T—H &
PE S AT SHUBY A8 4% AL S B AT 1 o 2l Ak
{RFH & AW T

2018
—E— \4E
RMB’000
NRWFor

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

Over 5 years

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17.
The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to these leases (see Note 1(c)). From 1
January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised as lease liabilities in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the policies
set out in Note 1(j), and the details regarding the
Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in
Note 23.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

—AEN
— AR AE AR A
A AR

2,090
5,935
4,370

12,395

A REHERA N 2 HY)
WA N - 32 S5 A0 R AT AR R A
GEHERE17 A KEME -
PN R AR R R Il
JRE T B I o S 4 BB 169K © AR
ULk AEECWE T L
HE—H—HZ Y&tk UMERA
MuzsmHErmEaE (R
I(c)) e AZF—NF—H—HE>
TR A T B A 3K B AR IR I SR 1) T
ZBURTEM BRI R AR A HE
Bl KA B AR R AR & T 3K
2 E A R A B E23 .

30 ERARffE

B FE-EF A= o AREEN
fEE KSR AMR (T /F /) o
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31

Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the
following individuals/companies:

Name of related parties

B 34 5 4 1

31

HOK BT R 5

B 5% 45 B B k3R At A 4 BT 4 B 19 32 5
L s o > A S BAEAT LT BEOR B U7 52
5

REZE X NLFE+_H=Z1T—HIF
B ARNFEERAEUNANL AT AR
£ [ B 4 g

Relationship with the Group
SiL A 42 1 A 4%

Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (“Leahin Coating”)
(ol S BB A BRA ) (1)
i 1l 37 B R A BRA W] (TS BERL ) ()

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd.

(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) (B R ELZEH 5% A R AR @)

J R BB R P A R F (BB ) (i)

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(“China Lesso Group”)
(v 2 T 20 40 O 42 RO A R W) % LB I 22 7))

(o ] M 0 41 o 42 P A R ) D HL RS T 2 WD)
([ BB )

Jiangxi Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangxi Jingxing”)
(VL7 & 5 B AR s A IR A FD) ()

VLV A S B R R AR AR (VLR E ) )

(1) The English translation of the company names
is for reference only. The official names of these
companies are in Chinese.

Effectively owned by certain executive
directors of the Company

MARFE T ERTEREA

Effectively owned by certain executive
directors of the Company

F AR 24 R T AT R R A

substantial shareholder of the Company

AN F) R

Associate of the Group

AL ] 2 W

(i) FEEAFMEGEAMMSRE
SN T Y T 3024 A By 0 24 i o



XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 f5 jg B[R A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w56 B ik 3R B T
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

31 Material related party transactions 31 HERBEEIRG (4)
(continued)
(a) Transactions 5
Sales and purchase HEH
2019 2018
—E-AE SR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR BT
Sales of goods to FHERMT
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB R 127,091 147,213
— Jiangxi Jingxing —{LVg S 25,894 74,373
— China Lesso Group (Note) — v [ g 0 A [
(Htit) 33,779 -
186,764 221,586
Dormitory rent R
— Jiangxi Jingxing — VLY 4,625 4,159
— China Lesso Group (Note) — v (o] g 2 A [
(Htat) 1,489 -
6,114 4,159
Purchase of raw materials PR i 41 R
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB IS 544 100
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31 Material related party transactions 31
(continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (b)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following balances with related parties:

i) Trade and other receivables (Note 17)

HERBEET RS (4)

S I3 22 0 1) 465 B

TR o AR > A A o L ] Ty Y A

fRANR

(i) R RH AW (it

17)
2019 2018
R e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T AR IFT T
Trade related BRAZ 5 A B

— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BURE S 17,756 36,948
— Jiangxi Jingxing — VLY 5 Bl 19,308 97,742

— China Lesso Group (Note) — — H [5 I 28 4k [#]
(Mt at) 6,728 -
43,792 134,690

(ii)  Trade and other payables (i) K5 R H
2019 2018
—nE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥T ANR¥ T
Trade related BRAZ 5 A

— Leahin Coating — 7 BLE R = 31
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB R = 2,104

— China Lesso Group (Note) — — H [5 ik 38 4E [
(Mtit) 121 -
121 2,135

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

I A B 7 R T A SRS A

He 5 LA [

Py,

TE B A o
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31 Material related party transactions

A B U B A M R
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31 ERBETRS (#)

(continued)
(b)  Balances with related parties (continued) (b)  EBHEIT AR (4F)
(ii)  Trade and other payables (continued) (i) 5 R AW 500 ()
Note: Guangzhou Jingxing Construction Bt - RN S B SRR PR
Technology Co., Ltd. (& /N 5t B 4 2 )~ L S B 6 A A
SR B A PR/ F]) . Foshan Jingxing B PR 2 ) W7 UL RE
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., SRR AT A F K
Led. (ff 1l 5% B g8 02 AR i 3 A R 2 T 7 7 5% B G A AR TR i
7)), Zhejiang Huijing Construction A BRZ T 2RSS v
Technology Co., Ltd. (#7 T [ 5 2 5 AR 2 I A A
B4 A /A E)) and Henan Jingxing A E - LFEEH
Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., JUH A5k BoA 4 13 B
Ltd. (77 R 5% B g 55 AR 1 i A BR 2 b T 2 28 5 W A%
7)) have become non-wholly owned B A B ALy 38 Sy 2 —
subsidiaries of China Lesso Group T4
effective from 9 July 2019, and the
transactions between the Group and the
abovementioned entities were treated
as parts of related parties transaction
thereafter.
(¢)  Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEHEMABME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEMAND ZME (BIEMET &
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors Bk 528 JIT 43 Bl JT 48 % = S AT T AR 4R
as disclosed in Note 7 and the senior management e A N B &)
as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows: K
2019 2018
SECLE CF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NR¥TIT
Short-term employee benefits SR B AR A 17,500 20,382
Contribution to retirement B R AE R 4k
benefit plan 137 134
Equity settled share-based payment DA RE &5 5 B 1 £ SE i
expenses (RN RN 575 139
18,212 20,655

335



336

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED £ %% $2 2 $5 i B BR A 7)
Annual Report 2019 F %R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W 5 A W

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

31

Material related party transactions
(continued)

(0

(d)

Key management personnel remuneration

(continued)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(Note 5(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions of sales and/or
purchase above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in the section headed “Connected
transactions” of the Report of the Directors of this
annual report.

31

HORBMET R By (4

(0

(d)

FEREMABME ()

P AT R DA (K E
5(b))

i SR R R 52 B 2 9

b KB 2 BN 2 S i
T WS 2 o A IR A Rl RS 2 b
WL (T BRI ) S 14ATE BT 5
T B A by SR B 5 5y - B
LIS 14 ATE BLE 2 30 51 A
AAEREEFRSE 2 (BHELS]

Q/E“'I‘]‘O
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Company-level statement of financial 32 ) R DL R
position
2019 2018
ZE U TE AR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M it AR EF AT
Non-current asset I B) A
Investments in subsidiaries P E AR 2 B E 14 621,804 608,199
Current assets i B & A
Amounts due from a subsidiary JRE Wi — ] B Jogg 2 ) I 94,614 75,749
Cash and cash equivalents B4 I B4 5 18 1,636 838
96,250 76,587
Current liabilities i B A
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST G 2 =) JE 87,748 70,381
Other payables L A AT 35 I 7,942 5,952
95,690 76,333
Net current assets i By & 560 254
Total assets less current liabilities 48 % 7 I i B £ f& 622,364 608,453
Net assets A 622,364 608,453
Capital and reserves JB A F £ A6 27
Share capital e A 3,731 3,731
Reserves feti 618,633 604,722
Total equity HE #5 A0 622,364 608,453
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BF 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )
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Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period

()

(i1)

After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in Note 27(b).

The coronavirus disease outbreak since early 2020
has brought about additional uncertainties in the
Group’s operating environment and has impacted

the Group’s operations and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact
of the developments on the Group’s businesses
and has put in place contingency measures. These
contingency measures include but not limited to:
assessing our suppliers’ readiness; improving our
production process, negotiating with distributors
on delivery schedule, continuously monitoring the
operations of our distributors and strengthening
cost control. The Group will keep our contingency
measures under review as the situation evolves.

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the
outbreak has caused the delays of production and
delivery, and impacted certain debtors’ repayment
schedules as well as inventory turnover in the first
quarter of 2020. The Group’s management has
set a plan for catching up the delayed schedules
above in the remaining financial year ending 2020.
As the extent to which the coronavirus disease
outbreak will continue is uncertain, it is not
practicable to estimate the full financial effect that
the coronavirus disease outbreak may have on the
Group’s businesses as at the date when the financial

statements are authorised to issue.

33
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()

(i1)

WEWMAZ EFTERIRE LR
WS o i — B G B R B RE
27(b) °

H % AR AR A 1R T A IR
T B PR BN LB A S A A IR
B3 7 A A A B B R 3R 10 3 A 4
¥ 5 95 % S B 51K DL 2 i 2

ALE B — D) BB SR A
A ] S5 7 A R B N0 R DU S A
il o 5% 55 JE S Fi B L 45 ELAS BRI 77
Al 48 R Y ) VAR R~ SO R
Tt~ L 73 G 7 W R 22 ASF IR R
A9 A O 1 A NI R AR
il o 7 4 FH K AR 4% 2 AR 10 R R R B
Aok H B S O

LA SR B A B SE B T A R &
TR Z R O U T
AT AT AR ~ 5 B TR AR
I (R 2 DL R A7 B e A A
HECHERBUREE —E %
AERR N 2 IR B R Bl 2 IR
B[] 2 o R A 388 0 252 ek 1R 2
PBENE B R AR JEE R ke - IR
TP B B R A RE T B A R
T T SR 2 3 2 175 T RE 3 A 4 1
SESE AN AT MBS BN R
o
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Comparative figures

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
in Note 1(c).

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

A B U B A M R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(Bf 77 150151 > B LU R WS 7 )

b g B

AELEEOH —F—IFE—H— HEREM
I % S s S Y R B 1 65% o ARARRZ T i
]SRRI ST B o i FTBUR S ) 2
— B E BERR M R L) -

REE_F-NLFET_A=1
— H 1k 4 BE CAR i 5 R A 80y
MR ~ i 1 S R e R ) A

CENTEFUE S EIURIE JE R RN S iy
A Z B GO EM NI FEREE —F
—HET A= HORE R M OR A
YAERT » T % 45 S 55 ik 2310 6 R Ak 2% 2 15
Wl o W% 5F SRR LA T 5 T AE LA 4R B A B
W T -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
TP H Bk %

bH 4 B & w30 A A 2%

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a business

I 45 B B i R RN B3 SR T A 2

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of material

W v B 5 190 L o i R I SRR AE AT A A 2 E

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2020
R FE A H

1 January 2020
—E-FRFE—~H—H

A [ I AE R AG B2 5 5 R 1 UCHE TV ]
T B AL IS By LG8 5 TR %
S IR AR A MBS R A AL EO B AT
REPEAR K o
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h AR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(LN RS 7 )

As at 31 December
m+=HA=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
SR ZE-NE ZFE-LE ZFE-RE ZF-0F
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETL ANRBETT ARBTT ARBTFT ARBFTFIL
Assets and liabilities BERALME
Non-current assets E N 2,668,419 2,376,862 2,301,489 2,140,723 2,249,843
Current assets ME) G 5,092,971 4,731,621 4,142,972 3,201,732 2,670,474
Current Liabilities W) B E (4,262,373)  (4,190,051)  (3,810,506)  (3,184,340) (3,139,012
Non-current liabilities FiE A (460,137) (414,574 (564,920) (470,195) (361,459)
Net assets B A 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,069,035 1,687,920 1,419,846
Capital and reserves it A B ik
Share capital A 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731
Reserves Tl 3,034,604 2,500,379 2,065,304 1,684,189 1,416,115
Total equity attributable to A2 ) 4 M OR
equity shareholders of A HE %5 48 %
the Company 3,038,335 2,504,110 2,069,035 1,687,920 1,419,846
Non-controlling interests T I 4 545 (252) - - -
Total equity W 25 g 3,038,880 2,503,858 2,069,035 1,687,920 1,419,846
For the year ended 31 December
REFTZAZF—HILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
TR ZF-NE ZF-bE ZF-RE ZF L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBEFLE  ARBTFIE ARBFFEZ ARFFL ARFFIL
Results 4
Revenue HEE 11,280,848 9,924,517 7,239,658 5,576,696 4,977,829
Profit before taxation B Bt i i A1 723,470 607,916 444,445 351,291 320,660
Income tax RS (120,864) (113,938) (61,815) (52,815) (54,893)
Profit for the year A JE i 602,606 493,978 382,630 298,476 265,767
Attributable to: IF AL e
Equity shareholders of the s A HE AR IR OR
Company 606,109 495,230 382,630 298,476 265,767
Non-controlling interests I P 5 (3,503) (1,252) - - -
602,606 493,978 382,630 298,476 265,767
Earnings per share BRAN
Basic (RMB yuan) AR (ARKT) 145 1.18 0.92 0.71 0.64
Diluted (RMB yuan) W (ARE¥T) 145 118 0.92 0.71 0.64

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

A A A S e —

fir e
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